
 
 

1 
 

BOARD MEETING 

December 1, 2021; 2:00 p.m. 
Renaissance World Golf Village and Convention Center 

Caddy Shack Restaurant 

TENTATIVE AGENDA 
*Action Item 

I. Call to Order/Roll Call  
  
II. Public Comment 
 
III. Review of Delegation of Authority Items 
 
IV. Approval of September 8, 2021 Annual Board Meeting Minutes* 
 
V. Staff  and Committee Reports 

A. CEO Report-Verbal 
B. Finance Manager’s Report 
C. 1st Quarter Program Update  
D. 1st Quarter Early Literacy Report 
E. Executive Administrative Committee, November 3, 2021, Cancelled 

 
VI. New/Unfinished Business 

A. Summary of D. Bell Annual Evaluation- HANDOUT 
B. Approval of Episcopal Children’s Services 2021/2022 Contract Amendment #0003-21* 
C. Approval of 2019-21 School Readiness Plan Amendment #31* 
D. Approval of the RFP Committee Recommendation for the Coalition’s RFP (Request for 

Proposals) #RFP-22/23-001 Contract AWARD* 
E. Review of RFP and RFQ Timelines for Recruiting Evaluators- INFORMATIONAL 
F. Review of Post RFP Memo-INFORMATIONAL 
G. Approval of Accounting and Financial Policies and Procedures Revisions* 
H. Approval of Revisions to the Coalition’s Contract Management and Monitoring Policies and 

Procedures* 
I. Approval of Revisions to the Coalition’s Personnel Policies and Procedures Manual* 
J. Approval of Disposal of Inventory* 
K. Approval of DCF Designee Andrew Warnock* 
L. Approval of the Management Decision Recommendation for ECS Audit June 30, 2021* 
M. Approval of Revisions to the 2021-2022 Budget for Early Learning Coalition of North 

Florida* 
N. Approval of the Northeast Florida Educational Consortium Lease Renewal Effective January 

31, 2022* 



 
 

2 
 

O. Approval of the ELCNF Insurance Coverages with Florida Insurance Trust to include our 
General Liability, Directors & Officers, Workers Compensation, Cyber, Crime and Property 
Coverage* 

P. Review of Board Membership- INFORMATIONAL 
 
VII. Board Absenteeism Log – INFORMATIONAL 

 
VIII. Board Comment 
 
IX. Next Meetings 

• Wednesday, February 2, 2022 10:30 a.m. – Exec/Admin Committee Conference Call 
Meeting 

• Wednesday, March 9, 2022, 10:30 a.m. – Board Meeting 
 

X. Adjournment* 
 
 

 
 

 
 

 

 



Early Learning Coalition of North Florida, Inc.  
Board Meeting  

December 1, 2021 

 I. Call to Order/Roll Call 

 

         

 

II. Public Comment 

 

         

 

III. Review of Delegation of Authority Items 

 



Early Learning Coalition of North Florida, Inc.  
Board Meeting  

December 1, 2021 
 

 

 

IV.  Approval of September 8, 2021Board 
Meeting Minutes* 

 

 

 

*ACTION ITEM 
 



 

Board Meeting Minutes  
September 8, 2021 

Early Learning Coalition of North Florida, Inc. 
 

ANNUAL BOARD MEETING 
The Renaissance World Golf Village and Convention Center 

September 8, 2021 
10:30 a.m. 

 
ATTENDANCE 
 
Members Present: 
Myrna Allen, Treasurer 
Jessica Bishop 
Ronald Coleman 
Vina Delcomyn 
Kyle Gammon 
Michelle Jonihakis 
Theresa Little 
Teresa Matheny, ECS 
Bianca Montoro 
Aubrie Simpson-Gotham, Secretary 
Michael Siragusa 
Joy Stanton, Vice Chair 
Patricia Tauch 
Christian Whitehurst 
Renee Williams  
 

Members Absent: 
Brian Graham 
Whitney Kersey Graves 
Mary Ann Holanchock 
Brian McElhone 
Charles Puckett 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
Staff Present: 
Dawn Bell, Chief Executive Officer 
Rhonda Cody, Office Manager 
Tajaro Dixon, Grants and Operations Manager 
Joan Whitson, Early Literacy Coordinator 
Susan Pettijohn, Finance Manager 
Christopher Spell, Finance Manager 

Others Present: 
Marsha Peacock, Board Member 
Nominee 

 

 
 
CALL TO ORDER/ROLL CALL 
Joy Stanton called the meeting to order at 10:31 a.m.  Roll was taken; quorum was met, with 15 
of the 20 board members in attendance.   
 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT-All Kids Learning Center-HANDOUT 
No comments, The Director  of All Kids Learning Center never attended the meeting nor did any 
members of her staff. 
 
 
REVIEW OF DELEGATION OF AUTHORITY ITEMS 
The Board designates authority to the Coalition’s Office Manager to review and approve the Chief 
Executive Officer’s timesheets, leave requests, work related travel expenses, and other routine 



 

Board Meeting Minutes 
September 8, 2021 

 

2 

operational requests.  These documents are made available at each regular board meeting for board 
review.  Delegation items were passed around with no discussion or questions on the items reviewed. 
 
 
APPROVAL OF JUNE 30, 2021 BOARD MEETING MINUTES* 
 

1. A. Simpson-Gotham motioned to approve the June 30, 2021 Board Meeting 
Minutes, as presented.  R. Williams seconded the motion. No discussion.  
Motion passed unanimously.  
 

 
STAFF AND COMMITTEE REPORTS  
 
CEO REPORT- REVIEW OF THE 2020-21 BOARD SELF EVAULATION REULTS  
D. Bell reviewed the results of the 2020-21 Board Self Evaluation. This evaluation allows both 
board and staff members to assess how we are all doing and identifies any gaps that we can 
provide support through materials or training.  Staff really looks for those 1 or 2 ratings to see if 
there may be a gap, whether it is individually or more globally as a board.  Thirteen Board 
Members participated in the self-evaluation where overall results was rated a 4.21 or “exceeds 
expectations”. 
 
FINANCE MANAGER’S REPORT-VERBAL 
S. Pettijohn reported on the following: 
 
Desk Reviews and Audits 
We are waiting on the final report from DEL for the November 2020 monitoring.  Our external 
audit will begin in Oct 2021 for the fiscal year end Jun 30, 2021.  
 
Q4 Financial Statements (see attachment) 
Attached are the Q4 financial statements for FY 2020-21.  The Coalition’s year to date surplus is 
slightly greater than was budgeted.  Grant expenses are less than anticipated at this time and in 
direct proportion to the reduction in grant revenue.  These statements do not include the “13th” 
invoice which will be completed this week. 
 
Targets and Restrictions  
All targets and restrictions are in alignment with our Grant requirements. 
 
Budget (see attachment) 
We have received a Notice of Award (NOA) for FY 2021-22, but it is very incomplete.  The 
current NOA does not include 1) provider rate increases for SR and VPK, 2) CARES/ARP 
Grant, 3) PDG Grant, or 4) OAMI Grant.  Therefore we have not made any changes to the 
proposed budget from the last Board meeting.  We will update and send a new budget as soon as 
a more complete NOA is received. 
 
 

Early Learning Coalition of North Florida 

FY 2020-2021 

As of June 30, 2021 

  
2020-2021 

 
Q4 2020-21 

 
Favorable 

Notice of Awards Annual Budget YTD Actual (Unfavorable) 

School Readiness (SR) $ 21,408,789 $ 18,510,616 $ (2,898,173) 



 

Board Meeting Minutes 
September 8, 2021 

 

3 

OAMI 16,618 16,618 0 

PDG Services 201,655 201,655 0 

CARES 8,845,159 8,288,680 (556,479) 

Voluntary PreKindergarten (VPK) 14,924,803 12,495,703 (2,429,100) 

Total  Notice of Award $ 45,397,024 $ 39,513,272 $ (5,883,752) 
 
 

Subrecipient Expense 

School Readiness (SR) $ 20,399,141 $ 17,620,150 $ 2,778,991 

OAMI 16,618 16,618 0 

PDG Services 201,655 201,655 0 

CARES 8,845,159 8,288,680 556,479 

Voluntary PreKindergarten (VPK) 14,867,400 12,483,329 2,384,071 

Total Subrecipient Expense $ 44,329,973 $ 38,610,432 $ 5,719,541 
 
 

Grant Funds Available to ELC of North FL 

 
 
$ 1,067,051 

 
 

$ 902,840 

 
 
$ (164,211) 

 
 

Other Donations and Revenue 
Interest Income $ 530 $ 537 $ 7 

Clay Electric Foundation 15,000 15,000 0 

Kiwanis 750 0 (750) 

Reinhold 750 1000 250 

Quality Teacher's Conference 6,500 2,785 (3,715) 

Miscellaneous Donations 2,000 6,313 4,313 

Total Revenues $ 1,092,581 $ 928,475 $ (164,106) 

 
 

ELC of North Florida Estimated Expense 
Salaries $ 579,868 $ 492,956 $ 86,912 

PR Taxes 47,363 37,180 10,183 

Health Insurance & HSA Contributions 121,000 122,963 (1,963) 

Pension 27,000 18,633 8,367 

Life, Disability, and WC 15,000 8,728 6,272 

Staff Development 8,500 5,500 3,000 

Contract Services 3,000 0 3,000 

Auditing 15,000 15,250 (250) 

Legal 500 0 500 

Printing & Reproduction 2,000 0 2,000 

Repairs & Maintenance 1,000 0 1,000 

Office Sites - Occupancy 50,000 43,929 6,071 

Postage, Freight & Delivery 2,000 3,567 (1,567) 

Rentals - Office Equipment 5,000 3,852 1,148 

Office Supplies 10,000 7,121 2,879 

Communications 15,000 16,425 (1,425) 

D & O Insurance 2,800 2,277 523 

General Liability 4,500 4,569 (69) 

Equipment <$1,000 3,500 1,464 2,036 

Equipment >$1,000 2,000 5,111 (3,111) 

Travel - In State 3,500 0 3,500 

Travel - Out of State 6,500 0 6,500 

Travel - Local 7,000 1,915 5,085 

Bank Fees 600 139 461 

Software/Licenses/Support 14,000 7,992 6,008 

Web Service 26,000 32,210 (6,210) 

Other employee expenditures 2,000 98 1,902 

ADP Fees 7,500 6,088 1,412 

Dues & Subscriptions 14,000 10,879 3,121 

Taxes, Licenses and Fees 450 117 333 

Misc. - Other Current Charges 4,250 6,811 (2,561) 

Quality Program 91,750 68,975 22,775 
 
 

Total ELC North Florida Estimated Expense 

 
 

1,092,581 

 
 

924,749 

 
 

167,832 

    
Surplus or (Loss) $ - $ 3,726 $ 3,726 

 
 
4TH QUARTER PROGRAM UPDATE 
T. Dixon reported on the following: 
 



 

Board Meeting Minutes 
September 8, 2021 

 

4 

Coalition Activities:   

   
• The Coalition and the Division of Early Learning (DEL) agreed on a 

Preventative Corrective Action Plan (PCAP) July 28, 2021 for the annual 
OEL Fiscal Monitoring that occurred early December 2020.  The final report 
only had two minor compliance issues.  As all items in the PCAP have been 
completed, the Coalition is currently awaiting the official close-out letter for 
this review.   

• The 2021/2022 Coalition’s Anti-Fraud Plan was submitted to OEL’s Office of 
Inspector General May 5, 2021.     

• OEL Grant Agreements were completed and approved in time for July 1st 
funding. 
• In April, Coalition staff attended OEL-sponsored WipFli courses, “In depth 

OMB (Federal Office of Management and Budget) Trainings”. 
• The Coalition began planning for the 21/22 processing of the Request for 

Proposals (RFP) for Primary Service Provider and the Request for 
Qualifications (RFQ) for External Auditing Services.  Actual work on the RFP 
began in May 2021.  The RFP committee was created and had its first meeting 
July 21, 2021.  The RFP documents were approved during the August 4, 2021 
Executive/Administrative committee meeting, and are part of today’s board 
packet for ratification.   

• June 19, 2021 the Kiwanis Club of Palatka (my club) held a “Kid Fest” event 
in partnership with Staples Office Supply (in Palatka) which was estimated to 
be attended by 150 children that day. 

Episcopal Children’s Services (ECS) On-Site Monitoring:  
 
The 2020/2021 Third Quarter Monitoring was performed (remotely) May 17-28, 
2021.  This monitoring included all OEL required “eligibility” criteria for School 
Readiness and VPK.  Additional areas of review were Data and Data Security 
Systems Updates, and School Readiness Plan Compliance for section II. C. 
Inclusion.  From this review, there were only two eligibility compliance issues.  
Corrections and staff refresher training was given as corrective action 
immediately.  
 
The 2020/2021 Fourth Quarter Monitoring is scheduled for August 16-27, 2021.  
This monitoring will include Data and Data Security Systems Updates, and 
School Readiness Plan Compliance for section II. G. Program Assessment, Fiscal 
Non-direct Costs review for 3rd and 4th quarters, and the Fiscal Year-end 
Overview. 

 
4TH QUARTER EARLY LITERACY REPORT 
J. Whitson reported on the following:  
 
Highlights:   
Reinhold Grant:  We received a $1,000 grant from the Reinhold Foundation of Clay County in 
April  to use for our Literacy programs.  We were honored at their annual awards breakfast.   



 

Board Meeting Minutes 
September 8, 2021 

 

5 

Kiwanis Club of Palatka Staples Event:  The ELC partnered with the Kiwanis club of Palatka 
to host a children’s event at Staples in Palatka on June 19th.  The ELC provided costumes for the 
event as well as books and activities.  The Kiwanis club distributed a large bag of school supplies 
and books to over 150 kids who attended the event.   
Early Literacy Themed Programs: 
The fourth quarter was filled with putting on our themed literacy programs.  Schools finally 
started welcoming us back after COVID.  We put on three Mother Goose, 4 Space, 1 Dinosaur, 2 
Music/Dance, 2 Ocean and 6 Pete the Cat programs visiting 18 different preschools.  Each 
program consists of a very interactive story time followed by activities.  Each child receives a 
FREE book relating to the theme and each teacher receives a large resource bag of teaching 
materials for their class to further teach that theme.   
Bubbles Program:  In May a new science themed program called “The Science of Bubbles” 
was created by the outreach team to put on in centers during the summer.  Children learned about 
the science behind what makes a bubble.  The team wore lab coats and science goggles and put 
on a program centered around the book “Pop” by James Allan.  The children then got to go 
outside and make their own bubble prints, bubble painted murals and had fun creating bubbles 
with all sorts of different items like strainers, slotted spoons, hula hoops, ropes and many more 
items.  Six Bubbles programs were done over the summer.  Each classroom received an activity 
bag filled with bubbles and activities to do with them.   
Ocean Program:  Our Ocean themed program received a science update over the summer.  Kids 
got to make their own ocean slime, ocean in a bottle and their own classroom jars showing the 
different levels of the ocean and the creatures that live in them.  The outreach team is putting a 
stronger emphasis on STEAM learning.  (Science, Technology, Engineering, Arts and Math)  7 
Ocean programs were done over the summer.   
Book Picks and Videos:  The outreach team continues to put out a monthly Book Picks 
newsletter which goes out to ELC volunteers and now to providers through ECS in the Know.  
Books are highlighted each month along with activities to go with them.  Outreach assistant 
Susan Murphy does a Susan’s Highlights video which is included in newsletter.  The outreach 
team continues to create monthly videos which are shared on the ELC You-tube page then onto 
social media through the ECS and ELCNF Facebook page.   
 
EXECUTIVE ADMINISTRATIVE COMMITTEE 
Draft minutes of the August 4, 2021 Exec Admin Committee Meeting were provided as an 
informational item.  The following are the items that were up for ratification on the Exec Admin 
Committee  
 Consent Agenda 

1. Ratify Approval of May 5, 2021 Exec/Admin Committee Meeting Minutes* 
2. Ratify Approval of Request for Proposal (RFP) #ELCNF 22/23-001 for the 

Delivery of School Readiness and Voluntary Prekindergarten Services 
(including all appendices)* 

3. Ratify Approval by the Executive/Administrative Committee to allow Dawn 
E. Bell, C.E.O. of the ELC of North Florida-OR-the Standing Board Chair, 
Joy Stanton to sign the Moss, Krusick and Associates Engagement Letter for 
External Auditing Services* 

4. Ratify Approval of FirstDay Learning Services Agreement to provide 
coaching for All Kids Childcare*-HANDOUT 

 
2. R. Coleman motioned the approval of the August 4, 2021 Executive 

Administration Committee Meeting Consent Agenda.  C. Whitehurst 



 

Board Meeting Minutes 
September 8, 2021 

 

6 

seconded the motion.  T. Matheny recused herself from voting on Item# 2, 
Memorandum of Voting Conflict on file.  No further discussion. Motion 
passed unanimously.  

 
 
 
NEW/UNFINISHED BUSINESS 
 
 
APPROVAL OF EPISCOPAL CHILDREN’S SERVICES 2021/2022 CONTRACT 
AMENDMENT #0001-21* 
 
Revisions: 
 

A. Items #2, 5 and 15 were to update the School Readiness budgeted amounts, as well as the 
Additional School Readiness-Related Programs budgeted amounts per the July 1, 2021 
and August 3, 2021 Notices of Award. 

B. Item #5, under Additional School Readiness-Related Programs and Funding was to add 
the Coronavirus Response and Relief Supplemental Act (C.R.R.S.A.) program and 
financial information as well as update the Preschool Development Grant (P.D.G.) 
information. 

C. Items #7, 8, 9 and 16 were to update the Voluntary Pre-Kindergarten budgeted amounts 
per the July 1, 2021 Notice of Award. 

D. Items #7, 8, 9, and 16 were to remove language regarding the VPK Outreach, 
Awareness, and Monitoring Initiative (OAMI) Grant, as it is not being awarded this year 
(2021/2022). 

E. Items #1, 3 (1), and 4 (4, 5, 7, 16) were programmatic updates researched during the 
Request for Proposals (RFP) process. 

F. Items #3 (3, 4, 6), 4 (18), 6, 10, 11, 12, 14, and 19 were updates from the Division of 
Early Learning (DEL) 2021/2022 Grant Agreement. 

G. Item #13 was to replace the (parent) sliding fee schedule with a corrected version (2 
small errors were discovered and corrected). 

H. Items #17 and 18 were to update/replace the Prior Approval Attachments with newly 
released Division of Early Learning (DEL) guidance. 
 

 
3. T. Little motioned the approval of Episcopal Children’s Services 2021/2022 

Contract Amendment #0001-21.  V. Delcomyn seconded the motion.  T. 
Matheny recused herself from voting, Memorandum of Voting Conflict on 
file.  No further discussion. Motion passed unanimously.  
 

 
APPROVAL OF  EPISCOPAL CHILDREN’S SERVICES 2021/2022 CONTRACT 
AMENDMENT #0002-21* 
 
 

A.  Items #1 and 2 were to update the Additional School Readiness-Related Programs 
for the Early Learning Florida contract section.  A new contract was issued for this 
year in the amount of $12,000. 



 

Board Meeting Minutes 
September 8, 2021 

 

7 

 
 

 
4. A. Simpson-Gotham motioned approval of Episcopal Children’s Services 

2021/2022 Contract Amendment #0002-21.  R. Williams seconded the 
motion.  T. Matheny recused herself from voting, Memorandum of Voting 
Conflict on file.  No further discussion.  Motion Passed unanimously.   
 
 

RETRO-ACTIVE  APPROVAL (EFFECTIVE 09/01/21) OF ELC OF NORTH FLORIDA 
AND THE UNIVERSITY OF FLORIDA LASTINGER CENTER EARLY LEARNING 
FLORIDA CONTRACT EFFECTIVE 09/01/21 TO 08/31/22* 
 
This Contract for Services is made and entered into by and between The University of Florida 
Board of Trustees (a public body corporate of the State of Florida for the benefit of its Lastinger 
Center for Learning) and the ELC of North Florida.  
 
 
THIS CONTRACT is to support the implementation of Early Learning Florida courses (e.g., 
online only, online with Community of Practice (CoP) Facilitation, and online with Technical 
Assistance (TA) Coaching) that aligns with quality improvement goals/initiatives, for the 
Coalition’s Child Care Providers.  
 
The total contract is not to exceed $12,000. 
 
 

5. V. Delcomyn motioned the retro approval of the ELC of North Florida and the 
University of Florida Lastinger Center Early Learning Florida Contract 
effective 09/01/21 to 08/31/22.  R. Williams seconded the motion.  No further 
discussion.  Motion passed unanimously. 
 

 
RETRO-ACTIVE APPROVAL (EFFECTIVE 09/01/21) OF ELC OF NORTH FLORIDA-
UNIVERSITY OF FLORIDA/LASTINGER CENTER AND EPISCOPAL CHILDREN’S 
SERVICES EARLY LEARNING FLORIDA CONTRACT EFFECTIVE 09/01/21 TO 
08/31/22*  
 

(This Contract and dollar amount will also be added to ECS's 2021/2022 primary contract 
with amendment #2.) 

 
 

THIS CONTRACT is to support the implementation of Early Leaming Florida courses (e.g., 
online only, online with Community of Practice (CoP) Facilitation, and online with Technical 
Assistance (TA)  Coaching) that aligns with quality improvement goals/initiatives, for the 
Coalition's Child Care Providers. 

 
The total contract is not to exceed $12,000. 
 



 

Board Meeting Minutes 
September 8, 2021 

 

8 

6.  R. Williams motioned the retro-active approval of the ELC of North Florida-
University of Florida/Lastinger Center and Episcopal Children’s Services 
Early Learning Florida Contract effective 09/01/21 to 08/31/22.  V. 
Delcomyn seconded the motion.  T. Matheny recused herself from voting and 
signed the Memorandum of Voting Conflict that is on file.  No further 
discussion.  Motion passed unanimously. 

 
 
APPROVAL OF THE MEMBER APPOINTED BY THE EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR OF 
NEFEC FOR THE MANDATED POSITION OF PROGRAMS FOR CHILDREN WITH 
DISABILITIES UNDER THE FEDERAL INDIVIDUALS WITH DISABILITIES ACT:  
MARSHA PEACOCK* 
 
Marsha Peacock is a child find specialist with FDLRS and primarily serves St. Johns County but 
has familiarity with Putnam, Bradford, Union, and Bradford Counties.  Before becoming a child 
find specialist, Marsha was a staffing specialist in Putnam County.  She brings a wealth of 
knowledge in early childhood and students with disabilities.  In addition, she has 20 years of 
experience in working with school districts in northeast Florida to implement programs for all 
students.  
 
Marsha’s ELCNF term would extend from September 2021– September 2025. 
 
 
 7.  A. Simpson-Gotham motioned the approval of mandated  Board Member  
                                   Marsha Peacock to the Board of Directors.  C. Whitehurst seconded the  
                                   motion.  No further discussion.  Motion passed unanimously.  
 
 
APPROVAL OF ELCNF 2020-2021 ANNUAL REPORT*- HANDOUT 
 
The Board was provided a copy of the ELCNF 2020-21 Annual Report that is a handout and on 
our official website.   
 
 
 8.  V. Delcomyn motioned to approve the ELCNF 2020-21 Annual Report. 
                                   M. Allen seconded the motion.  No further discussion.  Motion passed  
                                   unanimously. 
 
 
BOARD MEMBERSHIP REVIEW 
 
R. Cody reviewed upcoming board term dates and overall membership statuses.  No discussion 
or further comments. 
 
ELECTION OF OFFICERS* 
 
By unanimous vote via emailed ballots, the following board members were nominated and 
elected to serve as the Coalition Officers for the 2021-22 fiscal year: 
 



 

Board Meeting Minutes 
September 8, 2021 

 

9 

• Interim Chair: Joy Stanton 
• Vice Chair: Aubrie Simpson-Gotham 
• Treasurer: Vina Delcomyn 
• Secretary:  Renee Williams 

 
 
  9.   C. Whitehurst motioned to approve the Election of Officers.  P. Tauch  
        seconded the motion.  No Discussion.  Motion passed unanimously.  
 
 
STANDING COMMITTEE DISCUSSION AND SIGN-UP. 
 
An email was sent to all board members prior to the meeting asking for volunteers to serve on 
the Executive Admin Committee.  The committee requires the four elected officers along with an 
additional four Board Members.      
 
Based on the email responses from Board Members, the following is the new Executive 
Administration Committee:  J. Stanton, A. Simpson-Gotham, V. Delcomyn, R. Williams, J. 
Bishop, T. Little, T. Matheny and Michael Siragusa. 
 
 
CODE OF ETHICS-HANDOUT  
 
The Coalition policy OP202 Code of Ethics was provided in the Board Packet. Board Members 
and staff did not have any questions regarding the policy. All board members and staff in 
attendance signed the acknowledgement of compliance and turned them in.  Any board member 
and/or staff who were not in attendance of today’s meeting will have their Code of Ethics policy 
sent to them for review and signature.  
 
 
CONFLICT OF INTEREST QUESTIONNAIRE-HANDOUT 
 
The Coalition policy OP203 Conflict of Interest was provided in the Board Packet. Board 
Members and staff did not have any questions regarding the policy. All board and staff in 
attendance completed and signed the questionnaire portion of the policy and turned them in. Any 
board member and/or staff who were not in attendance of today’s meeting will have their 
Conflict of Interest policy sent to them for review and signature. 
 
 
BOARD ABSENTEEISM LOG- INFORMATIONAL 
 
No Comments.   
 
 
BOARD COMMENTS 
 
No Comments. 
 
 



 

Board Meeting Minutes 
September 8, 2021 

 

10 

NEXT MEETINGS 
The next scheduled meetings are as follows: 
 

• Wednesday, November 3, 2021 , 10:30 a.m. – Exec/Admin Committee Conference Call 
Meeting 

• Wednesday, December 1, 2021, 2:00 p.m. –Board Meeting World Golf Village Caddy 
Shack Restaurant. 

 
 
ADJOURNMENT* 
 

10.  R. Williams motioned for adjournment at 11:55a.m.  T. Little 
                seconded the motion.  No discussion.  Motion passed unanimously. 

 
 
Minutes Submitted By:  Rhonda Cody, Office Manager 



Early Learning Coalition of North Florida, Inc. 
Board Meeting  

December 1, 2021 
 

 

V. Staff and Committee Reports 

 

A. CEO Report-VERBAL 
 



Early Learning Coalition of North Florida, Inc. 
Board Meeting  

December 1, 2021 
 

 

V. Staff and Committee Reports 

 

B. Finance Manager’s Report 
 









Early Learning Coalition of North Florida, Inc. 
Board Meeting  

December 1, 2021 
 

 

V. Staff and Committee Reports 

 

C. 1st Quarter Program Update 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



  
 

 

 

                                A United Way Agency Funded by the State of Florida                      

2450 Old Moultrie Road, Suite 103 
St. Augustine, FL  32086 

904-342-2267 
www.elcnorthflorida.org 

 

MEMORANDUM 
To:  All Board Members 
From:  Tajaro Dixon, Grants and Operations Manager 
Date:  October 5, 2021 
Subject:  2021/2022 First Quarter Program Update and Quality Assurance Activities 

Coalition Activities:   

• The Coalition and the Division of Early Learning (DEL) agreed on a Preventative Corrective Action Plan (PCAP) 
July 28, 2021 for the annual OEL Fiscal Monitoring that occurred early December 2020.  The final report only 
had two minor compliance issues.  As all items in the PCAP have been completed, the Coalition received the 
official close-out letter October 14, 2021.   

• The Coalition began the 21/22 processing of the Request for Proposals (RFP) for Primary Service Provider.  The 
RFP committee had its Initial meeting (which included public opening of the bids September 21, 2021.  And the 
Final RFP meeting is scheduled for November 2, 2021 (which includes the tallying of scores).  Today’s packet 
includes a memo of recommendation from the RFP Committee.  

• The Coalition received additional notices of awards and the Episcopal Children’s Services (ECS) Contract 
Amendment #3 is in today’s packet. 

• The Coalition staff completed the 2021/2022 Internal Controls Questionnaire (ICQ).  In addition, ECS completes 
this same ICQ each year and their responses are reviewed by Coalition staff for any needed follow-up and/or 
approval. 

• The Coalition staff met the October 1 Division of Early Learning (DEL) deadline for all the annual items such as 
the annual report, inventory, Sub-recipient monitoring plan, Fiscal prior year Revenue and Expense report and 
current year Budget. 

• In July, all Coalition staff completed their annual review of Anti-Fraud plan, policies and practices. 
• Annual archiving processes have begun. 
• Annual policies review and revisions have begun. 

  
Episcopal Children’s Services (ECS) On-Site Monitoring:  
 
The 2020/2021 Fourth Quarter Monitoring was performed (remotely) August 16-27, 2021.  This monitoring included 
Data and Data Security Systems Updates, and School Readiness Plan Compliance for section II. G. Program 
Assessment, Fiscal Non-direct Costs review for 3rd and 4th quarters, and the Fiscal Year-end Overview.  From this 
review, there were no compliance issues.  A great review for ECS!  
 
The 2021/2022 First Quarter Monitoring is scheduled for November 5 - 19, 2021.  This monitoring will include all DEL 
required “eligibility” criteria for School Readiness and VPK.  One additional area of review will be the Annual Data 
and Data Security Systems Review. 
 
ALL full reports are available upon request. 



Early Learning Coalition of North Florida, Inc. 
Board Meeting  

December 1, 2021 
 

 

V. Staff and Committee Reports 

 

D. 1st Quarter Early Literacy Report 
 



 Early Literacy Outreach Report First Quarter 2021-2022 

Presented by Joan Whitson 

Highlights:   

Kiwanis Kids Fest- June 19th at Staples in Palatka.  The ELC provided character costumes, 
activities and free books as a partnership with the Kiwanis club of Palatka who hosted a 
community kids festival. 

Civic Club Partnerships:  During July and August I was the guest speaker for both the Palatka 
Pilot Club and Woman’s club.  Both clubs partner with the ELC by adopting a child care center 
that their members read at each week throughout the year.  They also provide regular 
volunteers who help with our themed literacy programs and these clubs help spread the work 
we do in the community.   

Literacy Programs: 

Ocean Program:  Our Ocean themed program received a science update over the summer. Kids 
got to make their own ocean slime, ocean in a bottle and their own classroom jars showing the 
different levels of the ocean and the creatures that live in them.  The outreach team is putting a 
stronger emphasis on STEA M learning.  (Science, Technology, Engineering, Arts and Math)  7 
Ocean programs were done over the summer.   

Volunteer Programs:  During August and September a lot of time was focused on recruiting and 
training new reading volunteers.  Due to COVID we lost quite a few volunteers so we needed to 
replenish our forces.  We updated our training manuals to give everything a fresh look.  Four 
training sessions were held in Clay and St. Johns County and 10 new volunteers joined the 
team.  These volunteers have been assigned a weekly reading assignment in a local preschool.  
Many of these volunteers will also help put on our themed literacy programs as well.  We 
started back with in person quarterly volunteer meetings.  The energy was very high as 
everyone is excited to be back in the schools again doing what they love…working with kids.   

Science Programs:  Two new science themed programs have been created and launched this 
quarter.  One teaches kids about the concepts of air and wind and the other focuses on the five 
senses.  Both programs have a strong emphasis on STEAM learning as mentioned above.  Kids 
will learn how to do their own wind experiments and learn scientific processes like making 
predictions and conclusions, They will make their own tornado in a bottle while wearing lab 
coats and safety goggles.  They will have fun discovering so many amazing facts about their five 
senses and even amazing facts about animals with super senses.  Twenty of these programs 
have already been scheduled for this coming year.  Each child will receive a free book relating to 
the theme to take home and as with all of our programs the classroom receives a very nice 
resource bag of teaching materials related to the theme presented.   



Early Learning Coalition of North Florida, Inc. 
Board Meeting  

December 1, 2021 
 

 

V. Staff and Committee Reports 

 

E. Executive Administrative Committee,  

November 3, 2021-Cancelled 
 



Early Learning Coalition of North Florida, Inc. 
 Annual Board Meeting 

December 1, 2021 

 

VI.  New/Unfinished Business  

 

A.  Summary of D. Bell Annual Evaluation- 
HANDOUT 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  



DAWN’S 2020 ANNUAL EVALUATION SUMMARY 

• The evaluation was conducted on September  8, 2021 with Joy Stanton,
Vina Delcomyn, Aubrie Simpson-Gotham, Renee Williams, and Theresa
Little serving as evaluators.

• Of the total 19 evaluations mailed/handed to the board members, 14
members completed the evaluation and five board members did not return
the evaluation.

• Out of a 1 to 5 rating scale, 1 = Unsatisfactory and 5 = Outstanding; Dawn’s
Overall Rating Score was 4.475 which earned a final rating of
“Outstanding”.

• Dawn’s next evaluation period ends September 1, 2022.

• If any Board Member would like to see a copy of the final compiled
evaluation results, please contact Marie Hanson.



Early Learning Coalition of North Florida, Inc. 
 Annual Board Meeting 

December 1, 2021 

VI. New/Unfinished Business

B.  Approval of Episcopal Children’s Services 
2021/2022 Contract Amendment #0003-21* 

*ACTION ITEM



Early Learning Coalition of North Florida, Inc. 

ACTION ITEM SUMMARY 

DESCRIPTION Episcopal Children’s Services 2021/2022 Contract Amendment #0003-21: 
Reason for 
Recommended 
Action 

Revisions: 

A. Item #2 was to update changes made in the “Service Provider Snapshot 
Report” for contract year 2021/2022. 

B. Items #1, 3, and 4 were to update contract narratives and Attachment 9 for 
the School Readiness Budget and Additional School Readiness-Related 
Programs due to four new Notices of Awards that were issued: 
• September 17, 2021 - Preschool Development Grant (PDG)
• September 30, 2021 - School Readiness Wait List
• October 22, 2021 - School Readiness Provider rate increases
• October 29, 2021 - Coronavirus Response and Relief Supplemental Act

(CRRSA) grant award

If this is not done, the following would occur: 

A. ECS’s contract would not be up-to-date for the “Service Provider Snapshot 
Report” criteria for this contract year. 

B. ECS’s contract narratives and Attachment 9 would not have the correct 
budgeted amounts for the School Readiness programs. 

How the Action 
will be 
accomplished 

Approval of ECS 2021/2022 amendment #0003-21, and party signatures. 



 
 
 
 

1 
 
 
 

Amendment 0003-21 Primary Services Contract 
Episcopal Children’s Services 

 
 
THIS AMENDMENT, entered into between the Early Learning Coalition of North Florida, Inc. hereinafter referred 
to as the Coalition, and Episcopal Children’s Services, hereinafter referred to as the Contractor, amends the 2021-22 
primary services contract as follows: 
 

 
Item # Page # Headings and Text 

1 8-9 C.  RESOURCE MANAGEMENT (SR) 

  Pursuant to the Request for Proposal and the Contractor’s signed response, 
and the fact that this contract is upon a cost-reimbursement method 
of payment, the CONTRACTOR shall be fiscally responsible pursuant to 
the following: 

 
1. BUDGET SURPLUS/DEFICIT:  The Contractor shall serve children 

with the slot dollars provided under this contract, unless the available 
School Readiness grant funding would not financially provide for all 
slots.  Regardless of the total amount of funding for slots, the 
Contractor will ensure no less than 78% of School Readiness grant 
funds will be used for slot funding.  The 78% calculation includes direct 
services, applicable Gold Seal OCA expenditures, and performance-
based payment differentials to providers up to the provider’s private 
pay rate, as defined in the most recent version of the OEL Standard 
Codes document, and local match.  The slot funding should not be 
expended over the contracted budget amount. The Contractor further 
agrees reimbursements under this contract shall be up to, and are 
capped at the total budgeted amount of funding for direct child care 
slot funding which is $14,716,096 $17,311,375, unless written 
arrangements are made with the Coalition to move additional funds 
into the slot budget. This funding is inclusive of the annual OEL School 
Readiness Grant Award including local match funds (when applicable), 
and is based on availability of funds.  If county allocations are 
reduced at the state level, contracts will be amended 
accordingly. Gold Seal payments are subject to adjustments 
due to budget constraints.  Additionally, the Contractor shall be 
responsible for actively soliciting and obtaining local match funds for 
children in School Readiness Programs to be used only for slots.   

 
2 11 E. REPORTS (SR) 
   

4. A monthly primary School Readiness services contractor management 
report, currently titled “Service Provider Snapshot Report”, to be 
delivered by the 21st of the month following services, in a format as 
directed by the Coalition.  This report shall include the following details.    

For School Readiness:  
• Children on wait list by age group for current month, previous 

month and year-to-date average  



2 

• SR Provider Trainings held (including CDA Competencies/
Standards)

• SR Provider Trainings offered
• SR Technical Assistance Visits
• CCR&R consumer complaints (# and details of each of

complaints)
• Children screened (Enrollment, Birthday Redetermination/

Annual, Social/Emotional, and Referrals for Intervention) -
percentages for monthly and year-to-date, total number
screened

• For each both types of screenings: number recommended for
further referrals, actual children referred with parental consent
for current month and year-to-date

• Child Assessment Data
• SR Provider CLASS Assessments for All Classrooms

(Prekindergarten, Toddler, and Infant)
• SR Provider Monitoring Tier 1 and Tier 2

3 20-21 VII. Method of Payment (SR)

This is a cost-reimbursement contract.  The Coalition shall pay the contractor for 
the delivery of service provided in accordance with the terms of this contract for a 
total dollar amount up to and not to exceed $17,545,014  $20,766,639.  
This funding is inclusive of the annual OEL School Readiness Grant Award 
which does not include local match funds, and is based on availability of 
funds. If county allocations are reduced at the state level, contracts will 
be amended accordingly. Up to and no more than $381,977  $420,000 
may be allocated to adminsitrative expenditures.  Local match will be 
reimbursed based on funding from match raised from local grants up to the 
amount earned or the amount of the local grants, whichever is less. 

Additional School Readiness-Related Programs and Funding: 

The following programs’ funding is exclusive of the annual OEL School 
Readiness Grant Award funding.  Contractor reimbursements will be 
based on all provisions as set forth in the individual contracts and/or OEL 
Grant Agreements. 

A. C.A.R.E.S. Funding 
The Coronavirus Aid, Relief, and Economic Security (CARES) Act was 
passed by Congress and signed into law March 27th, 2020.  For Florida’s 
Early Learning Coalitions, this funding is for enrollments of children of first 
responders and health care workers, including provider bonuses (OEL 
Memorandum 2020-012), and the “Rising Kindergarten Summer 
Program”.  Per Notice of Award no more than 5% of total CARES 
expenditures shall be expended for administrative activities, for a total 
dollar amount to be determined once grant award received for 
2021/2022. 



3 

B.   Preschool Development Grant Services (P.D.G.) 
This is a federal grant designed to fund states to conduct a 
comprehensive statewide birth through five needs assessment followed 
by in-depth strategic planning to include mental health supports, while 
enhancing parent choice and expanding the current mixed delivery 
system consisting of a wide range of provider types and settings. 

To the extent possible, Contractor will complete all targets and goals of 
the plan.  Contractor may not exceed the following total dollar amount 
to be determined once grant award received for 2021/2022 of 
$179,161 (including up to 5% for General Administration). 

C. (C.R.R.S.A.) 
The Coronavirus Response and Relief Supplemental Act (CRRSA) 
is additional funding to support private early learning/child care providers 
and contracted school district providers that were classified as 
operational/open on April 1, 2021 and are providing on-site early 
learning/child care services on the date of application, to assist them in 
remaining open during the COVID-19 crisis.  Per Notice of Award no more 
than 5% of total expenditures shall be expended for administrative 
activities, for a total dollar amount to be determined once grant award 
received for 2021/2022 of $10,805,567. 

D. Early Learning Florida 
The Coalition shall pay the contractor for the delivery of service provided 
in accordance with the terms and conditions of OEL’s “Early Learning 
Florida Contracts” [in cooperation with The University of Florida 
Board of Trustees, a public body corporate of the State of Florida for the 
benefit of its Lastinger Center for Learning (“University”)] with the 
Coalition:  

To support the implementation of Early Learning Florida       
professional development courses for the Coalition’s Child Care 
Providers (that support local quality improvement goals) 
(Effective dates 09/01/21 – 08/31/22) for a total dollar amount up to 
and not to exceed $12,000. 

4 75-76 Attachment 9 School Readiness Budget 

(Attached, pages 4-7.  Pages 6-7 replace the original contract attachment and 
is incorporated as part of this amendment.) 

END OF AMENDMENTS 



4 

       ATTACHMENT 9 
SCHOOL READINESS BUDGET (deletions) 

State of Florida Notice of Award No. EL432 
DUNS # 130220796 

CFDA# / Name Federal Award # 
93.558 / TANF and MOE 2101FLTANF (26.54%) 

93.575 / CCDF Discretionary G2101FLCCDD (47.10%) 
93.596 / CCDF Mandatory  G2101FLCCDF (6.02%) 

93.596 / CCDF Matching and MOE G2101FLCCDM (20.26%) 

93.667 / SSBG G2101FLS0SR (0.07%) 

Grand Total 100% 

Description OCA 
 ECS  Coalition Total ECS 

and ELC  Dollar  Dollar 

 Amounts Amounts

General Administration 97BBA, 97FIR, 
97LCA $381,977 $500,000 $881,977 

Non-direct Services 97BBD $305,682 $305,682 
Systems 97SYS 

Eligibility Determination 97BDE $675,488 $675,488 

Quality 

97QOO, 
97QHS, 97QCS, 
97QST, 97QCR, 
97QAS, 97QTA, 
97QPD, 97QPT  

$543,760 $511,090 $1,054,850 

Infant & Toddler Services 97INT, 97ICR, 
97IAS, 97ICS $455,873 $25,000 $480,873 

Inclusion 97QIN $103,289 $103,289 
Resource & Referral 97Q14 $362,849 $362,849 
Total Non-Slots  (Non-Direct) $2,828,918 $1,036,090 $3,865,008 

Gold Seal Payments 97GSD $600,000 $600,000 

Performance Funding QPIIPD,QPICA, 
QPIPQ, QPICQ $629,279 $629,279 

SR Matching Funding 176,305 176,305 
Slots $13,310,512 $13,310,512 

Total Slots  (Direct Services) $14,716,096 $14,716,096 

Grand Totals $17,545,014 $1,036,090 $18,581,104 

NOA Total 



5 

Additional School Readiness-Related Programs and Funding 
(Exclusive of OEL School Readiness Grant Award Funding) 

A.  C.A.R.E.S. (Coronavirus Aid, Relief, and Economic Security Act) 
Funding (Grant No.) 
CFDA# 93.575/Child Care Development Fund (CCDF) 

Amount to be determined once 
grant award received for 

2021/2022 

B.  Preschool Development Grant (PDG) (Grant No.) 

CFDA# 93.434/ESSA Florida Preschool Development Grants Birth 
Through Five, Federal Award Nos. 

Amount to be determined once 
grant award received for 

2021/2022 

C. C.R.R.S.A.  (Coronavirus Response and Relief Supplemental Act) 
Funding (EL431) 

CFDA# 93.575/Child Care Development Fund (CCDF) 

Federal Award No. 2101FLCCC5 – 100% funding 

Phase V Provider Grants 

(including up to 5% for General Administration) 

Amount to be determined once 
grant award received for 

2021/2022 

D. Early Learning Florida (through the University of Florida Lastinger 
Center) 

Effective dates 09/01/21 – 08/31/22 
Total (total dollar amount up to and not to exceed) $12,000 



6 

ATTACHMENT 9 
SCHOOL READINESS BUDGET (additions) 

State of Florida Notice of Award No. EL432 
DUNS # 130220796 

CFDA# / Name Federal Award # 
93.558 / TANF and MOE 2101FLTANF (22.30%) 

93.575 / CCDF Discretionary G2101FLCCDD (55.56%) 
93.596 / CCDF Mandatory  G2101FLCCDF (5.06%) 

93.596 / CCDF Matching and MOE G2101FLCCDM (17.01%) 

93.667 / SSBG G2101FLS0SR (0.06%) 

Grand Total 100% 

Description OCA 
 ECS  Coalition Total ECS 

and ELC  Dollar  Dollar 

 Amounts Amounts

General Administration 97BBA, 97FIR, 
97LCA $420,000 $560,403 $980,403 

Non-direct Services 97BBD $318,093 $318,093 
Systems 97SYS 

Eligibility Determination 97BDE $703,518 $703,518 

Quality 

97QOO, 
97QHS, 97QCS, 
97QST, 97QCR, 
97QAS, 97QTA, 
97QPD, 97QPT  

$1,091,642 $561,090 $1,652,732 

Infant & Toddler Services 97INT, 97ICR, 
97IAS, 97ICS $455,873 $25,000 $480,873 

Inclusion 97QIN $103,289 $103,289 
Resource & Referral 97Q14 $362,849 $362,849 
Total Non-Slots  (Non-Direct) $3,455,264 $1,146,493 $4,601,757 

Gold Seal Payments 97GSD $600,000 $600,000 

Performance Funding QPIIPD,QPICA, 
QPIPQ, QPICQ $629,279 $629,279 

SR Matching Funding 176,305 176,305 
Slots $15,905,791 $15,905,791 

Total Slots  (Direct Services) $17,311,375 $17,311,375 

Grand Totals $20,766,639 $1,146,493 $21,913,132 

NOA Total 



7 

Additional School Readiness-Related Programs and Funding 
(Exclusive of OEL School Readiness Grant Award Funding) 

A.  C.A.R.E.S. (Coronavirus Aid, Relief, and Economic Security Act) 
Funding (Grant No.) 
CFDA# 93.575/Child Care Development Fund (CCDF) 

Amount to be determined once 
grant award received for 

2021/2022 

B.  Preschool Development Grant (PDG) (EL432) 

CFDA# 93.434/ESSA Florida Preschool Development Grants Birth 
Through Five, Federal Award Nos. 
Federal Award No. 90TP0068-02-01 – 100% funding 

[amount includes up to 5% ($8,958) for General Administration] 

Total $179,161 

C. C.R.R.S.A.  (Coronavirus Response and Relief Supplemental Act) 
Funding (EL432) 

CFDA# 93.575/Child Care Development Fund (CCDF) 

Federal Award No. 2101FLCCC5 – 100% funding 
[amounts include up to 5% ($540,278) for General Administration] 

Phase VI Provider Grants 

CRRSA VPK Closure Days 
CRRSA ELC Program Outreach 

CRRSA ELC Workforce Incentives 

Total 

 $ 9,442,660 
58,853 

160,965 
1,143,089 

$ 10,805,567 

D. Early Learning Florida (through the University of Florida Lastinger 
Center) 
Effective dates 09/01/21 – 08/31/22 
Total (total dollar amount up to and not to exceed) $12,000 



 
 
 
 

8 
 
 
 

THIS AMENDMENT shall begin on December 1, 2021, or the date, on which the amendment has been signed by both 
parties, whichever is later. 

All provisions in the contract and any attachments thereto in conflict with this amendment shall be and are hereby changed to 
conform to this amendment. 

All provisions not in conflict with this amendment are still in effect and are to be performed at the level specified in the 
contract. 

This amendment is hereby made a part of the contract. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have caused this 8 page amendment to be executed by their officials thereunto 
duly authorized. 

 

                                                                     
EARLY LEARNING COALITION OF   EPISCOPAL CHILDREN’S SERVICES, 
NORTH FLORIDA     INC.  
 
 
 
NAME        NAME        
 
TITLE        TITLE        
 
SIGNED       SIGNED       
 
DATE        DATE        

 
 



Early Learning Coalition of North Florida, Inc. 
 Annual Board Meeting 

December 1, 2021 

VI. New/Unfinished Business

C.  Approval of School Readiness Plan 2019/2021  
#31* 

*ACTION ITEM



Early Learning Coalition of North Florida 

ACTION ITEM SUMMARY 

DESCRIPTION Approval of 2019-21 School Readiness Plan Amendment #31 
Reason for 
Recommended 
Action 

The following School Readiness Plan Attachments were revised: 

Revisions/Updates Required: 
• Attach I G ECS SRAD18 Tangible Personal Property 071721
• Attach I G ELC F402 Tangible Personal Property 120121

  All revisions made per OEL Fiscal Guidance 240.02 “Tangible Personal 
Property”, revised 07/01/21: 
• revised inventory threshold from $1,000 to $5,000
• added requirements for inventorying ‘attractive items’
• other various requirements added from FG 240.02

• Attach I D Bylaws ELCNF BA 120121
• corrections needed upon review

• Attach II I ELC Provider Payment Rates Schedule Form eff 010122
• provider rate increases per notice of award 10/29/21 (financial

workbooks with fiscal impact summaries, public input, and executive
summary included)

If this is not done, the following would occur: 

• The Coalition’s School Readiness Plan attachments/policies regarding
inventory would not be properly updated/in compliance with DEL.

• The Coalition’s Bylaws would not have needed corrections.
• Child Care Providers would not have payment rate increases effective January

1, 2022.

How the Action 
will be 
accomplished 

Board Approval, then DEL Approval. 



Plan I G Tangible Personal Property 
ECS Administration 
Created on: 022916 

Updated July 17, 2021 

Episcopal Children’s Services 

Attachment I.G. Tangible Personal Property – State Funded Contracts 

This policy applies to all tangible personal property purchased for its contracts as a subrecipient of an Early Learning 
Coalition.  Federal and State laws, regulations, and rules require that Early Learning Coalitions (ELCs) and other direct 
subrecipients (i.e., other contracted entities) of DEL institute proper controls relative to the management and disposition of 
equipment purchased with federal and state funds.  Specific requirements and procedures for acquiring, safeguarding, 
capitalizing, tagging, transferring, disposing and inventory of equipment are governed by the following authoritative bodies 
and documents.  There are four major documents which specify the requirements for property management. These are:  

 45 CFR Part 75 - Code of Federal Regulations 
 Section 1002.84(11), Florida Statutes – Complying with Tangible Personal Property 

Requirements  
 Chapter 274, Florida Statutes – Tangible Personal Property Owned by Local Governments 
 Rule 69I-73, Florida Administrative Code – Tangible Personal Property Owned by Local 

Governments 

• 2 CFR § 200,  Office of Management and Budget (OMB)  Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost
Principles and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards 

• 45 CFR § 75  Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles and Audit Requirements for Health and
Human Services (HHS) Awards

• 45 CFR 98 Subpart F – Use of Child Care and Development Funds 
• Section 1002.84(11), Florida Statutes (F.S.) –   Complying with Tangible Personal Property Requirements
• Chapter 273, F.S. – Tangible Personal Property Owned by Local Governments
• Rule 69I-72, Florida Administrative Code (F.A.C.) –   State-owned Tangible Property 
• Florida Department of Education (FDOE),  Green Book, 2015 

This revised fiscal guidance provides up-to-date information and specific requirements consistent with applicable federal 
regulations, Florida Statutes (F.S), and state rules relative to the management, disposition, and utilization of tangible personal 
property purchased with state and federal funds. Tangible personal properties purchased solely with state funds (e.g., VPK 
funds) must apply all applicable requirements described under Chapter 274, F.S., and Rule 69I-73, F.A.C. Tangible personal 
properties purchased solely with federal funds (e.g., SR funds) must apply all applicable requirements provided under 45 
CFR part 75, Chapter 274, F.S., and Rule 69I-73, F.A.C. When entities combine funding for the purchase of tangible property, 
then the more restrictive requirements apply. 

Reference to any laws, rules and regulations in this guidance document includes revisions to those laws and regulations 
made after the effective date of this guidance document. 

If there is any conflict between the provisions set forth in these documents, resolution will occur in the following order or 
priority. If a lower priority law contains a stricter requirement, the stricter requirement prevails unless other written 
instructions are provided by DEL. 
1.Federal law
2.State law
3.Applicable grant agreement or contract

https://www.bing.com/search?q=law.cornell.edu%2Fcfr%2Ftext%2F2%2Fpart-200&form=PRDLR1&pc=DCTE&ocid=DELLDHP17&mkt=en-us&httpsmsn=1&msnews=1&rec_search=1&refig=4e05d54d5d3c41baaadc56150d3cf42b&sp=-1&pq=law.cornell.edu%2Fcfr%2Ftext%2F2%2Fpart-200&sc=0-35&qs=n&sk=&cvid=4e05d54d5d3c41baaadc56150d3cf42b
https://www.bing.com/search?q=45+cfr+75&form=PRDLR1&pc=DCTE&ocid=DELLDHP17&mkt=en-us&httpsmsn=1&msnews=1&rec_search=1&refig=eb6e329990514356931ce32bcc2e364b&sp=2&qs=AS&pq=45+cfr+75&sk=PRES1AS1&sc=8-9&cvid=eb6e329990514356931ce32bcc2e364b
https://www.bing.com/search?q=45+CFR+98+Subpart+F&form=PRDLR1&pc=DCTE&ocid=DELLDHP17&mkt=en-us&httpsmsn=1&msnews=1&rec_search=1&refig=c33f7f169a7949b18eaa6a448551a68d&sp=-1&pq=45+cfr+98+subpart+f&sc=1-19&qs=n&sk=&cvid=c33f7f169a7949b18eaa6a448551a68d
https://www.bing.com/search?q=Chapter+273%2C+F.S.&form=PRDLR1&pc=DCTE&ocid=DELLDHP17&mkt=en-us&httpsmsn=1&msnews=1&rec_search=1&refig=4015c3454af04c3d91839c22ebf3bdbf&sp=-1&pq=chapter+273%2C+f.s.&sc=1-17&qs=n&sk=&cvid=4015c3454af04c3d91839c22ebf3bdbf
https://www.flrules.org/gateway/ruleNo.asp?id=69I-72.003


Plan I G Tangible Personal Property 
ECS Administration 
Created on: 022916 

Updated July 17, 2021 

OPERATIONAL DEFINITIONS  

Acquisition Cost - The net unit price of a property item, including the cost of modifications, attachments, accessories or 
auxiliary apparatus necessary to make the item usable for the purpose for which it was acquired. [For more details see 2 
CFR § 200.2, Acquisition cost] 

Capital Assets - Tangible or intangible assets used in operations having a useful life of more than one year which are 
capitalized for financial reporting purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP). Capital 
assets include:  

a. Land, buildings (facilities), equipment, and intellectual property (including software) whether acquired by 
purchase, construction, manufacture, lease-purchase, exchange, or through capital leases; and 

b. Additions, improvements, modifications, replacement, rearrangements, reinstallations, renovations or alterations to 
capital assets which materially increase their value or useful life (not ordinary repairs and maintenance). [2 CFR § 
200.12, Capital assets] 

Attractive Items -: These items are considered assets of low unit cost. ECS are required to maintain adequate property 
records for property items as prescribed under Chapter 274, F.S. and Rule 69I-73, F.A.C.  ECS also elects to accounts for 
“attractive” items (those not meeting the statutory criteria) as well, such as iPads, digital cameras, and so forth with a 
purchase price of over $400 and less than $15,000. These items are accounted for within our MIP accounting package.  
The item and its location are listed and these items will be inventoried every 2 years.  It should be noted that this practice 
began after DEL’s Program Guidance 240.02 Tangible Personal Property was issued so older items will not be listed in this 
system. 

Conditional Title - The concept of “conditional title” simply means equipment ownership vests in the non-federal entity at 
the time of acquisition and is contingent on meeting the requirements for use, management, and disposition of the 
equipment as required in 2 CFR § 200.313.  

Controls and Safeguards - A control system to ensure adequate safeguards to prevent loss, damage, or theft of the 
equipment 

Custodian -: The person or agency entitled to lawful custody of tangible personal property. 

Custodian Delegate -: The person acting under the supervision of the custodian to whom the custodian has delegated the 
custody of property, and from whom the custodian receives custody receipts.     

Disposition -: The final status of tangible personal property (e.g., sale, scrap, donation, transfer, etc.) when the coalition or 
other contracted an entity from ECS removes it from the inventory.  

Early Learning Coalition (ELC): Created under Section 1002.83, F.S., Early Learning Coalitions are not-for-profit 
organizations tasked with implementing  early learning programs at the local level including, but not limited to: the School 
Readiness Program, Child Care Resources and Referral Program (CCR&R), Child Care Executive Partnership (CCEP) 
Program, and the Voluntary Prekindergarten Education Program. 

Equipment: For record keeping and accountability purposes, equipment is tangible, non-expendable, personal property 
having a useful life of more than one year and an acquisition cost of $5,000.00 or more per unit, although a lower dollar 
amount can be established by the coalition/other contracted entity.  ECS has established a threshold of $5,000. 

Formatted: Font: 11 pt, Bold

Formatted: Font: 11 pt

Formatted: Font: 11 pt, Bold

Formatted: Font: 11 pt

Formatted: Numbered + Level: 1 + Numbering Style: a, b,
c, … + Start at: 1 + Alignment: Left + Aligned at:  0.25" +
Indent at:  0.5"

Formatted: Font: 11 pt, Not Bold, No underline

Formatted: Default, Space After:  0 pt, Line spacing:  single

Formatted: Font: 11 pt, Not Strikethrough

Formatted: Font: 11 pt, Not Strikethrough

Formatted: Font: 11 pt, Highlight

Formatted: Font: 11 pt, Bold

Formatted: Font: 11 pt, Bold

Formatted: Font: 11 pt

Formatted: Default, Space After:  0 pt, Line spacing:  single

Formatted: Font: 11 pt

http://1,000.00
http://1,000.00


Plan I G Tangible Personal Property 
ECS Administration 
Created on: 022916 

Updated July 17, 2021 

The Office Division of Early Learning (DEL): The entity A department within the Department of Education that is 
responsible for federal and/or state grant program funds received from the U.S. Department of Health and Human Services 
and appropriated by the State Legislature for the administration of the state’s early childhood development and education 
programs (i.e., School Readiness Program and the Voluntary Prekindergarten Education Program).  

General Purpose Equipment - Equipment which is not limited to research, medical, scientific or other technical activities. 
Examples include office equipment and furnishings, modular offices, telephone networks, information technology equipment 
and systems, air conditioning equipment, reproduction and printing equipment and motor vehicles. [2 CFR § 200.48, General 
purpose equipment]  

Grant Purchased Property -: An item defined as “equipment” stipulated in 45 C.F.R. part 75.32, defined as “property” in 
Chapter 274, F.S., and Rule 69I-73, F.A.C., which ECS purchased using state or federal funds provided by the Office of 
Early LearningDivision of Early Learning.  

Identification Number - A unique number assigned and affixed to each item of property to identify it as property held by 
the custodian and for the purpose of differentiating one item of property from another (Chapter 69I-72.001, F.A.C.). 

Intangible Property - Property having no physical existence, such as trademarks, copyrights, patents and patent 
applications and property, such as loans, notes, and other debt instruments, lease agreements, stock and other instruments 
of property ownership (whether the property is tangible or intangible). [2 CFR § 200.59, Intangible property] 

Inventory Management -: Includes all functions related to the recording, tracking, and safeguarding of equipment. This 
would include the monitoring of equipment moved to and from various locations.  

Material Service Organizations -: Subrecipients or other entities contracted to administer or manage the grant program(s). 
ELCs may contract with other entities to perform and/or manage portions of the services for the SR and/or the VPK programs 
(i.e., as a primary service provider or a central agency). This type of organization may have a subrecipient contract 
relationship with the ELC and is often called a “material service organization.”    

Pass-through Entity -: A pass-through entity is a non-federal entity that provides a federal award to other entities to carry 
out a federal program. Pass-through entities are also known as recipients/subrecipients. The Office of Early LearningDivision 
of Early Learning is a subrecipient, and receives grant program funds from the federal awarding agencies. The ELCs are 
subrecipients of the Office of Early LearningDivision of Early Learning since they receive grant program funds from the 
Office of Early LearningDivision of Early Learning to perform/manage operations material to the School Readiness and 
VPK programs. When the ELCs award federal funds for program purposes to other contracted entities to carry out program 
activities, they will become ELC subrecipients or vendors.  

Recipient -: A non-federal entity that expends federal awards received directly from a federal awarding agency to carry out 
a federal program.  

School Readiness Program (SR): The School Readiness Program, administered by the Office of Early LearningDivision 
of Early Learning, is part of the state’s early childhood education and development programs. Each ELC’s or other contracted 
entity’s School Readiness program should provide the elements necessary to prepare at-risk children for school, including 
health referrals and an appropriate educational program. ECS provide SR services on a full day, full-year, and full-choice 
basis to the extent possible in order to enable parents to work and become financially self-sufficient. The delivery of SR 
programs is comprised of private child care providers and school-based sites that public and nonpublic schools operate. 

Formatted: Font: 11 pt, Not Strikethrough

Formatted: Font: 11 pt, Not Strikethrough

Formatted: Font: 11 pt, Bold

Formatted: Font: 11 pt, Strikethrough

Formatted: Font: 11 pt, Highlight

Formatted: Font: 11 pt, Bold

Formatted: Font: 11 pt, Bold

Formatted: Font: 11 pt

Formatted: Default, Left, Space After:  0 pt, Line spacing: 
single

Formatted: Font: 11 pt, Strikethrough

Formatted: Font: 11 pt, Highlight

Formatted: Font: 11 pt, Strikethrough

Formatted: Font: 11 pt, Highlight

Formatted: Font: 11 pt, Strikethrough

Formatted: Font: 11 pt, Highlight

Formatted: Font: 11 pt, Strikethrough

Formatted: Font: 11 pt, Highlight



Plan I G Tangible Personal Property 
ECS Administration 
Created on: 022916 

Updated July 17, 2021 
 

 

Personal Property - Property other than real property. It may be tangible, having physical existence, or intangible. [2 CFR 
§ 200.78, Personal property]  
 
Property - Real property or personal property. [2 CFR § 200.81, Property]  
 
Real Property - Land, land improvements, buildings and other permanent structures, but no moveable machinery or 
equipment. [2 CFR § 200.85, Real property] 
 
SubrecipientRecipient -: A non-federal entity that expends federal awards provided by a pass-through entity to carry out a 
federal program, but does not include an individual that is a beneficiary of such a program. A subrecipient may also be a 
recipient of other federal awards directly from a federal awarding agency. Received directly from a federal awarding agency 
to carry out a federal program. 

Threshold for Recording Property -: A coalition or other contracted entity must record in its financial system as property 
for inventory purposes all property with a value or cost of $5,000 or more with a projected useful life of one year or more. 
A coalition or other contracted entity must also record in its financial system as property for inventory purposes attractive 
items with a value or cost of less than $5,000 per 69I-72.002, F.A.C. Where a ECS has a more restrictive threshold, ECS will 
follow that threshold level.ECS must record in its financial system as property for inventory purposes all property with a 
value or cost of $5,000.00 or more with a projected useful life of one year or more. Where ECS has a more restrictive 
threshold, the coalition or other contracted entity will follow that threshold level.    

Title to Equipment:  - According to federal regulations, title to equipment a subrecipient acquires with HHS funds must 
vest in the subrecipient.  

Vendor: A dealer, distributor, merchant, or other seller providing goods or services that are required to conduct a federal 
program. These goods or services may be for an organization’s own use or for the use of beneficiaries of the federal program.  

Voluntary Prekindergarten Education Program (VPK): The Voluntary Prekindergarten Education program is part of the 
state’s early childhood development and education services delivery model. It provides that every 4-year-old child in Florida 
is eligible for a free, high quality prekindergarten learning opportunity that shall be voluntary and delivered according to 
professionally accepted standards. The state designed this program to enhance each child’s ability to make age-appropriate 
progress in the development of language and cognitive capabilities through education in basic skills. Private Prekindergarten 
providers and school-based sites operated by public and nonpublic schools comprise the delivery system for the VPK 
program. General Revenue (GR) fully funds the VPK program.  

Policy 
This policy provides information and specific requirements consistent with applicable Uniform Grant Guidance, Federal 
Regulations, Florida Statutes, State Rules, and Florida Department of Education policies relative to the management, 
disposition and utilization of tangible personal property purchased with state and federal funds.   
 
Tangible personal properties purchased solely with state funds (e.g., Voluntary Prekindergarten (VPK)  funds) must 
follow all applicable requirements described under Chapter 273, F.S., FDOE Green Book, 2015 and Rule 69I-72, F.A.C. 
Tangible personal properties purchased solely with federal funds (e.g., federal School Readiness (SR)  funds) must follow 
all applicable requirements provided under 2 CFR § 200,  45 CFR § 75,  45 CFR § 98 Subpart F,  Chapter 273, F.S.,  
Rule 69I-72, F.A.C., and FDOE Green Book, 2015. When entities combine funding (e.g., SR and VPK funds) for the 
purchase of tangible property, the more restrictive requirements apply. 
 

Formatted: Font: 11 pt, Bold

Formatted: Font: 11 pt, Bold

Formatted: Font: 11 pt, Bold

Formatted: Font: 11 pt

Formatted: Default, Left, Space After:  0 pt, Line spacing: 
single



Plan I G Tangible Personal Property 
ECS Administration 
Created on: 022916 

Updated July 17, 2021 

ECS is required to inventory all tangible personal property with value or cost of $5,000.00 or more and the normal 
expected life of one year or more. ECS is also required to conduct this inventory of its property annually or whenever there 
is a change in custodian or custodian delegate.  

Small attractive items with a purchase value less than $5,000, whether classified as equipment, technological item or 
supplies must be safeguarded. ECS considers any such item with a purchase value of $400 but less than $5,000 as an 
attractive item that falls within these policy guidelines (Source for small attractive items is Rule 69I-72.002, F.A.C.). These 
items will be inventoried at least every 2 years or whenever there is a change in custodian or custodian delegate. 

PROHIBITED PURCHASES 

Unless superseded by program-specific regulations, DEL's federally-funded award programs may not be used for 
construction or the purchase of land. [USDHHS, ACF General terms and conditions for CCDF grant program, May 2019].  
Funds appropriated through the state General Appropriation Act (GAA) for the SR program also not be expended for the 
purchase or improvement of land; for the purchase, construction or permanent improvement of any building or facility; or 
for the purchase of buses. [s. 1002.89 (7), F.S.]. In addition, it is unlawful for any state officer or employee to authorize the 
purchase or continuous lease of any motor vehicle to be paid for from state funds or any department thereof unless funds 
have been specifically appropriated for such purpose by the Legislature. This subsection does not apply to motor vehicles 
needed to meet unforeseen or emergency situations, if approved by the Executive Office of the Governor after consultation 
with the legislative appropriations committees. [s. 287.14(3) F.S.] 

STATE GUIDANCE 

Chapter 274, F.S. and Rule 69I-73, F.A.C. Chapter 273, F.S. and Rule 691-72, F.A.C. provide the minimum standards 
necessary to adequately control, safeguard, and account for tangible personal property. To reasonably assure compliance 
with Chapter 2734, F.S. and rules of the Chief Financial Officer, the coalition or other contracted entity’s ECS’s internal 
controls should include appropriate measures to ensure that all tangible personal property acquisitions are identified, 
appropriately marked, and accurately recorded in the appropriate records and that annual physical inventories are conducted 
and reconciled to related property records by persons who do not have asset custody responsibilities.  

MANAGEMENT OF EQUIPMENT PROPERTY 

Recording of Property  
Federal regulations, State statutes, and State rules require each coalition or other contracted entity to maintain adequate 
records of property in its custody. Each property record entered at the time of the purchase transaction must include the 
following information –  

a) Identification number
b) Description of item or items 
c) Physical location (the city, county, address or building name, and room number therein)
d) Use and condition of the property 
e) Name of custodian with assigned responsibility for the item(s)
f) In the case of a property group, the number and description of the component items comprising the group 
g) Name, make, or manufacturer, if applicable 
h) Year and/or model(s), if applicable 
i) Manufacturer’s serial number(s), if any, and if an automobile, vehicle identification number (VIN) and title

certificate number, if applicable 
j) Date acquired

http://1,000.00


Plan I G Tangible Personal Property 
ECS Administration 
Created on: 022916 

Updated July 17, 2021 

k) Cost or value at the date of acquisition for the item (ECS must indicate whether ancillary charges, such as taxes,
duty, property in transit insurance, freight, and installation, are included or excluded from the acquisition cost.  The 
total acquisition costs for the item must be reflected in the master inventory listing.)  45 CFR 75.2 

l) Method of acquisition and, for purchased items, the voucher and check or warrant number
m) Date the item was last physically inventoried and the condition of the item at that date 
n) Information prescribed in Rule 691-72.005, F.A.C. as applicable to disposition. 
o) If disposed of, use or refer to the information prescribed in Rule 69I-73.005, F.A.C. The source of funding for the

property{including the Federal award identification number (FAIN)} 
p) The coalition or contractor may include any other information on the individual property record
q) that it may care to include 
p) Percentage of federal participation (e.g., Identify the portion of each items costs funded by federal grant or project

for any item for which the federal grant program(s) paid) 
q) Other information on the individual property record, as needed. 

Identification/Marking of Property 
Within thirty (30) days of receipt, ECS must place a decal or tag on an item of grant-purchased property to identify the 
property. The decal or tag should contain at least a unique identification number and the name of the ELC of North Florida 
or its predecessor(s). We must record the property tag identification number on the ECS Inventory Form (Attachment 1). 
ECS must record the property tag identification number (which may include an electronic scanning code (“barcode”) to 
facilitate electronic inventory procedures) on the ELC Inventory List on SharePoint in the Coalition Zone.  Alternatively, if 
the ELC prefers, ECS can give them the information and the ELC may post the list on the Coalition Zone. 

Marking of Property 

ECS must permanently mark each property item with the identification number assigned to that item to establish its identity 
and that the entity that purchased it. The marking must visually display the property identification number of the item. 

Location of Marking 
ECS must mark items of a similar nature in a similar manner to facilitate identification. In determining a marking location, 
the coalition/other contracted entity ECS must give careful consideration to the intended use of the items; the probability that 
wear, vandalism, or routine maintenance functions could obliterate the marking; and the appropriateness of the marking 
method chosen. Additionally, the location of the marking and the marking method chosen must not mar the appearance of 
the item.    

Inventory of Grant-Purchased Property 
In accordance with Rule 69I-73, F.A.C., ECS is required to conduct a physical inventory of equipment at least once per year 
as well as whenever there is a change of custodian or change of custodian’s delegate. ECS must provide its updated ECS 
Inventory the Early Learning Coalition of North Florida no later than October 1 of each year or within 30 days of a 
change in custodian or custodian’s delegate. See Attachment 1. The Office of Early LearningDivision of Early Learning 
/ELC/ECS inventory list is found in the Coalition Zone under the ELC of North Florida site.  

During a required inventory, ECS should take the following steps – 

(a) For the inventory of an item physically present and properly described on the ECS Inventory List:    

Formatted: Font: 11 pt, Strikethrough

Formatted: Font: 11 pt, Strikethrough

Formatted: Font: 11 pt, Highlight



Plan I G Tangible Personal Property 
ECS Administration 
Created on: 022916 

Updated July 17, 2021 

1. Physically inspect the item;
2. Match the property tag identification number and description of the item against the ECS Inventory List;
3. Verify the current condition of the item against the condition described on the ECS Inventory List; and
4. Record the initials of the person taking the inventory next to the item on the ECS Inventory Form, indicating that

the person inventoried the item, and the date performed.

(b) For the inventory of an item physically present with incorrect or missing information: 

1. If an item’s property tag identification number matches the ECS Inventory List but the description of the item
does not match, the custodian must investigate and correct the description as appropriate. The custodian should
draw a line through the incorrect description, record the correct description immediately above or after the
incorrect entry, and follow the steps described in subparagraph (a) above.

2. If an item’s property tag identification number does not appear on the ECS Inventory List, the custodian must
investigate and correct the inventory as appropriate. The custodian should add the item to the ECS Inventory 
List and follow the steps described in subparagraph (a) above.

3. If an item does not have a decal or tag with a property tag identification number, the custodian must investigate 
and correct the inventory as appropriate. The custodian should determine whether the item appears on the ECS 
Inventory List.

4. If the item appears on the ECS Inventory List, determine the identification number of the original property tag,
place a replacement tag with the original property tag identification number on the item, and follow the steps
described in subparagraph above.

5. If the item does not appear on the ECS Inventory List, place a new property tag on the item, add the item to the 
ECS Inventory List, and follow the steps described in subparagraph (a) above.

6. If the manufacturer’s serial number on the item does not match the serial number on the ECS Inventory List,
draw a line through replace the incorrect serial number, record with the correct serial number immediately above 
or after the incorrect entry, and follow the steps described in subparagraph (a) above.

(c) For the inventory of an item on the ECS Inventory List but no longer physically present, draw a line through the entry 
and make the appropriate notation as follows:  

1. “Transferred”: ECS transferred the item to another location or entity (i.e., another contracted entity, same coalition
area). Note the change of location on the ECS Inventory List. and Property Tag Assignment Form (Attachment 1
and Attachment 5).

2. “Stolen”: Someone stole or may have stolen the item. Note on the ECS Inventory List the date the item
was reported stolen. Attach a copy of a police offense report.

3. “Lost”: The item is missing and determined lost. Note on the ECS Inventory List the date the custodian
determined the item to be lost.

4. “Surplus”: The item is surplus and reported on the Surplus Property Form (Attachment 2A) along with
a signed Surplus Property Affidavit (Attachment 2B).

(c) Enter the date, required certification signatures, and other requested information on the last page of the ECS Inventory 
List  

(d) ECS annually submits a copy of the ECS Inventory List to the ELC no later than October 1 of each year and keeps the 
original form in the coalition’s or other contracted entity’s files. 
(d) Submit a certification of completion email to the ELC's assigned DEL grant manager containing the date, required 
certification signatures (sent by custodian or delegate), and any other requested information. This email will be included in 



Plan I G Tangible Personal Property 
ECS Administration 
Created on: 022916 

Updated July 17, 2021 

the file with a PDF copy of the submitted ELC Inventory List from SharePoint. 

(e) Additional Considerations:  

1. Electronic scanning format used for the identification number is acceptable only if the recorded data is
downloadable to a computer ECS can then use to generate reports which will include all information required on
the hard copy of the inventory form. 

2. Equipment must be tracked until it is properly disposed and removed from the coalition or other contracted entity’s 
ECS’s inventory. In addition to tangible personal property valued at $5,000 or more, small attractive items with a 
purchase value less than $5,000, whether classified as equipment, technological item or supplies must be 
safeguarded and tracked. A coalition or other contracted entity must also record in its financial system as property 
for inventory purposes attractive items with a value or cost of less than $5,000 per 69I-7 2.002, F.A.C.

3. If the custodian discovers during an inventory any property item the coalition or other contracted entity  ECS has 
not included on the ELC ECS Inventory List, but meets the requirements for accounting and control, the custodian
must create an inventory form for the item at that time. After appropriate investigation to establish the ownership
of the item, the custodian must add it to the property records or, if the custodian cannot reasonably establish
ownership, the coalition or contractor may dispose of the item consistent with Rule 69I-72.005, F.A.C and in the 
manner provided by law applicable to surplus property, pursuant to sections 273.05 and 273.055, F.S.

4. The custodian delegate must not personally inventory items for which the custodian delegate is responsible.

Additional Considerations-- 

In addition to tangible personal property valued at $5,000.00 or more, ECS maintains a listing of attractive or sensitive items 
(e.g., laptop computers, tablet computers, iPads, digital cameras) costing more than $400 but less than $5,000.00 . Although 
state rules do not require ECS to record such items on the ECS Inventory List, the portability and desirability of such items 
necessitate additional safeguards related to their control, assignment, and use. The failure to maintain a listing of attractive 
or sensitive items increases the risk of loss or theft of such items without timely detection by management. 

If the custodian discovers property during an inventory that the coalition or other contracted entity has not included on the 
inventory forms but that meets the requirements for accounting and control, the custodian must create an inventory form for 
the item upon location. After appropriate investigation to establish the ownership of the item, the custodian must add it to 
the property records or, if the custodian cannot reasonably establish ownership, ECS may dispose of the item consistent with 
Rule 69I-73.005, F.A.C and in the manner provided by law applicable to surplus property, pursuant to Sections 274.05 and 
274.06, F.S. The custodian delegate must not personally inventory items for which the custodian delegate is responsible. 

Upon request, ECS must make the master inventory list available for inspection by the Office Division of Early Learning 
and the Early Learning Coalition of North Florida to assure compliance with applicable federal and state requirements. It 
will be available to both on the ELC of North Florida Coalition Zone page. 

Maintenance Procedures and Adequate Safeguards of Equipment  
Federal regulations require that the custodian implement adequate maintenance procedures to ensure the equipment is kept 
in good condition and safeguards to prevent loss, damage, or theft of the property. The Office Division of Early Learning 
staff, the ELC or independent contracted auditors/monitors may review support documentation to ensure compliance with 
this requirement. 

Insurance Coverage  
As required by HHS regulations, a coalition must, at a minimum, provide the equivalent insurance coverage for real 

Formatted: Font: 11 pt, Strikethrough

Formatted: Font: 11 pt, Strikethrough

http://1,000.00
http://1,000.00


Plan I G Tangible Personal Property 
ECS Administration 
Created on: 022916 

Updated July 17, 2021 

property and equipment acquired or improved with Federal funds as provided to other property owned by the coalition [45 
CFR § 75.317]. 

Replacement of Equipment 
When acquiring replacement equipment, a coalition may use the equipment to be replaced as a trade-in or sell the property 
and use those proceeds to offset the cost of the replacement property subject to DEL’s prior approval [45 CFR § 
75.320(c)(4)]. 

Use of Equipment 
Equipment must be used by the program for which it was acquired as long as needed whether or not the program continues 
to be supported by the federal award.  

When original or replacement tangible personal property acquired under a grant or sub-grant is no longer needed for the 
original project or program, ECS shall use the equipment in other activities in the following priority: 

(a)Programs, projects, or activities the HHS awarding agency sponsors; 
(b)Programs, projects, or activities other HHS awarding agencies sponsor; 
(c)Programs, projects, or activities other federal agencies sponsor;  
(d)Programs supported by DEL.  

During the time equipment is used on the project or program for which it was acquired, ECS may also make the equipment 
available for use on other projects or programs currently or previously supported by the federal government according to 
the above described priorities, provided such use does not interfere with the work on the projects or program for which it 
was originally acquired. If a user’s fee is used, ECS must not use equipment acquired with the federal award to provide 
services for a fee which is less than private companies charge for equivalent services.   

Transferring Property Within the Coalition  
ECS must document the transfer of grant-purchased property from one office to another, or from one location to another 
within the coalition, by updating the new physical location on the ECS Inventory List. (Attachment 1) and the North Florida 
Internal Transfer Form (Attachment 3).  

Lost or Stolen Grant-Purchased Property  
Upon completion of a physical inventory or other discovery, the custodian must reconcile inventory records as appropriate. 
This includes comparing the data listed on the inventory forms with the individual property records. The custodian must 
investigate noted differences such as location, condition, and custodian and correct as appropriate. 

Alternatively, the custodian must relocate the item to its assigned location and custodian in the individual property record. 
Further, the custodian must promptly report to management items not located during the inventory process for thorough 
investigation. If the investigation determines that someone stole or may have stolen the item, the custodian must update the 
individual property record at the time of determination and complete the Missing Property Form (Attachment 4), and file a 
report filed with the appropriate law enforcement agency describing the missing item and circumstances surrounding its 
disappearance. [Chapter 691-72.006(6)(b), FAC] 

Disposition of Equipment 

Based on section 273.055, F.S. and Rule 69I-72.005, F.A.C., when original or replacement equipment acquired under a 
grant, sub-grant or contract is no longer needed for the original purpose or program or for other activities currently 
supported by DEL, disposition of the equipment will be made as follows. 



Plan I G Tangible Personal Property 
ECS Administration 
Created on: 022916 

Updated July 17, 2021 

If the custodian has no need for the equipment, the custodian must perform the following tasks – 

• ECS has a disposition guidance in place may follow its guidelines consistent with Sections 274.05, 274.06, and 
274.07, F.S. and Rule 69I-73.005, F.A.C. 

• When ECS legally disposes of equipment in accordance policy or state statutes, ECS must record the following 
information on the individual property record for each item: (a) date of disposition; (b) authority for disposition 
(resolution of the governing body properly recorded in the minutes as Section 274.07, F.S., requires); (c) 
manner of disposition (sold, donated, transferred, cannibalized, scrapped, destroyed, traded); (d) identity of the 
employee(s) witnessing the disposition, if cannibalized (e.g., the process of dismantling portions or 
components of a property item to repair, replace, upgrade, or extend the useful life of other property items), 
scrapped, or destroyed; (e) for items disposed of, a notation identifying any related transactions (e.g., receipt 
for sale of the item, insurance recovery, trade-in); and (f) for property certified as surplus, reference to 
documentation evidencing that the coalition or contractor disposed of such property in the manner Section 
274.05 or 274.06, F.S., requires. 

• Disposition. When original or replacement equipment acquired under a Federal award is no longer needed for the 
original project or program or for other activities currently or previously supported by a HHS awarding agency,
except as otherwise provided in Federal statutes, regulations, or HHS awarding agency disposition instructions, the 
non-Federal entity must request disposition instructions from the HHS awarding agency if required by the terms 
and conditions of the Federal award. Disposition of the equipment will be made as follows, in accordance with 
HHS awarding agency disposition instructions: 

• (1) Items of equipment with a current per unit fair market value of $1,000 or less may be retained, sold or
otherwise disposed of with no further obligation to the HHS awarding agency. 

• (2) Except as provided in §75.319(b), or if the HHS awarding agency fails to provide requested disposition
instructions within 120 days, items of equipment with a current per-unit fair-market value in excess of $1,000 may 
be retained by the non-Federal entity or sold. The HHS awarding agency is entitled to an amount calculated by 
multiplying the current market value or proceeds from sale by the HHS awarding agency's percentage of 
participation in the cost of the original purchase. If the equipment is sold, the HHS awarding agency may permit 
the non-Federal entity to deduct and retain from the Federal share $500 or ten percent of the proceeds, whichever 
is less, for its selling and handling expenses. 

• (3) The non-Federal entity may transfer title to the property to the Federal Government or to an eligible third party 
provided that, in such cases, the non-Federal entity must be entitled to compensation for its attributable percentage 
of the current fair market value of the property. 

• (4) In cases where a non-Federal entity fails to take appropriate disposition actions, the HHS awarding agency may 
direct the non-Federal entity to take disposition actions. 

• Effective July 1, 2015 all equipment in excess of $1000 proposed to be disposed must obtain DEL written prior
approval 45 CFR Part 75.320(e)(2), Disposition 



Plan I G Tangible Personal Property 
ECS Administration 
Created on: 022916 

Updated July 17, 2021 
 

 

a) Items of equipment with an acquisition cost of less than $5,000 may be retained, sold or otherwise disposed of 
with no further prior approval requests or reporting requirement obligations to DEL11 

b) Items of equipment with an acquisition cost of $5,000 or more and a useful life of one year or more may be 
retained or sold and DEL shall has a right to an amount calculated by multiplying the current market value or 
proceeds from the sale by DEL’s share of the equipment’s original costs. (i.e., if 100% of the equipment cost 
was charged to DEL-funded program, 100% of the disposal proceeds are subject to DEL instructions).1 

c) If the ECS custodian has no need for equipment items with a current market value less than $5,000, the 
custodian must perform the following tasks:  

1. ECS which does have a disposition policy in place may follow its policy consistent with sections 273.05 
and 273.055, F.S., and Rule 69I-72.005, F.A.C.   

2. Without such a policy in place at the time of disposition, ECS would need to submit a request to DEL 
for approval prior to disposition. 

3.ECS legally disposes of equipment in accordance with it’s policy, ECS must record the following 
information on the individual property record for each item.  

• Date of disposition. 

• Manner of disposition (sold, donated, transferred, cannibalized, scrapped, destroyed, traded). 

• For cannibalized, (e.g., the process of dismantling portions or components of a property item to 
repair, replace, upgrade, or extend the useful life of other property items) scrapped, or destroyed 
property, the identity of the employee(s) witnessing the disposition.  

• For items disposed of, a notation identifying any related transactions (e.g., receipt for sale of the 
item, insurance recovery, trade-in). 

• For property certified as surplus, reference to documentation evidencing the coalition or contractor 
disposed of such property in the manner Section 273.05 or 273.055, F.S., requires. 

d) If the custodian identifies equipment items with a current market value of more than $5,000 for disposal, such 
equipment items must be processed in accordance with 2 CFR § 200.313(e)(2), Equipment, with the assistance 
of and prior written approval from DEL. 11Funds from such equipment sales/disposals are not considered 
SR/VPK program income; however, these funds will be treated as collections directly attributed to SR and/or 
VPK program operations. Such monies can be retained at the local entity level and used for allowable SR/VPK 
program activities. See DEL Program Guidance 240.01, Cash Management Procedures, for more details. 

  
 

Use of Equipment - Priority of Disposition  
When original or replacement tangible personal property acquired under a grant or sub-grant is no longer needed for the 
original project or program, the custodian must use the tangible personal property in connection with its other federally-

                                                           
1Funds from such equipment sales/disposals are not considered SR/VPK program income; however, these funds will be treated as collections directly attributed 
to SR and/or VPK program operations. Such monies can be retained at the local entity level and used for allowable SR/VPK program activities. See OEL DEL 
Program Guidance 240.01, Cash Management Procedures, for more details. 

Formatted: Strikethrough



Plan I G Tangible Personal Property 
ECS Administration 
Created on: 022916 

Updated July 17, 2021 

sponsored activities, if any, in the following order of priority: 

(1) Programs, projects, or activities the HHS awarding agency sponsors; 
(2) Programs, projects, or activities other HHS awarding agencies sponsor; then 
(3) Programs, projects, or activities other federal agencies sponsor. 

Surplus Computer Hard Drive Disposal (aka cleansing or data wiping) Processes 
ECS has established security controls to protect the confidentiality, integrity, and availability of data and IT resources 
relative to equipment items to be disposed by the coalition. These controls related to the surplus computer hard drive are 
intended to minimize the risk the coalition information may be compromised.  All surplus computer hard drives have the 
date wiped prior to disposal. 

Transfer of Property Records  
ECS must transfer to a disposed property file, upon disposition of the item, the individual property record for each item of 
which the coalition or other contracted entity ECS lawfully disposes.  

Retention of Records  
Documents All records and other supporting documentation relating to the acquisition and disposal of tangible personal 
property must be retained throughout the life of the property and for a minimum of five (5) years following final disposition 
disposal or until the resolution of any investigation, litigation, audit or claim whichever occurs last. If any litigation, audit or 
claim remains unresolved at the expiration of the aforementioned periods, then such records must be retained until all 
outstanding issues have been resolved. 

Responsibilities 
It is the responsibility of ECS to establish and implement policies and procedures for ensuring that all these laws, regulations, 
and rules are appropriately adhered to. It is the responsibility of ECS staff to be knowledgeable about the federal and state 
requirements, as well as local policies and procedures, and to ensure that all applicable laws, regulations, rules, policies, and 
procedures are appropriately implemented. Failure to abide by these federal and state requirements can result in auditing or 
monitoring exceptions, and it may negatively impact the ability ECS to meet its program goals and objectives.   

History  
Original.—DEL-PI-0039-06 (June 23, 2006). Revised.—DEL-FG-0049-08 (September 24, 2008). Revised – FG 12.04 
Tracking Disaster Costs, (August 2012). Revised.—DEL-FG-0004-12 (December 11, 2012). Revised May 15, 2014. Reissued 
November 26, 2014. Original –   OEL-PI-0039-06 (June 23, 2006). Revised – OEL-FG-0049-08 (September 24, 2008). 
Revised –   FG 12.04 Tracking Disaster Costs, (August 2012). Revised – OEL-FG-0004-12 (December 11, 2012). Revised 
OEL 240.02 Tangible Personal Property (May 15, 2014).  Reissued November 26, 2014. Revised July 1, 2015. Revised and 
reissued June 1, 2016.  Revised and reissued July 1, 2017. Revised and reissued July 1, 2018. Revised and reissued July 1, 
2019. Revised and reissued July 1, 2021. 

Attachments  
Attachment 1 – ECS Inventory Form 
Attachment 2 – Surplus Property Form and Surplus Property Affidavit 
Attachment 3 – North Florida Internal Transfer Form 
Attachment 4 – Missing Property Form 
Attachment 5- Property Tag Assignment Form 
Attachment A – Surplus Property Form 

Formatted: Font: 11 pt, Strikethrough



Plan I G Tangible Personal Property 
ECS Administration 
Created on: 022916 

Updated July 17, 2021 

Attachment B – Surplus Property Affidavit 
Attachment C ECS Master Inventory Form 
Attachment D Missing Property Form 

SRAD02 ECS Inventory Guidelines for ELC of North Florida Grant 

Inventoried items are all listed on the Master Inventory Coalition Form.  An “inventoried item” meets the following 
guidelines and requires a Coalition property tag number:  

• everything over $15,000 (per item) 

The Custodian is the person or agency entitled to lawful custody of tangible personal property. This custodian is 
responsible to ensure all applicable federal and state requirements related to the management of tangible personal property 
are met. The Chief of Programs and Administration is the designated custodian for ECS.  

The Custodian Delegate is the person acting under the custodian’s supervision to whom the custodian has delegated 
property custody, and from whom the custodian receives custody receipts. The custodian delegate shall not personally 
inventory items for which they are responsible. The Training Manager Director is the designated Custodian Delegate for 
ECS.  

All Staff 

Prior to purchasing any inventoried item, staff must do the following: 

1. Discuss and gain approval from supervisor.

Formatted: Font: 11 pt, Highlight

Formatted: Font: 11 pt, Highlight



Plan I G Tangible Personal Property 
ECS Administration 
Created on: 022916 

Updated July 17, 2021 
 

 

2. Follow all purchasing procedures, including prior approval policies. 
 

3. When completing the purchase order, please also complete the Fixed Asset Form. It is imperative that all sections 
are thoroughly completed.  

 
Prior to moving any inventoried item, Senior IT Manager Director and / or the Training Director must do the following: 

1. If you are unsure if an item is “inventoried”, please check the master list for North Florida 
H:\CCRR\Inventory\current inventory SR-Admin-Inventory (Attachment 1C). Select current year. All applicable 
information should be completed:  
• ELC Tag # 
• Other Tag# 
• Property Description (make, model & year) 
• Serial number 
• Condition 
• Grant 
• Title vests in recipient or federal government 
• Percentage of federal participation 
• Funding Source 
• Check or PO (payment) 
• Acquisition date & cost 
• Location address and location site 
• Date last inventoried 
• Initials of person completing the inventory 
• Any applicable comments & information about disposal. 

 

2. IT Department Staff will complete the Internal Transfer Form for North Florida H:\CCRR\Inventory\INTERNAL 
TRANSFERS (Attachment 3) IT Department will ensure that all sections are completed. 
 

3. The IT Department staff will inform the Training Manager Director(Custodian Delegate) of the transfer of property 
giving her the inventory tag number, serial number, condition, new location etc so that she can update the 
inventory list. 
 

4. The Training Manager Director will update the master inventory list with item condition and location.  
 

Staff should not dispose of property. If an item is no longer required or does not function and repairs are not being ordered, 
please inform IT department staff and the Training ManagerDirector.. Note: The Training Manager Director will not be 
placing work orders and is not responsible for the actual transfer of items.  

Equipment is used by ECS for the ELC of North Florida grant for as long as it is needed.  Should ECS find that it is no 
longer needed or is not being fully utilized then the following processes will be followed: 

1. If there’s extra capacity available, use the equipment for other partnering programs/projects. 

2. If used for other programs/projects any related usage fees must equal those charged by the other private companies 
for the same equipment; and 

Formatted: Font: 11 pt, Highlight

Formatted: Font: 11 pt, Highlight

Formatted: Font: 11 pt, Strikethrough

Formatted: Font: 11 pt, Highlight

Formatted: Font: 11 pt, Highlight

Formatted: Font: 11 pt, Highlight

Formatted: Font: 11 pt, Highlight

Commented [TM1]: Stated above 



Plan I G Tangible Personal Property 
ECS Administration 
Created on: 022916 

Updated July 17, 2021 

3. If new equipment is needed, current equipment may be sold or used for trade-in negotiations to offset newer
equipment costs (subject to ELC prior approval.) 

If the condition of an item has changed, please notify the Training Manager Director via email and IT Supervisor using the 
ECS Help Deskif it is computer equipment immediately via Help Desk Ticket. 

All electronic property not in use must be stored at ECS Central Office in IT Storage and considered for surplus status, 
unless an exception has been granted by the supervisor. 

If any property becomes “missing”, the Department Supervisor must inform the Training Director Manager immediately & 
DEL policy must be followed.  The form can be found at   H:\CCRR\Inventory\MISSING PROPERTY FORM  
Inventory_Current Attachments (Attachment 4D) 

Supervisors 

Please ensure that all employees have a complete understanding of the purchasing procedures, including Attachments 1-5 
included at the end of this document.   

When signing a purchase order for everything over $15,000 (per item) ensure that the Fixed Asset Form is thoroughly 
completed.  

IT Department 

IT Department staff will follow the same guidelines as staff in regards to property transfers and condition changes. 

Prior to new or reconditioned Coalition equipment being installed or delivered, the IT Staff will contact the Training 
Manager Director to obtain a Coalition tag. 

IT Staff will cleanse all items for surplus and prepare it for either pick-up or disposal and document actions on 
H:\CCRR\Inventory\SURPLUS ITEMS Inventory_Current Attachments form(ATTACHMENT 2B)  

The IT Supervisor will determine the condition of equipment on a yearly basis and notify the Training Director Manager of 
all changes to the FAS Inventory List and the Master Inventory List. 

Coalition-owned equipment may only be used by staff funded at least in part by the Coalition. 

Fiscal Department 

Once the purchase order and fixed asset form are completed and forwarded to the fiscal department, a copy of the fixed 
asset form will be forwarded to the Training Director Manager. 

Once the item arrives and all paperwork is processed through the fiscal office, upon request, the fiscal office will provide 
copies of the purchase order, invoice, bids/quotes, and payment information to the Training Director Manager. 

Staff Accountant 

Formatted: Font: 11 pt, Highlight

Formatted: Font: 11 pt, Highlight

Formatted: Font: 11 pt, Strikethrough

Formatted: Font: 11 pt, Strikethrough

Formatted: Font: 11 pt, Strikethrough

https://episcopalchildrensserv.sharepoint.com/:x:/g/CCRR/Ea5sm6EEf3VDjF1uGJ98QMYBnhKFNTwnHR-aRqnM3p-xBw
https://episcopalchildrensserv.sharepoint.com/:x:/g/CCRR/Ea5sm6EEf3VDjF1uGJ98QMYBnhKFNTwnHR-aRqnM3p-xBw


Plan I G Tangible Personal Property 
ECS Administration 
Created on: 022916 

Updated July 17, 2021 

Once paperwork on new items is processed, the fiscal department staff Staff Accountant will enter the information from the 
Fixed Asset Form into FAS.   

On a quarterly basis, the Staff Accountant will forward to the Training Director Manager the general ledger detail so it can 
be cross-referenced with the Master Inventory List. 

The Staff Accountant fiscal department staff and the Training Director Manager will meet as needed to review the FAS 
Inventory List for correctness. 

Training Managerr 

Director 

The Training Manager Director will check the Internal Form regularly and update the Master Inventory List and the FAS 
Inventory List. 

The Training Manager Director assigns property tags.  North Florida property tags are housed with the Contract Manager. 
If there are five or fewer NORTH FLORIDA property tags, the Contract Manager notifies the ELC of NORTH 
FLORIDA’s Inventory Manager to order additional tags.  

As changes in the Master Inventory Coalition Form occur, the Training Manager will update the inventory spreadsheet, 
highlight new items, and forward to each Coalition’s Inventory Manager.  

After a new item is purchased, delivered, assigned a property tag, and the Master Inventory Coalition Form is changed, the 
Training Manager Director will request the purchase order, invoice, bids/quotes, and payment information from the fiscal 
department.  Once copies of this information are made – one will be placed in the inventory notebook housed with the 
Training Manager Director and one will be sent to the Coalition. 

Attachment Descriptions (Attachments 1-5A-D bottom of this document) 

Attachment 1 ECS Inventory Form: Includes description of property, serial number, source of funding, cost of the 
property, location of property, percentage of federal participation, and disposition data. 45 CFR Part 75.320(d), 
Management requirements 

Attachment 2 A Surplus Property Form and Affidavit: Includes disposal request information 

Attachment B Surplus Affidavit-disposal request information 

Formatted: Font: 11 pt, Strikethrough

Formatted: Font: 11 pt, Highlight

Formatted: Font: 11 pt, Strikethrough

Formatted: Font: 11 pt, Highlight

Formatted: Font: 11 pt, Highlight

Formatted: Font: 11 pt, Highlight

Formatted: Font: 11 pt, Strikethrough

Formatted: Font: 11 pt, Highlight

Formatted: Font: 11 pt, Highlight

Formatted: Font: 11 pt, Strikethrough

Formatted: Font: 11 pt, Strikethrough

Formatted: Font: 11 pt, Strikethrough

Formatted: Font: 11 pt, Not Bold

Formatted: Font: 11 pt, Not Bold



Plan I G Tangible Personal Property 
ECS Administration 
Created on: 022916 

Updated July 17, 2021 

Attachment 1 C ECS Inventory Form: Includes description of property, serial number, source of funding, cost of the 
property, location of property, percentage of federal participation, and disposition data. 45 CFR Part 75.320(d), 
Management requirements 

Attachment 3 North Florida Internal Transfer Form: Includes office equipment location transfer information 

Attachment 4 D Missing Property Form: (Report for missing or stolen property) 

Attachment 5: Property Tag Assignment Form: Includes statement that property tags were affixed to the property listed 
under property description. 

 Changes/Revisions: 

Date of 
Change/Revision 

Person making 
change/revision 

Change/Revision 

8/15/08 LYS • Revised Name of Procedure to
include all staff under AVP of
Family & Provider Services

• Added fax machines to list of items 
needing email approval
confirmation

• Updated procedures based on new
reporting requirements effective
08.18.08. 

• Added requirement that all
electronic items not in use must be 
housed at ECS Central Office IT 
Storage. 

10/15/09 SA • Complete revision, including new
AWI policy standards and ELC of
PSJ requirements

Formatted: Font: 11 pt, Bold

Formatted: Font: 11 pt, Strikethrough



Plan I G Tangible Personal Property 
ECS Administration 
Created on: 022916 

Updated July 17, 2021 
 

 

3/17/10 SA • Fixed minor grammatical errors 

8.14.12 LYS • Updated frequency of meetings 
between Staff Acct. & Contract 
Manager from Quarterly to as 
needed.  

• Updated frequency of checking the 
Internal Form from Weekly to 
Regularly 

12.22.2014 AMS • Changed PSJ and CNBB to North 
Florida 

• Changed word EMAIL (IT) to 
Help Desk Ticket 

• Changed  wording Contract 
Manager to Training Manager 

• Added the definition and  
assignment of custodian and 
custodian delegate for ECS 

• Added a bulleted list of inventory 
details. 

 

4.7.2015 AMS • Added reference to inventory form 
attachments 

• Removed any reference to 
hardback-covered books 

•  
2/29/16 

 

AMS • Added information regarding the 
transfer of inventoried items and 
clarified staff responsibilities IT 
Department and Training Manager 
specifying that IT staff will 
complete the transfer form and 
Training Manager will update the 
Master Inventory List with item 
location and condition 

• Removed language stating that 
staff must fill out transfer form.  

 

7/20/2021 TJM • Complete revision of policy based 
on OEL guidance 

 

 



Plan I G Tangible Personal Property 
ECS Administration 
Created on: 022916 

Updated July 17, 2021 
 

 

 

 

 



Early Learning Coalition of North Florida    1 
Accounting and Financial Policies and Procedures 

F402  CAPITALIZED ASSETS AND INVENTORY REQUIREMENTS 

Effective Date:  08/28/07  
Revision Date: 10/01/08, 09/16/09, 02/12/13, 12/04/13, 04/08/15, 03/16/16, 09/11/19, 12/01/21

Policy 

The Coalition staff, and sub-recipient staff, is responsible for the safeguarding of financial and physical assets 
and being alert to possible exposures, errors, and irregularities.  The Coalition, and sub-recipient(s), are 
required to: 

• maintain an accurate inventory control of non-expendable, tangible real property
• record the acquisition of new property
• document the transfer of property from one location to another
• provide documentation when property is being repaired
• complete physical inventories as required by law
• alert management when property is missing or suspected stolen
• obtain approval prior to disposing of property
• ensure that unauthorized use of property is prohibited

CAPITALIZED ASSETS

Capitalization Threshold 

The Coalition’s capitalization threshold is any item that was either purchased for $5,000 or more or was 
contributed to the Coalition with a fair market value of $5,000 or more, and has a useful life of at least one (1) 
year. 

Capitalized Assets - Purchased 

Items with unit costs below the Coalition’s capitalization threshold shall be expensed in the year purchased.  
Capitalized assets are accounted for at their historical cost and all such assets, except land, are subject to 
depreciation over their estimated useful lives, as described within these policies.    

If an awarding agency requires a lower capitalization threshold, the Coalition will adhere to that dollar amount 
only for that program or contract. 

Capitalized assets will be reported as expensed for grants if they were so budgeted in the grant application.  
However, for the Coalition’s financial statements, these assets will be capitalized and depreciated according to 
these policies. 

Capitalized Assets – Contributed 



 
 

 Early Learning Coalition of North Florida 2 
               Accounting and Financial Policies and Procedures 

Assets with fair market values in excess of the Coalition’s capitalization threshold that are contributed to the 
Coalition, or a sub-recipient for the Coalition, shall be capitalized as fixed assets on the financial statements. 
Contributed items with market values below the Coalition’s capitalization threshold shall be expensed in the 
year contributed. 
 
Capitalized contributed assets are accounted for at their market value at the time of donation and all such 
assets, except land and certain works of art and historical treasures, are subject to depreciation over their 
estimated useful lives, as described within these policies.  
 
 
Capitalized Assets - Depreciation and Useful Lives 
 
All capitalized assets are maintained in the special property account group and are not included as an 
operating expense.  Property is depreciated over its estimated useful lives using the straight-line method, half-
year convention.  
 
Recovery periods are as follows: 

1. 5-year property: 
• Computers and peripheral equipment 
• Office machinery (such as typewriters, calculators, and copiers) 
• Vehicles 

2.  7-year property: 
• Office furniture and fixtures (such as desks, files, and safes) 
• Any property that does not have a recovery period as designated by the IRS 

3. Any other property will follow the IRS guidelines on length of recovery period 
4. Alternatively, at the direction of the Finance Manager capitalized assets may be depreciated over 

useful lives expressed in terms of units of production or hours of service in place of the preceding 
useful lives expressed in terms of time. 

 
Residual value of capitalized assets shall be determined by the Accounting Department in conjunction with 
the department or employee that shall utilize the asset. 
 
For accounting and interim financial reporting purposes, depreciation expense will be recorded on an annual 
basis. 
 
 
Capitalized Assets - Changes in Estimated Useful Lives 
 
If it becomes apparent that the useful life of a particular capitalized asset will be less than the life originally 
established, an adjustment to the estimated useful life shall be made. All such changes in estimated useful 
lives of capitalized assets must be approved by the Finance Manager. 
 
When a change in estimated useful life is made, the new life is used for purposes of calculating annual 
depreciation expense. In the year in which the change in estimate is made, the cumulative effect of the change 
shall be reflected as depreciation expense in the Coalition’s statement of activities.  
 



Accounting and Financial Policies and Procedures 
Early Learning Coalition of North Florida 3 

For example, if in the fourth year of an asset’s life, it is determined that the asset will last five years instead of 
the original estimate of seven years, depreciation expense for that year shall be equal to the difference 
between 4/5 of the asset’s basis (accumulated depreciation at the end of year four) and 3/7 of the asset’s basis 
(accumulated depreciation at the beginning of the year). 

Capitalized Assets - Repairs  

Expenditures to repair capitalized assets shall be expensed as incurred if the repairs do not materially add to 
the value of the property or materially prolong the estimated useful life of the property. 

Expenditures to repair capitalized assets shall be capitalized if the repairs increase the value of property, 
prolong its estimated useful life, or adapt it to a new or different use. Such capitalized repair costs shall be 
depreciated over the remaining estimated useful life of the property. If the repairs significantly extend the 
estimated useful life of the property, the original cost of the property shall also be depreciated over its new, 
extended useful life. 

Capitalized Assets - Establishment and Maintenance of a Fixed Asset Listing 

All capitalized property shall be recorded on the Fixed Asset Listing Report. This report shall include the 
following information with respect to each asset:  

1. Date of acquisition
2. Unit acquisition cost (computed by including freight, insurance, and any other shipping costs divided

by number of units)
3. Description (such as color, name, make, model, manufacturer and

serial number or other identification number)
4. Depreciation method
5. Estimated useful life
6. Book Value
7. Depreciation amount
8. Residual value of asset

INVENTORY REQUIREMENTS 

Items to be Inventoried 
All nonexpendable property (as listed below), purchased by the Coalition, or a sub-recipient of the Coalition, 
are to be maintained, safeguarded, inventoried and accounted for: 

• Equipment, fixtures, or other tangible personal property of a non-consumable and
nonexpendable nature, with a value or cost of $1,000.00 $5,000 or more and a normal life
expectancy life of one (1) year or more



 
 

 Early Learning Coalition of North Florida 4 
               Accounting and Financial Policies and Procedures 

• Portable or attractive items such as computers which may contain sensitive or confidential 
information or small attractive items with a purchase value less than $5,000, whether 
classified as equipment, technological item or supplies  (However, if they were under the cost 
threshold at time of acquisition, these items may be inventoried and accounted for by a means 
other than the official inventory report.) 

 
 
Inventory Procedures  
 
The Coalition, and sub-recipient(s), are required to adhere to these policies and procedures when establishing 
and maintaining the Property Inventory Reports, and per the following regulations as appropriate: ; Chapter 
69I-73, FAC, Chapter 274, F.S., and 45 CFR Part 75.   
 
When tangible property is purchased from combined federal and state funding, the more restrictive 
requirements apply. 
 

- OEL’s Fiscal Guidance 240.02 (most current version) 

- 2 CFR § 200, Office of Management and Budget (OMB) Uniform 
Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles and Audit Requirements 
for Federal Awards 

- 45 CFR § 75 - Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles 
and Audit Requirements for Health and Human Services (HHS) 
Awards 

- 45 CFR § 98 Subpart F – Use of Child Care and Development Funds 
- Section 1002.84(11), Florida Statutes (F.S.) – Complying with Tangible Personal 

Property Requirements 
- Chapter 273, F.S. – Tangible Personal Property Owned by Local Governments 
- Rule 69I-72, Florida Administrative Code (F.A.C.) – State-owned Tangible Property 
- Florida Department of Education (FDOE), Green Book, 2015 

 
 
Tangible personal properties purchased solely with state funds (e.g., Voluntary Prekindergarten (VPK) funds) 
must follow all applicable requirements described under Chapter 273, F.S., FDOE Green  Book, 2015 and Rule 
69I-72, F.A.C. Tangible personal properties purchased solely with federal funds (e.g., federal School 
Readiness (SR) funds) must follow all applicable requirements provided under 2 
CFR § 200, 45 CFR § 75, 45 CFR § 98 Subpart F, Chapter 273, F.S., Rule 69I-72, F.A.C., and FDOE  Green 
Book, 2015. When entities combine funding (e.g., SR and VPK funds) for the purchase of tangible property, 
the more restrictive requirements apply. 
 

If there is any conflict between the provisions set forth in these documents, resolution will occur in the 
following order or priority. If a lower priority law contains a stricter requirement, the stricter 
requirement prevails unless other written instructions are provided by OEL. 

(1) Federal law 
(2) State law 
(3) Applicable grant agreement or contract 
 

https://www.law.cornell.edu/cfr/text/2/part-200
https://www.law.cornell.edu/cfr/text/45/part-75
https://www.law.cornell.edu/cfr/text/45/part-98/subpart-F
https://www.flrules.org/gateway/ChapterHome.asp?Chapter=69I-72
http://www.fldoe.org/finance/contracts-grants-procurement/grants-management/project-application-amendment-procedur.stml
http://www.fldoe.org/finance/contracts-grants-procurement/grants-management/project-application-amendment-procedur.stml
http://www.fldoe.org/finance/contracts-grants-procurement/grants-management/project-application-amendment-procedur.stml
https://www.flrules.org/gateway/ChapterHome.asp?Chapter=69I-73
https://www.flrules.org/gateway/ChapterHome.asp?Chapter=69I-73
https://www.law.cornell.edu/cfr/text/2/part-200
https://www.law.cornell.edu/cfr/text/2/part-200
https://www.law.cornell.edu/cfr/text/45/part-75
https://www.law.cornell.edu/cfr/text/45/part-98/subpart-F
https://www.flrules.org/gateway/ChapterHome.asp?Chapter=69I-73
http://www.fldoe.org/finance/contracts-grants-procurement/grants-management/project-application-amendment-procedur.stml
http://www.fldoe.org/finance/contracts-grants-procurement/grants-management/project-application-amendment-procedur.stml
http://www.fldoe.org/finance/contracts-grants-procurement/grants-management/project-application-amendment-procedur.stml


                                     Accounting and Financial Policies and Procedures 
 

 Early Learning Coalition of North Florida 5 

Prohibited Purchases 
 
Unless superseded by program-specific regulations, OEL's federally-funded award programs may not be used 
for construction or the purchase of land. [USDHHS, ACF General terms and conditions for CCDF grant 
program, May 2019]. Funds appropriated through the state General Appropriation Act (GAA) for the SR 
program also not be expended for the purchase or improvement of land; for the purchase, construction or 
permanent improvement of any building or facility; or for the purchase of buses. [s. 1002.89 (7), F.S.]. In 
addition, it is unlawful for any state officer or employee to authorize the purchase or continuous lease of any 
motor vehicle to be paid for from state funds or any department thereof unless funds have been specifically 
appropriated for such purpose by the Legislature. This subsection does not apply to motor vehicles needed to 
meet unforeseen or emergency situations, if approved by the Executive Office of the Governor after 
consultation with the legislative appropriations committees. [s. 287.14(3) F.S.] 
 
 
 
Inventory Maintenance and Reporting/Recording Procedures 
 
All property that is required to be recorded on the Property Inventory Report shall include the following 
information with respect to each item:    
 

1. Identification number 
2. Date of acquisition 
3. Unit acquisition cost (computed by including freight, insurance, and any other shipping costs divided 

by number of units)  Cost or value at the date of acquisition for the item (the coalition or other 
contracted entity must indicate whether ancillary charges, such as taxes, duty, property in transit 
insurance, freight, and installation, are included or excluded from the acquisition cost. The total 
acquisition costs for the item must be reflected in the master inventory listing.) 45 CFR § 75.2 

4. Method of acquisition (and if purchased; voucher, check, or warrant number) 
5. Description (such as color, name, make, year, model name/number, manufacturer, and a serial number 

or other identification number, and if an automobile, vehicle identification number (VIN) and title 
certificate number, as applicable) 

6. Funding source of the property, including the grant award number Federal Award Identification 
Number (FAIN) and other cost accumulator (OCA) 

7. A statement that the title vests in the Coalition  
8. Information to calculate the Federal share of the cost of the property, if applicable 
9. Physical location of property and use 
10. Name of custodian 
11. In the case of a property group, the number and description of the component items comprising the 

group 
12. Property tag identification number 
13. Use and date that the item was last inventoried and the condition of the item as of that date, using the 

appropriate condition code as described here: 
• (E) Excellent:  The item is in excellent serviceable condition. 
• (G) Good:  The item is in reusable and serviceable condition. 
• (F) Fair:  The item is worn but is in reusable condition and can be cleaned, polished, and 

placed back in use with minimum repair or maintenance. 
• (P) Poor:   The item is very worn, old, or obsolete and requires major repairs before use.  This 

https://www.acf.hhs.gov/sites/default/files/assets/general_terms_and_conditions_mandatory.pdf
https://www.acf.hhs.gov/sites/default/files/assets/general_terms_and_conditions_mandatory.pdf
https://www.acf.hhs.gov/sites/default/files/assets/general_terms_and_conditions_mandatory.pdf
https://www.law.cornell.edu/cfr/text/45/75.2


 
 

 Early Learning Coalition of North Florida 6 
               Accounting and Financial Policies and Procedures 

type of grant-purchased property may have parts, which may be useful. 
• (S) Scrap:  The item is not usable by the Coalition.  The item is obsolete or non-repairable, 

unserviceable, and may present a health or safety hazard. 
14. Ultimate Disposition Data, including date of disposal and sales price (if applicable), OR the method 

used to determine current fair market value where a recipient compensates the awarding agency for its 
share.  When determining fair market value, the Coalition will use a comparison of recent purchase 
prices of similar item(s) and/or the written opinions of applicable professionals.   

15. Other information on the individual property record, as needed. 
 
 
 

Inventory Maintenance and Reporting Procedures for Sub-recipients  
 

1. The sub-recipient must be granted Coalition prior approval for all items that are included in the 
“Contractor Prior Approval Guidance” issued by the Coalition. 

2. The sub-recipient must assign a Property Custodian (or Custodian Delegate).  The Property Custodian 
will be entrusted with five Coalition tag number decals, at a time, for assignment and placement, and 
will be responsible for maintaining the Coalition’s Property Inventory Report, as it pertains to the sub-
recipient (actual property in sub-recipient’s custody). 

3. The Property Custodian will review copies of the vendor invoices to ensure all purchases requiring 
inventory recording are added to the Coalition Property Inventory Report. 

4. All purchases that require inventory recording will then be highlighted (or indicated in another 
agreed-upon manner) on the vendor invoice and added to the Coalition’s Property Inventory Report. 

5. As property is purchased, the Property Custodian will submit to the Coalition an updated Coalition 
Property Inventory Report, corresponding vendor invoices w/highlights, and references and/or copies 
of all corresponding Coalition prior approvals. 

6. The Property Custodian will request additional tag number decals, from the Coalition, as needed. 
7. The Property Custodian is responsible for internal inventory relocation reporting, to ensure the 

Coalition Property Inventory Report is kept current. 
8. The Property Custodian will perform annual physical inventories, of all operating sites, with Coalition 

staff by September 1 of each fiscal year, unless the Sub-recipient/Coalition contract is ending in the 
current fiscal year.   

9. If the contract ends June 30 of the current fiscal year, the annual physical inventories must be 
completed with Coalition staff by May 31 in preparation for transition activities. In addition, ALL 
equipment and furniture purchases for the remainder of the contract would require Coalition Prior 
Approval.  

10. In the case of a unilateral contract termination, no equipment or furniture purchased (from the date of 
notification) will be reimbursed by the Coalition. 

11. If, at any time, property is missing or thought to have been stolen, the Property Custodian must alert 
the Coalition immediately. 

12. Before disposing of any Coalition property, the Property Custodian must contact the Coalition and 
follow OEL policy.  Final disposition will be updated on the Coalition Inventory Report. 

 
 
 
 
 



                                     Accounting and Financial Policies and Procedures 
 

 Early Learning Coalition of North Florida 7 

CAPITALIZED ASSETS AND INVENTORY REQUIREMENTS  
 
 
Property Purchased With Federal Funds 
 
The Coalition may occasionally purchase property that will be used exclusively on a program funded by a 
Federal agency.  Property charged to Federal awards will be subject to certain additional policies as described 
in this policy. 
 
All applicable purchases of “property” with Federal funds shall have prior approval, in advance and in writing, 
by the Federal awarding agency and per Federal awarding agency’s prior approval process.  In addition, the 
following policies shall apply regarding property purchased and charged to Federal awards: 
 
1. Adequate insurance coverage will be maintained with respect to property charged to Federal awards. 
 
2. For property (or residual inventories of supplies) with a remaining per unit fair market value of less 

than the Coalition’s capitalization threshold at the conclusion of the award, the Coalition shall retain 
the property without any requirement for notifying the Federal agency.  

 
3. If the remaining per unit fair market value is more than the Coalition’s capitalization threshold, the 

Coalition shall gain a written understanding with the Federal agency regarding disposition of the 
property. This understanding may involve returning the property to the Federal agency, keeping the 
property and compensating the Federal agency, or selling the property and remitting the proceeds, less 
allowable selling costs, to the Federal agency. 

 
4. The Grants and Operations Manager shall determine whether a specific award with a Federal agency 

includes additional property requirements or thresholds and requirements that differ from those 
described above. 

 
5. A physical inventory of all property purchased with Federal funds shall be performed annually. The 

results of the physical inventory shall be reconciled to the accounting records of and Federal reports 
filed by the Coalition. 

 
 
Physical Inventory 
 
A physical inventory of all capitalized assets and inventoried property will be taken on an annual basis by the 
Coalition, as well as whenever there is a change of custodian.  The Coalition must provide the updated Master 
Property Inventory List to OEL no later than October 1 of each year or within 30 days of a change in 
custodian.  All serial numbers and Coalition-assigned tag numbers will be double-checked for accuracy.  This 
physical inventory shall be reconciled to the Fixed Asset Listing and the Property Inventory Report and 
adjustments made as necessary.  All adjustments resulting from this reconciliation will be approved by the 
Finance Manager, and the fixed asset detail will be reconciled to the general ledger.  
 
  



Early Learning Coalition of North Florida 8 
               Accounting and Financial Policies and Procedures 

Annual Required Inventory 

During the annual required inventory, a coalition or other contracted entity should take the following 
steps: 

(a) For the inventory of an item physically present and properly described on the ELC 
Inventory List: 

1. Physically inspect the item.
2. Match the property tag identification number and description of the item

against the ELC Inventory List.
3. Verify the current condition of the item against the condition described on the

ELC Inventory List.
4. Record the initials of the person taking the inventory next to the item on the

ELC Inventory List, indicating the person who inventoried the item, and the
date the inventory was performed.

(b) For the inventory of an item physically present with incorrect or missing information: 

1. If an item’s property tag identification number matches the ELC Inventory List but
the description of the item does not match, the custodian must investigate and correct
the description as appropriate. The custodian should replace the incorrect description
with the correct description, and follow the remaining steps described in paragraph 1.
above.

2. If an item’s property tag identification number does not appear on the ELC
Inventory List, the custodian must investigate and correct the inventory as
appropriate. The custodian should add the item to the Master Property Inventory
List and follow the remaining steps described in paragraph 1. above.

3. If an item does not have a decal or tag with a property tag identification number,
the custodian must investigate and correct the inventory as appropriate. The
custodian should determine whether the item appears on the ELC Inventory List.

4. If the item appears on the ELC Inventory List, determine the identification
number of the original property tag, place a replacement tag with the original
property tag identification number on the item, and follow the steps described in
paragraph 1. above.

5. If the item does not appear on the ELC Inventory List, place a new property tag on
the item, add the item to the ELC Inventory List, and follow the steps described in
paragraph 1. above.

6. If the manufacturer’s serial number on the item does not match the serial number
on the ELC Inventory List, replace the incorrect serial number with the correct
serial number, and follow the steps described in paragraph 1. above.

(c) For the inventory of an item on the ELC Inventory List but no longer physically 
present, make the appropriate status notation as follows: 

1. Transferred: The coalition or other contracted entity transferred the item to
another location or entity (i.e., another contracted entity, same coalition
area). Note the change of location on the ELC Inventory List.

2. Stolen: Someone stole or may have stolen the item. Note on the ELC Inventory
List the date the item was reported stolen. Attach a copy of a police offense
report.



                                     Accounting and Financial Policies and Procedures 
 

 Early Learning Coalition of North Florida 9 

3. Lost: The item is missing and determined lost. Note on the ELC Inventory 
List the date the custodian determined the item to be lost. 

4. Surplus: The item is surplus and reported on the Surplus Property Form 
(Attachment A) along with a signed Surplus Property Affidavit 
(Attachment B). [See OEL Fiscal Guidance 240.02 (most current version) 
for these attachments/forms.] 

(d) Submit a certification of completion email to the ELC's assigned OEL grant manager 
containing the date, required certification signatures (sent by custodian or delegate), 
and any other requested information. This email will be included in the file with a PDF 
copy of the submitted ELC Inventory List from SharePoint. 

(e) Additional Considerations: 

1. Electronic scanning format used for the identification number is acceptable 
only if the recorded data is downloadable to a computer the coalition or other 
contracted entity can then use to generate reports which will include all 
information required on the hard copy of the inventory form. 

2. Equipment must be tracked until it is properly disposed and removed from the 
coalition or other contracted entity’s inventory.  In addition to tangible personal 
property valued at $5,000 or more, small attractive items with a purchase 
value less than $5,000, whether classified as equipment, technological item 
or supplies must be safeguarded and tracked. A coalition or other contracted 
entity must also record in its financial system as property for inventory purposes 
attractive items with a value or cost of less than $5,000 per 69I-72.002, F.A.C. 

3. If the custodian discovers during an inventory any property item the coalition 
or other contracted entity has not included on the ELC Inventory List, but 
meets the requirements for accounting and control, the custodian must create 
an inventory form for the item at that time. After appropriate investigation to 
establish the ownership of the item, the custodian must add it to the property 
records or, if the custodian cannot reasonably establish ownership, the 
coalition or contractor may dispose of the item consistent with Rule 69I-
72.005, F.A.C and in the manner provided by law applicable to surplus 
property, pursuant to sections 273.05 and  273.055, F.S. 

4. The custodian delegate must not personally inventory items for which the 
custodian delegate is responsible. 

 
 
 
Purchases of Shared Assets/Inventoried Property 
 
If the Coalition agrees to share its assets or inventoried property with another coalition, through a common 
contractor/sub-recipient, the coalition with whom the title vests must be established and agreed upon before 
purchase.  In addition, full disclosure of any shared purchase/allocation must be provided with the Coalition’s 
invoice. 
 
 
Receipt of Newly-Purchased Property 
 

https://www.flrules.org/gateway/ruleno.asp?id=69I-73.005
https://www.flrules.org/gateway/ruleno.asp?id=69I-73.005


 
 

 Early Learning Coalition of North Florida 10 
               Accounting and Financial Policies and Procedures 

At the time of arrival, all newly-purchased property shall be examined for obvious physical damage. If an item 
appears damaged or is not in working order, it shall be returned to the vendor immediately. 
 
In addition, descriptions and quantities of items per the packing slip or bill of lading shall be compared to the 
items delivered. Discrepancies should be resolved with the vendor immediately. 
 
Staff who receives shipments must verify the receipt and inspection of all goods by signing and dating the 
vendors’ packing slips, as well as making any corrective notations on the packing slip when applicable. 
 
 
Identification/Marking of Property 
 
Within thirty (30) days of receipt, a coalition or other contracted entity must place a decal or tag on an 
item of grant-purchased property to identify the property. The decal or tag should contain at least a 
unique identification number and the name of the coalition or other contracted entity. The coalition or 
other contracted entity must record the property tag identification number (which may include an 
electronic scanning code ["barcode”] to facilitate electronic inventory procedures) on the ELC 
Inventory List on SharePoint in the Coalition Zone. 
 
 
 
Location of Marking 
 
The coalition or other contracted entity must mark items of a similar nature in a similar manner to 
facilitate identification. In determining a marking location, the coalition/other contracted entity must 
give careful consideration to the intended use of the items; the probability wear, vandalism, or routine 
maintenance functions could obliterate the marking; and the appropriateness of the marking method 
chosen. Additionally, the location of the marking and the marking method chosen must not mar the 
appearance of the item. 
 
 
Use of Equipment 
 
Disclosures related to the use of equipment are mandated by uniform grant guidance [45 CFR Part 75.320(c), 
Use of equipment]. 
 

• Equipment is used by the funding program/project as long as needed; 
• If there’s extra capacity available, use the equipment for other partnering programs/projects; 
• If used for other programs/projects any related usage fees must equal those charged by other 

private companies for the same equipment; and 
• If new equipment is needed, current equipment may be sold or used for trade-in negotiations 

to offset newer equipment costs (subject to OEL prior approval). 
 
 
Maintenance Procedures and Safeguards of Equipment 
 



                                     Accounting and Financial Policies and Procedures 
 

 Early Learning Coalition of North Florida 11 

Federal regulations require that the custodian implement adequate procedures to ensure the equipment is kept 
in good condition and safeguards to prevent loss, damage, or theft of the property.      
 
The Coalition uses the following three steps as a general guideline to ensure proper maintenance and 
safeguarding of equipment items have been performed: 

(1)   Review all items purchased with federal and state funds to determine whether they are in good      
  condition. 

(2)   Provide maintenance services to items identified as not in good condition. 
(3)   Initiate a disposition process for those items that are not usable or unable to repair. 

 
In addition, the Coalition ensures preventative measures are taken such as I.T. equipment maintained by the 
coalition’s I.T. vendor on a regular basis, adequately securing equipment to mitigate risk of theft, and 
instructing staff on proper use of equipment. 
 
Note:  Leased equipment (such as copiers, printers, etc.) are not listed on inventory reports, but are maintained 
per the lease agreement. 
 
 
Transfer of Property and Property Records 
 
The inventory custodian must document the transfer of grant-purchased property from one office to another, or 
from one location to another within the same Coalition.  This is done by updating the new physical location on 
the Master Property Inventory List and the Property Tag Assignment records. 
 
 
 
Lost or Stolen Grant-Purchased Property 
 
Upon completion of a physical inventory or other discovery, the custodian must reconcile inventory 
records as appropriate. This includes comparing the data listed on the ELC Inventory List with the 
individual property records. The custodian must investigate noted differences such as location, 
condition, and custodian and correct as appropriate. 
 
Alternatively, the custodian must relocate the item to its assigned location and custodian in the individual 
property record. Further, the custodian must promptly report to management items not located during the 
inventory process for thorough investigation. If the investigation determines someone stole or may have stolen 
the item, the custodian must update the ELC Inventory List at the time of determination, and file a report with 
the appropriate law enforcement agency describing the missing item and circumstances surrounding its 
disappearance [Chapter 69I-72.006(6)(b), FAC]. 
 
 
Disposition of Property  
 
The Coalition Board of Directors approves the disposal of all capitalized fixed assets and inventoried property 
that may be worn out, obsolete, or no longer needed for the original project or program.   

https://www.flrules.org/gateway/ruleno.asp?id=69I-73.006&amp;Section=0
https://www.flrules.org/gateway/ruleno.asp?id=69I-73.006&amp;Section=0


 
 

 Early Learning Coalition of North Florida 12 
               Accounting and Financial Policies and Procedures 

 
Priority for Disposition 
 
When disposing of property, the custodian must use the equipment in connection with its other federally-
sponsored activities, if any, in the following order of priority: 

(1)   Programs, projects or activities the Health and Human Services (HHS) awarding agency sponsors. 
(2)   Programs, projects or activities other HHS awarding agencies sponsor. 
(3)   Programs, projects or activities other federal agencies sponsor. 

 
Effective July 1, 2015, all equipment items in excess of $5,000 proposed to be disposed must obtain OEL 
written prior approval [45 CFR Part 75.320(e)(2), Disposition]. 
 
Based on section 273.055, F.S. and Rule 69I-72.005, F.A.C., when original or replacement equipment 
acquired under a grant, sub-grant or contract is no longer needed for the original purpose or program or 
for other activities currently supported by OEL, disposition of the equipment will be made as follows. 
 
(a) Items of equipment with an acquisition cost of less than $5,000 may be retained, sold or 
otherwise disposed of with no further prior approval requests or reporting requirement obligations to 
OEL.1 

(b) Items of equipment with an acquisition cost of $5,000 or more and a useful life of one year or 
more may be retained or sold and OEL shall has a right to an amount calculated by multiplying the 
current market value or proceeds from the sale by OEL’s share of the equipment’s original costs. (i.e., 
if 100% of the equipment cost was charged to OEL-funded program, 100% of the disposal proceeds are 
subject to OEL instructions). 1 

(c) If the custodian has no need for equipment items with a current market value less than 
$5,000, the custodian must perform the following tasks: 

1. A coalition or other contracted entity which has a disposition policy in place may follow its 
policy consistent with sections 273.05 and 273.055, F.S., and Rule 69I-72.005, F.A.C. 

2. A coalition or other contracted entity which has no such policy in place must submit a 
request to OEL for approval prior to disposition. 

3. When a coalition or other contracted entity legally disposes of equipment in accordance with 
the coalition’s or other contracted entity’s policy, the coalition or other contracted entity must 
record the following information on the individual property record for each item. 

• Date of disposition. 
• Manner of disposition (sold, donated, transferred, cannibalized, scrapped, 

destroyed, traded). 
• For cannibalized, (e.g., the process of dismantling portions or components of a property 

item to repair, replace, upgrade, or extend the useful life of other property items) 
scrapped, or destroyed property, the identity of the employee(s) witnessing the 
disposition. 

• For items disposed of, a notation identifying any related transactions (e.g., receipt for 
sale of the item, insurance recovery, trade-in). 

• For property certified as surplus, reference to documentation evidencing the coalition 
or contractor disposed of such property in the manner Section 273.05 or  273.055, F.S., 

https://www.flrules.org/gateway/ruleno.asp?id=69I-73.005
https://www.flrules.org/gateway/ruleno.asp?id=69I-73.005


                                     Accounting and Financial Policies and Procedures 
 

 Early Learning Coalition of North Florida 13 

requires. 

(d) If the custodian identifies equipment items with a current market value of more than $5,000 for 
disposal, such equipment items must be processed in accordance with 2 CFR §  200.313(e)(2), 
Equipment, with the assistance of and prior written approval from OEL. 1 
 

1Funds from such equipment sales/disposals are not considered SR/VPK program income; however, these 
funds will be treated as collections directly attributed to SR and/or VPK program operations. Such monies 
can be retained at the local entity level and used for allowable SR/VPK program activities. See OEL 
Program Guidance 240.01, Cash Management Procedures, for more details. 

 
 
 
Recording and Reporting of Disposed Items 
 
If an item is sold, scrapped, donated or stolen, adjustments need to be made to the Fixed Asset Listing and 
Property Inventory Report after following prescribed applicable awarding agency instructions.  If money is 
received for the item, then the difference between the money received and the "book value" (purchase price 
less depreciation) of the item will be recorded as a loss (if the money received is less than the book value) or a 
gain (if the money received is more than the book value).  Proceeds received for inventory items are program 
income for the program that originally funded the purchase. 
 
Note: Per FS 274.07, after each annual physical inventory, all disposition documents must be board approved.  
After approval (and upon actual disposition of the item), the individual property record for each item lawfully 
disposed of must be transferred to a disposed property file.  The inactive surplus disposed property file must 
then be maintained for at least five years after the date of disposition. 
 
 
Write-Offs of Property  
 
Any and all items that are discovered to be missing or stolen must be reported immediately to the Coalition, 
who will then notify and follow the procedures of the awarding agency.  After following all required 
processes, the Coalition will remove items off the accounting records that are no longer in the Coalition’s (or 
sub-recipient’s) custody. 
 
   
Surplus Computer Hard Drive Disposal (aka cleansing or data wiping) Processes 
 
The coalition or other contracted entity shall establish security controls to protect the confidentiality, 
integrity, and availability of data and IT resources relative to equipment items to be disposed by the 
coalition. These controls related to the surplus computer hard drive are intended to minimize the risk 
the coalition information may be compromised. 
 
 
 
Transfer of Property Records 
 

https://www.law.cornell.edu/cfr/text/2/200.313
https://www.law.cornell.edu/cfr/text/2/200.313


 
 

 Early Learning Coalition of North Florida 14 
               Accounting and Financial Policies and Procedures 

The coalition or other contracted entity must transfer to a disposed property file, upon disposition of 
the item, the individual property record for each item of which the coalition or other contracted entity 
lawfully disposes. 
 
 
Retention of Records 
 
The coalition or other contracted entity shall maintain all accounts, records and other supporting 
documentation related to the acquisition and disposal of each tangible personal property item 
throughout the life of the property item and for a minimum of five (5) years following the property 
item’s disposal or until the resolution of any investigation, litigation, audit or claim, whichever occurs 
last. 
 
 
 
Responsibilities 
 
It is the responsibility of the coalition or other contracted entity to: (1) establish and implement policies and 
procedures for ensuring adherence to all these laws, regulations, and rules, and (2) be knowledgeable about 
federal and state requirements, as well as local policies and procedures, and to ensure all applicable laws, 
regulations, rules, policies, and procedures are appropriately implemented. Failure to abide by these federal 
and state requirements can result in auditing or monitoring exceptions, and may negatively impact the ability 
of the coalition or other contracted entity to meet program goals and objectives. 
  



Early Learning Coalition of North Florida, Inc.  
pg. 1 

 

BYLAWS 
 
Adopted:  03/20/2013 
Effective: 07/01/2013 
Revised: 09/16/2015, 03/11/2020, 03/10/2021, 12/01/21 
Revised: 03/10/2021 
 

ARTICLE 1 
NAME, AUTHORITY AND LOCATION 

 
Section 1.1. NAME 

The name of the organization shall be the Early Learning Coalition of North 
Florida Inc., comprised of Baker, Bradford, Clay, Nassau, Putnam and St. Johns 
Counties, hereinafter referred to as the Coalition.  

 
Section 1.2. AUTHORITY 
  The Coalition is authorized by the School Readiness Program and the Voluntary  
  Prekindergarten Education Program of the Florida Statutes or any applicable state  
  law revising these chapters.  
 
Section 1.3. LOCATION 
  The main administrative office shall be located at 2450 Old Moultrie Rd., Ste.  
  103, St. Augustine, FL, 32086, in St. Johns County.  The Coalition may have  
  other offices as the members may determine or as the affairs of the organization  
  may require.  
 

ARTICLE II 
PURPOSE AND RESPONSIBILITIES 

 
Section 2.1. PURPOSE 
  The purpose of the Coalition shall be to carry out the duties and responsibilities  
  invested and entrusted to the Coalition pursuant to the provisions of School  
  Readiness Program and Voluntary Prekindergarten Education Program and  
  subsequent amendments.  The Coalition recognizes the primacy of parents as their 
  children’s first teachers and the importance of children entering the education  
  system ready to learn and seeks to assist parents by providing opportunities for  
  the at-risk birth-to-kindergarten population to enhance their chances for education 
  success by participating in quality school readiness programs that can better  
  prepare them for school.  
 
Section 2.2. RESPONSIBILITIES 
  In carrying out the intent of the School Readiness Program and Voluntary   
  Prekindergarten Education Programs, the Coalition shall develop a plan for  
  implementing Early Learning Programs to meet legislative requirements and  

Commented [TD1]: I would move the last date up and 
keep them on one line. 

Commented [TD2]: I would just add the ‘s’. 



Early Learning Coalition of North Florida, Inc. 
pg. 2 

performance standards and outcome measures established by the agency(ies) 
under relevant statutes.  

2.2.1. The Coalition’s service delivery plan may have county specific objectives, 
priorities, rates and fees based on the specific needs of each population.   
The Board will approve any and all plan recommendations through the  
plan development and amendment process and included in primary  
services contracts.  Coalition or contracted staff may submit  
recommendations for plan revisions as needed to the Board of Directors. 

2.2.2. The plan shall be reviewed and revised as necessary but at least 
biennially.  

2.2.3. Prohibited activities: Notwithstanding any other provision of these Bylaws 
or the Articles of Incorporation, this corporation and its members shall not  
conduct or carry on any activities not permitted to be conducted or carried   
on by any organization that shall be exempt under Section 501(c)(3) of the 
Internal Revenue Code and its Regulations, now existing or hereafter  
amended or as referenced in Florida Statute.  

2.2.4. These bylaws and the Coalition’s Articles of Incorporation are part of the 
Coalition Plan and any amendments to them are an amendment to the Plan. 

Section 2.3. BOARD MEMBERS 
Role: Board members acting as a group, set policies and goals for the Chief  
Executive Officer to implement and achieve.  Board members do not take actions 
as individuals, they must act as a team; members who take actions without  
approval of the full board seriously damage the organization.  

Function:  All corporate powers shall be exercised by or under the authority  
of, and the business and affairs for the Corporation and shall be managed under 
the direction of the Board of Directors who may also be referred to as the   
“Coalition”, “Coalition Board” or “Board Members”.  

2.3.1. Board Members must ensure their organization has adequate finances and that the 
funds are responsibly spent.  Board Members are “trustees” of the organization’s  
funding.  This may be accomplished by ensuring the money was spent effectively 
to deliver the school readiness and voluntary prekindergarten programs and  
services that have been authorized through routine financial and performance  
audits.  

2.3.2. Board Members must participate actively in making decisions and supporting the 
Coalition and its Chief Executive Officer. A Board’s role is to provide the 
direction to the Chief Executive Officer in which they want the Chief Executive 
Officer to take the organization. Board Members make decisions that affect the 
organization as a whole. 

2.3.3. Management of individual employees is delegated to the Chief Executive Officer. 
2.3.4. Board Members, acting as a full board, select and evaluate the Chief Executive  

Officer. 

ARTICLE III 

Commented [TD3]: Needs a period. 



Early Learning Coalition of North Florida, Inc.  
pg. 3 

 

MEMBERSHIP 
 
Section 3.1. BOARD MEMBERSHIP 
  The Coalition will follow the requirements of the current version of Florida  
  Statute regarding Early Learning Coalition Membership. 
 
Section 3.2. MEMBERSHIP TERMS: 
  The Executive/Administrative Committee will oversee membership to assure that  
  the membership is geographically representative of each county served by the  
  Coalition.  
 

3.2.1. The Chair, who is appointed by the Governor of Florida, may serve two (2) four-
year terms.  

3.2.2. Provider Representatives: Private For-Profit Child Care Provider Representatives 
which include Child Care Center and Family Child Care Home providers may 
serve one (1) four-year term.  The provider representative seat will be nominated 
for the full service area of Baker, Bradford, Clay, Nassau, Putnam and St. Johns 
Counties.  The Coalition will rotate each term from private for-profit child care 
provider to private for-profit family child care home provider.  When the seat 
becomes vacant, it will be advertised to either the private-for-profit or child care 
home provider audience depending on the rotation.  The faith based child care 
provider representative may serve two (2) four-year terms.   

3.2.3. Private Sector and mandated members may serve two (2) terms; terms will be 
staggered and must be a uniform length not to exceed four (4) years.  These 
mandated representatives will be rotated to allow representation from each county 
when all counties are not represented by virtue of the area served by the mandated 
member.  A mandated member from an entity that serves all counties is the only 
person  who can fill that board seat and would not be subject to “the one-year 
break in service” requirement.  

 3.2.4. Ex officio members will be nominated for membership and elected in the same  
  manner as other required members.  Length of terms for ex officio members will  
  be the same as other required members and can serve a maximum of two (2) four- 
  year terms.  
 3.2.5. Private sector and mandated members may be nominated to serve additional terms 
  after a one-year break in service.  
 3.2.6. Any representative member may be removed by two-thirds (2/3) vote of a quorum 
  of the members whenever, in their judgment, the best interests of the organization  
  would be served.  Notice of removal shall be given in writing to the member by  
  the Chair prior to the next Coalition meeting.  
 3.2.7. Unexcused absences from two (2) consecutive meetings within a twelve-month  
  period by a representative or appointed member is equivalent to resignation from  
  the Coalition.  
 3.2.8. Mandated members with three (3) consecutive unexcused absences from 

meetings or six (6) unexcused absences from meetings within a twelve-month 
period without due cause may be notified by the Chair that their membership is 
not in good standing. 

Commented [TD4]: Are their terms shorter?  This 
wording is tricky.  I would just double check on the wording. 
 
This is fine.  Spoke with Dawn. 

Commented [TD5]: We had a finding on this some time 
ago.  I would just recheck to make sure if there were any 
revisions to this section. 
 
This is fine.  Spoke with Dawn. 



Early Learning Coalition of North Florida, Inc. 
pg. 4 

3.2.9. Any member may resign by giving notice to the Chair.  Acceptance of such 
resignation shall not be necessary to become effective.   

3.1.10. Members will not receive any compensation for their services. 

Section 3.3. MEMBERSHIP DUTIES 
Serving on the Coalition requires a commitment of time including attending  
regular Coalition meetings, committee involvement, and reading and becoming 
educated about many aspects of early childhood development, school readiness 
and voluntary prekindergarten.  

3.3.1. All Board Members are subject to the ethics provisions outlined in Part III of 
Chapter 12 of the Florida Statutes, General Provisions: Code of Ethics for Public 
Officers and Employees.  Specifically, s. 112.313, s. 112.3135, and s. 112.3143,  
as well as additional directives established by Statute or Rule and are required to  
sign a statement agreeing to comply.  

ARTICLE IV 
MANAGEMENT 

Section 4.1. POWER AND DUTIES 
Powers, management, and control of the Coalition, and all of its affairs, shall be 
vested in members as outlined in the “Early Learning Act” or its legislative  
successor.  The Board Members, upon appropriate resolution, may delegate  
certain responsibilities to its Chief Executive Officer.  

Section 4.2. VOTING 
Fifty-one (51) percent of the Board Members serving at the time of a meeting 
shall constitute a quorum for the transaction of business.  The act of a majority of 
the members present at a meeting at which a quorum is present shall be the act of 
the board members.  

4.2.1. At any duly noticed meeting of the Coalition, fifty-one (51) percent of the 
members present shall constitute a quorum for the purpose of conducting   
business.  If less than a majority of the members are present at said meeting, a  
majority of the members present may adjourn the meeting without further notice. 

4.2.2. No member of the Coalition may appoint a designee to act in his or her place. A 
member may send a representative to Coalition meetings, but that representative 
will have no voting privileges.  

4.2.3. Conflict of interest may occur when an item is presented for a vote that will 
directly affect the member, their employer, another organization they are involved 
with, a  member of their family, or in which they have a direct financial interest.   
Members shall disclose the conflict, abstain from discussion or voting on the  
matter, and fill out required Memorandum of Voting Conflict for Board Members  
form to be filed with meetings minutes.  Additionally, Board Members are  
required to sign and comply with a Conflict of Interest and Ethics Compliance 

 Statement.  



Early Learning Coalition of North Florida, Inc. 
pg. 5 

Section 4.3. MEETINGS 
Regular meetings shall be held at a time and place to be decided by the members.  
Regular meeting of the board shall be held with appropriate public notice.   
Written notice of the time and place of all meetings of the board or committees  
shall be given either by personal delivery, regular mail, e-mail, or facsimile  
transmission at least five (5) days before the meeting.  Notice of all meetings shall 
be made public and all meetings are open to the public.  

4.3.1. The annual meeting of the Coalition will be held each year on the first quarter 
after the end of the fiscal year.  

4.3.2. Special meetings of the Coalition members may be called by or at the request of 
the Chair or by quorum of members.  The administration for the Coalition will 
locate a place within the counties or in a central location.  

4.3.3. The agenda and order of business at all Coalition meetings shall be developed by 
the Chief Executive Officer in conjunction with the Chair of the Board or 
Committee Chair.  

4.3.4. Minutes of all Coalition meetings shall be kept pursuant to Florida Statute 
286.011, Government in the Sunshine Act.  These minutes shall be provided to  
members at least five (5) days prior to the next scheduled meeting.  These minutes 
shall be a summarization of the meeting containing documentation of all formal  
motions made by the Coalition or Committee.  

4.3.5. Notice of all Coalition meetings will be made pursuant to Florida Statute 286.001.  
Notice of all Coalition meetings shall be provided in a manner, including   
electronically, designed to provide reasonable and actual notice to members or 
other interested parties or as otherwise required by law.  

4.3.6. Members serve on the board as outlined in Florida Statute 286.011.  Members 
may  participate in formal board and committee discussions and may make 
motions and cast votes on action items.  

4.3.7. Members shall notify the Chief Executive Officer or designee in advance of 
meetings, if possible, when they cannot attend. 

4.3.8. Members shall read the rules for Meeting in the Sunshine and abide by their 
mandates and attend a formal new member orientation.  

4.3.9. Members of the Coalition or a committee of the Coalition may participate in a 
meeting of such board or such committee by means of a conference telephone or  
similar telecommunications technology allowing for public access by means of  
which persons participating in the meeting may communicate and may hear each 
other at the same time.  Participation by such means shall constitute presence in  
person at a meeting.  

Section 4.4. PARLIAMENTARY AUTHORITY: 
Robert’s Rules of Order, Newly Revised, may govern the Coalition in all cases to 
which they are applicable and in which they are not inconsistent with these  
bylaws and any special rules of order the Coalition may adopt.  However, the  
failure to strictly comply with the provisions of Robert’s Rules of Order shall not  
affect the validity of any action taken by the Coalition provided said action is  



Early Learning Coalition of North Florida, Inc. 
pg. 6 

taken by the Coalition in conformity with these bylaws unless it can be   
affirmatively demonstrated that the failure to follow Robert’s Rules of Order  
directly resulted in a lack of understanding of the action being proposed or other 
injustice has occurred.  

ARTICLE V 
OFFICERS 

Section 5.1. ELECTION OF OFFICERS: 
The officers of the Coalition shall consist of the Chair, Vice Chair, Treasurer, and 
the Secretary.  The Governor of Florida will appoint the Chair of the Coalition,  
who is a private sector member, as well as two (2) additional private sector board  
members.  A member in good standing shall be eligible for nomination and  
election to any office of this Coalition, other than the Chair.  The following  
applies to all offices, except for Chair. 

5.1.1. The Board shall convene in the first quarter of the fiscal year for their annual 
meeting at which time they will determine eligible candidates for office and to 
prepare an official slate of nominees. Any person so nominated shall give their 
consent to nomination and election as an officer. 

5.1.2. Elected officers shall be voted on at the annual meeting and installed at the next 
regularly scheduled meeting and shall serve for a term of one (1) year or until a  
successor is duly qualified and elected.  Officers may serve in the same position 
for a maximum of two (2) consecutive years.   

5.1.3. If an office is vacated prior to the completion of a one-year term, a member in 
good standing may be appointed by the Chair and approved by the members to fill 
the vacancy until the term ends.  

Section 5.2. OFFICERS OF THE COALITION: 

5.2.1. The Chair shall preside at all meetings of the Coalition and perform the duties 
which are the will of the full Board.  The Chair shall appoint Chairs of all   
Committees, except for the Executive/Administrative Committee Chair in which 
the Board Chair serves as Chair.  

5.2.2. The Vice Chair shall perform the duties of the Chair when the Chair is absent 
and have such other responsibilities as may be designated by the Chair.  

5.2.3. The Treasurer, in cooperation with the relevant Coalition staff, ensures accurate 
accounting of monies received and expended for the use of the Coalition. and will 

make a monthly report at the Coalition Board Meetings. 
5.2.4. The Secretary shall, with administrative staff, ensure that notice required by 

these bylaws is given, keep records of all proceedings of the Coalition in   
cooperation with the staff, keep record of attendance, and report correspondence  
to the Coalition at each meeting.  Correspondence shall be conducted relative to  
the nomination of required membership and any other business as called upon by  
the Chair. The Secretary shall perform the duties of the Chair when the Chair and 
Vice Chair are absent and have such other responsibilities as may be designated  
by the Chair.  

Commented [TD6]: I think this may should say 2 
consecutive terms (instead of years).  The next section 
mentions terms also. 

This is fine.  Spoke with Dawn. 

Commented [TD7]: I would check on Dawn with this.  
This wording may need to be changed.  The Treasurer 
doesn’t ‘make a monthly report’.  Could be a future finding 
if not fixed. 

We need to delete this last part of this sentence.  That means 
this will have to go to the board for approval.  Rhonda, 
Would you get this ready for the December board meeting? 



Early Learning Coalition of North Florida, Inc.  
pg. 7 

 

 
ARTICLE VI 

COMMITTEES 
 
Section 6.1. COMMITTEES AND COMMITTEE MEMBERSHIP: 
  Ad-hoc committees may be established by the Coalition Chair as deemed   
  necessary for a specific purpose or task.  
   

Standing Committees of the Coalition shall include: An Executive/Administrative 
Committee.  The Chair of this standing committee may designate ad-hoc 
committees to perform a specific task or function.  Committee Chairs shall be 
appointed by the Chair of the Coalition, except for the Chair of the 
Executive/Administrative Committee, who will be the Chair of the Board.  

  
 6.1.1. Executive/Administrative Committee: The Coalition will establish a standing  
  committee, the Executive/Administrative Committee.  This committee shall have  
  and exercise the authority of the Coalition between scheduled meetings of the  
  Board and when a decision must be made before the next scheduled Board  
  meeting.  This committee has the full empowerment of the Coalition to make  
  decisions on behalf of the Board as long as a quorum is present.  Actions of the  
  Executive/Administrative Committee shall be ratified by the Board at the first  
  meeting following the action.  The committee will be comprised of the Chair of  
  the Board, who shall be the Committee Chair, the Vice-Chair, the Treasurer, the  
  Secretary, and at least four additional members.  The Chair of this committee or  

by the majority of the committee, may commune Ad-hoc committees for a 
specific purpose or task.   

   
  The Committee is charged with the oversight of budget development, accurate  
  tracking of expenditures, monitoring and accountability of the funds, and will  
  ensure adequate financial controls in coordination with appropriate staff.  This  
  committee will also lead the Board in regularly reviewing and updating the Board  
  committee structure, the Board committee statement of its roles and areas of  
  responsibility, what is expected of individual Board members as well as   
  recruitment and retention of Board members and other activities outlined in the  
  Board governance policy.  The committee will also regularly review the Board’s  
  practices regarding member participation, conflict of interest, confidentiality, and  
  suggest improvement where needed.   
 
Section 6.2. COMMITTEE MEMBERSHIP 
  
 6.2.1. The Chair of each committee shall be appointed by the Chair of the Coalition,  
  except for the Chair of the Executive/Administrative Committee.   
 6.2.2. Each Coalition committee shall consist of the Committee Chair and other   
  Coalition members.  Each committee shall consist of the Committee Chair and at  
  least four additional members of the Coalition.  



Early Learning Coalition of North Florida, Inc. 
pg. 8 

6.2.3. Meeting minutes shall be provided to members at least five (5) days prior to the 
next regularly scheduled meeting.   

6.2.4. Notice of all committee meetings will be made pursuant to Florida Statute 
286.011. 

ARTICLE VII 
BOOKS AND RECORDS 

Section 7.1. RECORDKEEPING: 
Correct and complete books and records of the proceedings of the Coalition, its  
committees, and its financial accounts will be kept and maintained at the principal 
office of the Coalition.  All records and information shall be considered public  
record for purposes of Chapter 119. F.S. and shall be subject to inspection by any  
member of the Coalition, the public, or any agency(ies) under relevant statutes at  
any reasonable time.  

Section 7.2. MEMBERSHIP LIST: 
The organization shall keep an accurate record of the names and addresses of the 
members.  

ARTICLE VIII 
FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT 

Section 8.1. FISCAL YEAR: 
The fiscal year of the organization shall begin on July 1st and end on June 30th. 

8.1.1. An audit of the books and records of the organization shall be conducted  
annually.  
8.1.2. The audit report shall be presented to the members within thirty (30) days 
of its completion.  

Section 8.2. MAINTENANCE OF BUDGETS 
An overall budget will be prepared and maintained.  Expenses will be charged 
proportionately to each county.  All match- and county-specific fundraising  
generated will remain with the county from which it comes.  

Section 8.3. ADMINISTRATIVE STAFF 
The Chief Executive Officer reports to the Coalition’s Board of Directors.  All 
other staff report to the Chief Executive Officer or the Office Manager in the  
absence of the Chief Executive Officer.  

BYLAWS IX 

Section 9.1. IMPLEMENTATION AND INTERPRETATION: 

Commented [TD8]: This conflicts with our Succession 
Plan, which names Fiscal and Operations Managers to be 
interim CEOs in Dawn’s absence.  We may need to change 
the Succession Plan to Office Manager.  We need to check 
with Dawn on this. 

With the annual updates (that will go to the March meeting), 
the CEO Succession Plan will be updated for Dawn’s interim 
to be the Office Manager.   



Early Learning Coalition of North Florida, Inc. 
pg. 9 

These Bylaws shall become effective immediately upon adoption.  The 
Coalition’s interpretation of the Bylaws shall be considered the correct  
interpretation when reached by majority vote. 

Section 9.2. AMENDMENTS: 
These Bylaws may be altered, amended or repealed and new Bylaws may be 
adopted by a two-thirds (2/3) majority of the members at any regular meeting or 
at any called meeting of the members, if at least five (5) days written notice is 
given of an intention to alter, amend, or repeal these Bylaws at such meeting.  

_______________________________________ _________________ 
Signature of Authorized Representative Date 

_______________________________________ 
Print Name of Authorized Representative 

________________________________________ 
Title of Authorized Representative 



Executive Summary – Provider Rate 
Increase 
Overview 

Provider rates paid by the ELC are below the market rate (75th percentile of all rates in a county 
by age group and care type) in most categories except infant care where they are currently set at 
the 75th percentile. Low rates leave large gaps in what we pay versus what providers charge 
causing hardships for both providers and parents. According to federal and state regulations, 
the ELC should to the extent possible pay providers at the 75th percentile. While the ELC does 
not have the funding to raise all rates to the 75th percentile, we do have funding to set rates for 
all care levels except school age for all care types to the median rate or higher.  

Both last year and this year, the ELC has received an increase in School Readiness funding and 
has eliminated our waiting list. Additionally, for the past 2 years, despite multiple outreach 
strategies, the overall enrollment has dropped.  

Report Findings 

The ELC has received $3,212,211 in additional School Readiness Funding which was meant to 
clear the wait list and to fund a provider rate increase that DEL implemented last year. DEL’s 
provider rate increase was effective as of January 1, 2021, The ELC has been clearing the 
waitlist on a weekly basis and actively recruiting School Readiness families. However, this still 
leaves the ELC projecting a surplus of $3million this year before this additional rate increase 
due in part to DEL’s increase in funding to the ELC was more than needed to end the wait list 
and increase rates. However, the larger reason for the surplus is a lack of demand for subsidized 
care. This is likely due y to the pandemic, either directly or indirectly but even as conditions 
have improved, our enrollment numbers have stayed relatively flat. This is true despite multiple 
outreach efforts. At least 78% of our budget must be spent on direct services (child care) so very 
little of the surplus could be diverted to other program areas. 



Furthermore, it has been noted that there are 3 part-time rates in Nassau County that we are 
proposing lowering because an anomaly in the DEL data last year caused the part-time rates to 
be higher than the full-time rates for the same care-levels. The full-time rates could not be raised 
higher without setting them above the maximum allowable so the part-time rates must be 
adjusted downward.  

The proposed rate increases effective on January 1, 2022, will cost approximately $918,500 this 
year. Next year, the costs will double to approximately $1,837.000 since it is for the full year. 
Even with the increase we are projecting a surplus without further enrollment and so we will 
continue our outreach efforts even if the increase is approved. We will continue enrolling and 
clearing our waiting list but if demand does not improve, we would have the option to de-
obligate the funds if needed so that other ELC’s could benefit. Some of the surplus can be used in 
other areas if at least 78% of the total spent is used for direct services. Should we find that 
enrollment catches up with our funding at some future point, we can stop enrollments or even 
allow families attrition out of the program over time.  

Conclusion 

We are proposing a targeted rate increase across the board rate for all providers in all 
counties for ages birth to 5 so that rates are at least equal to the median market rate. 
Infant rates are already set at the maximum and so will not receive an increase. Three 
part-time rates in one county will be decreased so that they are not higher than the full-
time rate. This will be a help to both providers and parents and is supported by both 
groups as borne out by our survey results which are attached.  



Rate Increase

1 / 4

84.60% 368

15.40% 67

Q1 Do you support a School Readiness provider rate increase that would
bring most care levels to the median cost of care in your county?

Answered: 435 Skipped: 4

TOTAL 435

0% 10% 20% 30% 40% 50% 60% 70% 80% 90% 100%

Yes

No

ANSWER CHOICES RESPONSES

Yes

No



Rate Increase

2 / 4

82.38% 360

17.62% 77

Q2 For the past year or more, the  ELC of North Florida has not had
waiting list for School Readiness services but also serves less children that
it has historically.  Even with this increase, the ELC anticipates continued

enrollment in the program in the foreseeable future.  Do you support a rate
increase in this circumstance?

Answered: 437 Skipped: 2

TOTAL 437

0% 10% 20% 30% 40% 50% 60% 70% 80% 90% 100%

Yes

No

ANSWER CHOICES RESPONSES

Yes

No



Rate Increase

3 / 4

89.95% 394

5.94% 26

0.68% 3

3.42% 15

Q3 Are you a parent, provider or community partner
Answered: 438 Skipped: 1

TOTAL 438

0% 10% 20% 30% 40% 50% 60% 70% 80% 90% 100%

Parent

Provider

Community
Partner

Other (please
specify)

ANSWER CHOICES RESPONSES

Parent

Provider

Community Partner

Other (please specify)



Rate Increase

4 / 4

Q4 Do you have any other thoughts you would like to share?
Answered: 227 Skipped: 212



Gold Seal Registered Informal 

Differential Family Child Care Homes         Providers 

27.02 5.40            36.00 7.20 35.00 7.00            - 
25.00 5.00            27.20 5.44 27.20 5.44            - 
23.02 4.60            26.35 5.27 25.50 5.10            - 
21.00 4.20            22.50 4.50 22.50 4.50            - 
21.00 4.20            22.50 4.50 21.00 4.20            - 
21.00 4.20            21.00 4.20 20.78 4.16            - 
13.48 2.70            12.84 2.57 12.84 2.57            - 
27.02 5.40            36.00 7.20 35.00 7.00            - 

Licensed Family 
Child Care Gold Registered

 Homes Seal 
Differential Family Child Care Homes

27.00 5.40            29.00   5.80 27.00  5.40            -  

24.00 4.80            21.25   4.25 21.25  4.25            -  

20.40 4.08            21.25 4.25 21.25 4.25            - 
17.00 3.40            18.00 3.60 17.25 3.45            - 
17.00 3.40            17.25 3.45 16.50 3.30            - 
17.00 3.40            16.50 3.30 16.50 3.30            - 
8.56 1.71            8.56 1.71 8.56 1.71            - 

27.00 5.40            29.00 5.80 27.00 5.40            - 

36 <48 MTH

EARLY LEARNING COALITION OF __North Florida__(Baker)_________________________

(TOD) 12<24 MTH

(2YR)

DAILY PAYMENT-RATE SCHEDULE (Effective ___1/1/2022_____________________________)
Full-Time Daily Rates (Completed by COALITION)

CARE CODE Description

Licensed or 
Exempt Centers 
and Public/Non-
Public Schools

Gold Seal 
Differential

Licensed Family 
Child Care Homes

Gold Seal 
Differential 

Step 3: Complete the payment rate template using the proposed provider payment rates.

(SCH) In School

(SPCR) Special Needs

(PR4) 48 <60 MTH

(PR5) 60 <72 MTH

(INF) <12 MTH

24 <36 MTH

(PR3)

(PR5) 60 <72 MTH

(SCH) In School

(SPCR) Special Needs

(INF) <12 MTH

(TOD) 12<24 MTH

(PR4) 48 <60 MTH

(2YR) 24 <36 MTH

(PR3) 36 <48 MTH

Part-Time Daily Rates (Completed by COALITION)

CARE CODE Description

Licensed or 
Exempt Centers 
and Public/Non-
Public Schools 

Gold Seal 
Differential

Gold Seal 
Differential Informal Providers 



Gold Seal Registered Informal 

Differential Family Child Care Homes         Providers 

40.00 8.00            36.00 7.20 35.00 7.00            
22.00 4.40            27.20 5.44 27.20 5.44            
22.00 4.40            26.35 5.27 25.50 5.10            
22.00 4.40            22.50 4.50 22.50 4.50            
22.00 4.40            22.50 4.50 21.00 4.20            
22.00 4.40            21.00 4.20 20.78 4.16            
12.84 2.57            12.84 2.57 12.84 2.57            
40.00 8.00            36.00 7.20 35.00 7.00            

 Licensed Family 
Child Care  Gold  Registered 

  Homes  Seal 
Differential  Family Child Care Homes 

35.00 7.00   29.00 5.80   27.00 5.40  

15.00 3.00   21.25 4.25   21.25 4.25  

15.00 3.00   21.25 4.25   21.25 4.25  

15.00 3.00   18.00 3.60   17.25 3.45  

15.00 3.00   17.25 3.45   16.50 3.30  

15.00 3.00   16.50 3.30   16.50 3.30  

9.63 1.93   8.56 1.71   8.56 1.71  

35.00 7.00   29.00 5.80   27.00 5.40  

Part-Time Daily Rates (Completed by COALITION)

CARE CODE Description

 Licensed or 
Exempt Centers 
and Public/Non-
Public Schools  

 Gold Seal 
Differential 

 Gold Seal 
Differential  

 Informal 
Providers  

(INF) <12 MTH

(TOD) 12<24 MTH

(PR4) 48 <60 MTH

(2YR) 24 <36 MTH

(PR3) 36 <48 MTH

(PR5) 60 <72 MTH

(SCH) In School

(SPCR) Special Needs

Step 3: Complete the payment rate template using the proposed provider payment rates.

(SCH) In School

(SPCR) Special Needs

(PR4) 48 <60 MTH

(PR5) 60 <72 MTH

(INF) <12 MTH

24 <36 MTH

(PR3) 36 <48 MTH

EARLY LEARNING COALITION OF __N. Florida (Bradford)___________________________

(TOD) 12<24 MTH

(2YR)

DAILY PAYMENT-RATE SCHEDULE (Effective ___1/1/2022_____________________________)
Full-Time Daily Rates (Completed by COALITION)

CARE CODE Description

Licensed or 
Exempt Centers 
and Public/Non-
Public Schools

Gold Seal 
Differential

Licensed Family 
Child Care Homes

Gold Seal 
Differential 



CLAY

Gold Seal Registered Informal 

Differential Family Child Care Homes         Providers 

40.00               8.00            36.00                   7.20                 32.33                                     6.47            
36.00               7.20            32.00                   6.40                 27.20                                     5.44            
31.00               6.20            27.20                   5.44                 27.20                                     5.44            
28.00               5.60            25.00                   5.00                 22.50                                     4.50            
27.00               5.40            25.00                   5.00                 20.78                                     4.16            
27.00               5.40            25.00                   5.00                 20.78                                     4.16            
16.05               3.21            12.84                   2.57                 12.84                                     2.57            
40.00               8.00            36.00                   7.20                 32.33                                     6.47            

Licensed Family 
Child Care Gold Registered

 Homes Seal 
Differential Family Child Care Homes

32.00               6.40            32.00                   6.40                 32.00                                     6.40            

28.00               5.60            26.00                   5.20                 22.10                                     4.42            
27.00               5.40            24.00                   4.80                 20.40                                     4.08            
25.00               5.00            24.00                   4.80                 18.00                                     3.60            
25.00               5.00            24.00                   4.80                 18.00                                     3.60            
20.00               4.00            24.00                   4.80                 18.00                                     3.60            
10.79               2.16            10.91                   2.18                 10.91                                     2.18            
32.00               6.40            32.00                   6.40                 32.00                                     6.40            

Part-Time Daily Rates (Completed by COALITION)

CARE CODE Description

Licensed or 
Exempt Centers 
and Public/Non-
Public Schools 

Gold Seal 
Differential

Gold Seal 
Differential Informal Providers 

(INF) <12 MTH

(TOD) 12<24 MTH

(PR4) 48 <60 MTH

(2YR) 24 <36 MTH

(PR3) 36 <48 MTH

(PR5) 60 <72 MTH

(SCH) In School

(SPCR) Special Needs

Step 3: Complete the payment rate template using the proposed provider payment rates.

(SCH) In School

(SPCR) Special Needs

(PR4) 48 <60 MTH

(PR5) 60 <72 MTH

(INF) <12 MTH

24 <36 MTH

(PR3) 36 <48 MTH

EARLY LEARNING COALITION OF __North Florida___________________________

(TOD) 12<24 MTH

(2YR)

DAILY PAYMENT-RATE SCHEDULE (Effective _____1/01/2022___________________________)
Full-Time Daily Rates (Completed by COALITION)

CARE CODE Description

Licensed or 
Exempt Centers 
and Public/Non-
Public Schools

Gold Seal 
Differential

Licensed Family 
Child Care Homes

Gold Seal 
Differential 



Gold Seal Registered Informal 

Differential Family Child Care Homes         Providers 

34.00               6.80            36.00                   7.20                 35.00                                     7.00            
32.00               6.40            27.20                   5.44                 27.20                                     5.44            
32.00               6.40            26.35                   5.27                 25.50                                     5.10            
25.00               5.00            22.50                   4.50                 22.50                                     4.50            
25.00               5.00            22.50                   4.50                 21.00                                     4.20            
27.00               5.40            21.00                   4.20                 20.78                                     4.16            
14.12               2.82            12.84                   2.57                 12.84                                     2.57            
34.00               6.80            36.00                   7.20                 35.00                                     7.00            

Licensed Family 
Child Care Gold Registered

 Homes Seal 
Differential Family Child Care Homes

29.00               5.80            29.00                   5.80                 27.00                                              5.40            

26.00               5.20            21.25                   4.25                 21.25                                              4.25            
24.60               4.92            21.25                   4.25                 21.25                                     4.25            
23.60               4.72            18.00                   3.60                 17.25                                     3.45            
23.60               4.72            17.25                   3.45                 16.50                                     3.30            
23.60               4.72            16.50                   3.30                 16.50                                     3.30            
8.56                 1.71            8.56                     1.71                 8.56                                       1.71            

29.00               5.80            29.00                   5.80                 27.00                                     5.40            

36 <48 MTH

EARLY LEARNING COALITION OF _North Florida - Nassau____________________________

(TOD) 12<24 MTH

(2YR)

DAILY PAYMENT-RATE SCHEDULE (Effective ___01/01/2022_____________________________)
Full-Time Daily Rates (Completed by COALITION)

CARE CODE Description

Licensed or 
Exempt Centers 
and Public/Non-
Public Schools

Gold Seal 
Differential

Licensed Family 
Child Care Homes

Gold Seal 
Differential 

Step 3: Complete the payment rate template using the proposed provider payment rates.

(SCH) In School

(SPCR) Special Needs

(PR4) 48 <60 MTH

(PR5) 60 <72 MTH

(INF) <12 MTH

24 <36 MTH

(PR3)

(PR5) 60 <72 MTH

(SCH) In School

(SPCR) Special Needs

(INF) <12 MTH

(TOD) 12<24 MTH

(PR4) 48 <60 MTH

(2YR) 24 <36 MTH

(PR3) 36 <48 MTH

Part-Time Daily Rates (Completed by COALITION)

CARE CODE Description

Licensed or 
Exempt Centers 
and Public/Non-
Public Schools 

Gold Seal 
Differential

Gold Seal 
Differential Informal Providers 



Gold Seal Registered Informal 

Differential Family Child Care Homes         Providers 

31.41               6.28            36.00                   7.20                 23.43                                     4.69            
28.02               5.60            27.20                   5.44                 19.90                                     3.98            
22.00               4.40            26.35                   5.27                 17.12                                     3.42            
20.00               4.00            22.50                   4.50                 16.05                                     3.21            
20.00               4.00            22.50                   4.50                 16.05                                     3.21            
20.00               4.00            21.00                   4.20                 16.05                                     3.21            
13.91               2.78            13.91                   2.78                 13.91                                     2.78            
31.41               6.28            36.00                   7.20                 23.43                                     4.69            

 Licensed Family 
Child Care  Gold  Registered 

  Homes  Seal 
Differential  Family Child Care Homes 

25.00               5.00                29.00                         5.80                      17.56                                              3.51                

22.00               4.40                21.25                         4.25                      13.60                                              2.72                

20.00               4.00            21.25                   4.25                 13.60                                     2.72            
19.00               3.80            18.00                   3.60                 12.04                                     2.41            
19.00               3.80            17.25                   3.45                 12.04                                     2.41            
19.00               3.80            16.50                   3.30                 12.04                                     2.41            
10.43               2.09            10.43                   2.09                 10.43                                     2.09            
25.00               5.00            29.00                   5.80                 17.56                                     3.51            

36 <48 MTH

EARLY LEARNING COALITION OF _North Florida_- Putnam___________________________

(TOD) 12<24 MTH

(2YR)

DAILY PAYMENT-RATE SCHEDULE (Effective ________1/01/2022________________________)
Full-Time Daily Rates (Completed by COALITION)

CARE CODE Description

Licensed or 
Exempt Centers 
and Public/Non-
Public Schools

Gold Seal 
Differential

Licensed Family 
Child Care Homes

Gold Seal 
Differential 

Step 3: Complete the payment rate template using the proposed provider payment rates.

(SCH) In School

(SPCR) Special Needs

(PR4) 48 <60 MTH

(PR5) 60 <72 MTH

(INF) <12 MTH

24 <36 MTH

(PR3)

(PR5) 60 <72 MTH

(SCH) In School

(SPCR) Special Needs

(INF) <12 MTH

(TOD) 12<24 MTH

(PR4) 48 <60 MTH

(2YR) 24 <36 MTH

(PR3) 36 <48 MTH

Part-Time Daily Rates (Completed by COALITION)

CARE CODE Description

 Licensed or 
Exempt Centers 
and Public/Non-
Public Schools  

 Gold Seal 
Differential 

 Gold Seal 
Differential  

 Informal 
Providers  



St. Johns

Gold Seal Registered Informal 

Differential Family Child Care Homes         Providers 

53.00               10.60          36.00                   7.20                 30.00                                     6.00            
43.00               8.60            27.20                   5.44                 22.95                                     4.59            
40.80               8.16            26.35                   5.27                 22.95                                     4.59            
38.00               7.60            22.50                   4.50                 20.54                                     4.11            
35.10               7.02            22.50                   4.50                 18.83                                     3.77            
35.10               7.02            21.00                   4.20                 18.83                                     3.77            
20.38               4.08            15.41                   3.08                 15.41                                     3.08            
53.00               10.60          36.00                   7.20                 30.00                                     6.00            

Licensed Family 
Child Care Gold Registered

 Homes Seal 
Differential Family Child Care Homes

43.20               8.64            29.00                   5.80                 27.00                                     5.40            

41.00               8.20            21.25                   4.25                 21.25                                     4.25            
38.00               7.60            21.25                   4.25                 21.25                                     4.25            
34.00               6.80            18.00                   3.60                 17.25                                     3.45            
33.00               6.60            17.25                   3.45                 16.50                                     3.30            
33.00               6.60            16.50                   3.30                 16.50                                     3.30            
12.41               2.48            11.56                   2.31                 11.56                                     2.31            
43.20               8.64            29.00                   5.80                 27.00                                     5.40            

36 <48 MTH

EARLY LEARNING COALITION OF ___North Florida__________________________

(TOD) 12<24 MTH

(2YR)

DAILY PAYMENT-RATE SCHEDULE (Effective _____1/01/2022___________________________)
Full-Time Daily Rates (Completed by COALITION)

CARE CODE Description

Licensed or 
Exempt Centers 
and Public/Non-
Public Schools

Gold Seal 
Differential

Licensed Family 
Child Care Homes

Gold Seal 
Differential 

Step 3: Complete the payment rate template using the proposed provider payment rates.

(SCH) In School

(SPCR) Special Needs

(PR4) 48 <60 MTH

(PR5) 60 <72 MTH

(INF) <12 MTH

24 <36 MTH

(PR3)

(PR5) 60 <72 MTH

(SCH) In School

(SPCR) Special Needs

(INF) <12 MTH

(TOD) 12<24 MTH

(PR4) 48 <60 MTH

(2YR) 24 <36 MTH

(PR3) 36 <48 MTH

Part-Time Daily Rates (Completed by COALITION)

CARE CODE Description

Licensed or 
Exempt Centers 
and Public/Non-
Public Schools 

Gold Seal 
Differential

Gold Seal 
Differential Informal Providers 



Early Learning Coalition of North Florida, Inc. 
 Annual Board Meeting 

December 1, 2021 

VI. New/Unfinished Business

D.  Approval of  RFP Committee 
Recommendation for the Coalition’s RFP 
(Requests for Proposals) #RFP-22/23-001 

Contract AWARD* 

*ACTION ITEM



Early Learning Coalition of North Florida, Inc. 

ACTION ITEM SUMMARY 

DESCRIPTION Approval of the RFP Committee Recommendation for the 
Coalition’s RFP (Request for Proposals) #RFP-22/23-001 
Contract AWARD 

Reason for Recommended Action Episcopal Children’s Services (ECS) responded with a proposal 
for the above referenced RFP.  The proposal was evaluated by 
the four RFP Committee members.  Scores were then compiled 
at the November 2, 2021 Final RFP Committee meeting.  From 
this, the committee is presenting their (attached) 
recommendation for Board approval.   

If this is not done, the following would occur: 
• The Coalition would not have a board-approved Primary

Service Provider to contract with for 2022/2023, resulting
from the above referenced RFP.

How the Action will be accomplished Board approval of Contract AWARD to Episcopal Children’s 
Services. 



  
 

 

 

                                A United Way Agency Funded by the State of Florida                      

2450 Old Moultrie Road, Suite 103 
St. Augustine, FL  32086 

904-342-2267 
www.elcnorthflorida.org 

 

MEMORANDUM 
 
 

TO:  All Board Members 
FROM:  Whitney Kersey Graves 
DATE:  November 2, 2021 
SUBJECT: RFP Committee Recommendation  
 
 
 
The purpose of this memorandum is to advise the Board of the RFP Committee’s findings and 
recommendation for Primary Service Provider Contractor for fiscal/contract year 2022/2023, with the option 
to renew for up to three additional one-year terms. 

 
Background: 
The RFP Committee met September 21, 2021 and November 2, 2021 to consider proposals for Primary Service 
Provider, in response to Coalition Request for Proposals #ELCNF-22/23-001.  An RFP criteria 
checklist/evaluation tool was utilized to assign numerical scoring for nine criteria necessary for these services.  
These criteria are weighted and are included in the table below.  
 
Committee Findings: 
As noted, one organization submitted a proposal.  And with the scoring of that proposal the committee is 
satisfied with the selection of Episcopal Children’s Services as the awardee.    
 
In addition, the committee discussed the methods that were used to advertise this RFP and feels it is in the 
Coalitions best interest to accept this proposal without resoliciting the RFP.   
 
Committee Recommendation: 
As the proposal submitted by Episcopal Children’s Services (ECS) attained a total averaged score of 531, it is 
the RFP Committee’s recommendation to award Episcopal Children’s Services (ECS) the Coalition’s contract for 
Primary Service Provider for the 2022/2023 fiscal year.  It is the committee’s standing that this award choice is 
the most advantageous for the Coalition. 

 

 



Evaluation and Selection Tool – Score Tabulations 

Episcopal Children’s Services 
(E.C.S.) 

Criteria Possible Maximum Score 
Total 

(weighted) 
score 

Average Score 
(total divided 

by 2 
evaluators per 

section) 
Section B – Knowledge of and Commitment 
to School Readiness and Voluntary 
Prekindergarten Services 45 85 42.5 
Section C – Relationships with Key 
Community Players 18 36 18 
Section D – Processes to Ensure Quality 
Services and Achieve Performance 
Specifications 48 92 46 
Section E – Capacity to Manage and 
Coordinate Management Information 
Systems 36 60 30 
Section F-1 – Ability to Provide Appropriate 
and Effective Child Care Resource & 
Referral, Inclusion, Quality Support Services, 
and Eligibility and Enrollment Services 75 150 75 
Section F-2 – Ability to Provide Child Care 
Services and Contracting 45 80 40 
Section G – Ability to Provide Early Care and 
Education Services pertaining to Fiscal 
Administration 60 115 57.5 
Section H – History, Experience, 
Organizational Capacity, Staffing and 
Transition 60 120 60 
Section I – Budget Proposal and Financial 
Capability 162 324 162 
TOTALS 549 1062 531 



Early Learning Coalition of North Florida, Inc. 
 Annual Board Meeting 

December 1, 2021 

 

VI.  New/Unfinished Business  

 

E.  Review of RFP and RFQ Timelines for 
Recruiting Evaluators-INFORMATIONAL 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  



1 

Early Learning Coalition of North Florida 

Timelines for 2021/2022– Meeting Dates ONLY 
 (revised 06/02/21) 

RFP (Request for Proposals) 
for Primary Service Provider 2022/2023 

Activities/Events Date Time Address 
Distribute RFP Timeline and recruit RFP Procurement 
Committee members (2 Fiscal and 2 Program) 

06/09/21 10:30 am Coalition Board of Directors Meeting 
World Golf Village 

RFP Committee Meeting to: 
(1) approve the Final RFP to be forwarded to Exec/Admin 
committee, and  
(2) assign a chairperson who will prepare the recommendation 
for the Board (after the scoring of the proposals). 

07/21/21 11:00 am RFP Committee Conference Call 

Exec/Admin Committee Meeting to approve Final RFP 08/04/21 10:30 am Exec/Admin Committee Conference 
Call 

Initial RFP Procurement Committee Meeting to include Public 
Opening of Proposals  

09/21/21 11:00 am Caddy Shack Restaurant meeting room 
at World Golf Village 

Final RFP Procurement Committee meeting, scores tabulated, 
proposers ranked, and Prepare Recommendation for Board 

11/02/21 11:00 am Caddy Shack Restaurant meeting room 
at World Golf Village 

Board Meeting: 
Review and approve  RFP Committee recommendation 

12/01/21 2:00 pm Coalition Board of Directors Meeting 
World Golf Village 

Board Meeting: 
Approve Contract (ONLY if it is a NEW contractor, to allow for 
transition activities) 

03/09/22 10:30 am Coalition Board of Directors Meeting 
World Golf Village 

Board Meeting: 
Approve Contract  

06/08/22 10:30 am Coalition Board of Directors Meeting 
World Golf Village 

RFQ (Request For Qualifications) 
for External Auditing Services 2022/2023 

Activities/Events Date Time Address 
Distribute RFP Timeline (to recruit evaluators) 06/09/21 10:30 am Coalition Board of Directors Meeting 

World Golf Village 
RFQ document to be approved 03/09/22 10:30 am Coalition Board of Directors Meeting 

World Golf Village 
E-mail proposals to review team for scoring. 04/25/22 ELC will e-mail proposals and scoring 

tools/instructions 

RFQ Proposals External Reviewers’ Evaluation Meeting  05/11/22 11:00 am Caddy Shack Restaurant meeting room 
at World Golf Village 

Board Meeting: 
Approve RFQ Committee recommendation and contract  

06/08/22 10:30 am  Coalition Board of Directors Meeting 
World Golf Village 

Orange indicates an additional meeting date. 
Dates/times may be subject to change  



Early Learning Coalition of North Florida, Inc. 
 Annual Board Meeting 

December 1, 2021 

VI. New/Unfinished Business

F.  Review of Post RFP Memo-
INFORMATIONAL 



  A United Way Agency Funded by the State of Florida            

2450 Old Moultrie Road, Suite 103 
St. Augustine, FL  32086 

904-342-2267 
www.elcnorthflorida.org 

MEMORANDUM 

TO: Board Members 

FROM:  Tajaro Dixon 

DATE: July 22, 2021 (for Board meeting 12/01/21) 

SUBJECT: 2022/2023 Primary Services Contract Negotiations from Award of RFP 

If anyone would like to participate in the “Post-RFP” contract negotiations, please notify Dawn Bell before 
February 1, 2022. 

Please keep in mind that the meetings have not yet been scheduled.  However, if requested by the Awardee 
there may be two meetings with staff between the dates of March 16, 2022 and March 30, 2022. 



Early Learning Coalition of North Florida, Inc. 
 Annual Board Meeting 

December 1, 2021 

VI. New/Unfinished Business

G.  Approval of  Accounting and Financial 
Policies and Procedures Revisions* 

*ACTION ITEM



Early Learning Coalition of North Florida, Inc. 

ACTION ITEM SUMMARY 

DESCRIPTION Accounting and Financial Policies and Procedures Revisions 
Reason for 
Recommended 
Action Revisions from annual review of policies: 

F103 – Internal Controls, corrected ‘morale’ to ‘morals’ (discovered while searching for 
the word “morale”).  

F106 – Policy on Suspected Misconduct, changed the phrase employee ‘morale’ to 
employee ‘health and welfare’ per the WipFli Consultants Grants Webinar 
recommendations. 

F305 – Accounts Payable Management, deleted “DFS State Travel Manual” as it is no 
longer applicable. 

F306 – Travel and Business Expenses, deleted “DFS State Travel Manual” as it is no 
longer applicable.  Added section regarding higher allowable hotel rate of 
$175 per night ONLY IF the lodging was associated with a meeting, 
conference, or convention organized or sponsored by the Coalition 
(sponsored meaning contributed money toward the event.) 

If this is not done, the following would occur: 
• The Coalition’s Accounting and Financial Policies and Procedures would not be

up-to-date nor compliant.

How the Action 
will be 
accomplished 

Approval of Accounting and Financial Policies and Procedures revisions 



 Early Learning Coalition of North Florida          1 
                                     Accounting and Financial Policies and Procedures 
 

F103  INTERNAL CONTROLS 
 
Effective Date:  03/19/08 
Revision Date: 04/07/10, 12/07/11, 12/04/13, 12/07/16, 12/01/21 
 
 
Policy 
 
Purpose  
Through its planning process, the Board of Directors of the Early Learning Coalition of North Florida (the 
“Coalition”) identifies the principal programs and activities to fulfill the Coalition’s statutory mission.  The 
efficient and effective operation of the Coalition is promoted by an integrated internal control framework that 
includes not only financial and accounting controls but also administrative controls for its program activities 
to ensure compliance will all applicable state and federal policies, rules, regulations, statutes as well as 
prudent business practices.     
 
The Coalition should be able not only to account for funds spent on a program, but also to demonstrate the 
value of the program and its accomplishments. An effective system of internal control can give the Coalition 
the means to provide accountability for its programs, as well as the means to obtain reasonable assurance that 
the programs it directs meet established goals and objectives. While managers have a significant impact on an 
organization’s system of internal control, every employee of the organization has a responsibility and a role in 
ensuring that the system is effective in achieving the organization’s mission. 
 
Scope 
Each Board member as well as all Coalition staff has a role in the system of internal control.  Individual roles 
in the system of internal control vary greatly throughout the Coalition. Very often, an individual's position in 
the organization will determine the extent of that person's involvement in internal control.    
 
The strength of the system of internal control is dependent on people's attitude toward internal control and 
their attention to it. Executive management needs to set the organization’s "tone at the top” regarding internal 
control. If executive management does not establish strong, clearly stated support for internal control, the 
organization as a whole will most likely not practice good internal control. Similarly, if individuals 
responsible for control activities are not attentive to their duties, the system of internal control will not be 
effective.   
 
While everyone in an organization has responsibility for ensuring the system of internal control is effective, 
the greatest amount of responsibility rests with the managers of the Coalition. Management has a role in 
making sure that the individuals performing the work have the skills and capacity to do so, and, to provide 
employees with appropriate supervision, monitoring, and training to reasonably assure that the organization 
has the capability to carry out its work.  The organization's top executive, as the lead manager, has the ultimate 
responsibility for the establishment of the control environment.  
 
Policy Statement  
Coalition management shall establish and maintain a cost effective system of accounting and administrative 
internal controls to provide the following reasonable assurances that:   
1. All obligations and costs are in compliance with terms contained in grant agreements and applicable law;  
2. All funds, property, and other assets are safeguarded against waste, loss or unauthorized use; 
3. All revenues and expenditures applicable to Coalition operations are properly recorded and accounted for to 
permit the preparation of reliable financial and statistical reports and to maintain accountability over the 



Early Learning Coalition of North Florida 2 
               Accounting and Financial Policies and Procedures 

assets; and 
4. All programs and administrative activities are managed efficiently to fulfill the mission of the Coalition.

The establishment and maintenance of the Coalition’s internal control system shall be executed in accordance 
with the Board’s direction, the requirements of the Office of Early Learning (OEL), and guidelines set forth in 
applicable state and federal regulations.   

Definitions  

Control environment:  the attitude toward internal control and control consciousness established and 
maintained by the management and employees of an organization. It is a product of management’s 
governance, that is, its philosophy, style and supportive attitude, as well as the competence, ethical values, 
integrity and morale morals of the people of the organization.   

Internal control:  the integration of the activities, plans, attitudes, policies, and efforts of the people of an 
organization working together to provide reasonable assurance that the organization will achieve its objectives 
and mission.   

Roles and Responsibilities  
The C.E.O. is responsible for establishing the Coalition’s system of internal control, and is also responsible 
for (1) establishing a system of internal control review, (2) making management policies and guidelines 
available to all employees, and (3) implementing education and training about internal control and internal 
control evaluations. To the extent that the C.E.O. authorizes other managers to perform certain activities, those 
managers become responsible for those portions of the organization’s system of internal control, and at no 
time is Coalition management allowed to override an Internal Control process.    

Procedure 

Purpose  
This procedure has been developed to ensure the Coalition’s compliance with the internal control reporting 
requirements established by the Office of Early Learning.  

Scope  
This procedure applies to staff involved in the assessment of internal control established by the Office of Early 
Learning to assure achievement of primary internal control objectives as defined by 2 CFR 200, Uniform 
Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards.  These objectives 
pertain to compliance requirement for Federal Programs as described in 2 CFR Part 215 section .21(3) and 2 
CFR 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal 
Awards and include the following:   

1. Transactions are properly recorded and accounted for;
2. Transaction are executed in compliance with laws, regulation, and contract provisions; and,
3. Funds, property, and other assets are safeguarded against loss from unauthorized use or disposition.

Risk Management Approach to Internal Controls 



Accounting and Financial Policies and Procedures 
Early Learning Coalition of North Florida 3 

Risk identification is incorporated into the Coalition’s forecasting and strategic planning, through ensuring 
key compliance objectives are communicated to appropriate program managers and  staff.   The Coalition’s 
overall risk management approach, to ensure that all known and applicable Internal Control mechanisms are 
intact, includes following the prescribed actions.   

A. Annual Internal Controls Self-Assessment 

The Finance Manager shall ensure that the annual self-assessment of internal controls developed by the 
Office of Early Learning (OEL) is completed pursuant to OEL guidelines.   

1. The Finance Manager will review the self-assessment once it is transmitted to the Coalition by the
Office of Early Learning each year.

2. The self-assessment will be completed pursuant to guidelines established by the Office of Early
Learning.

3. The Finance Manager will ensure that the “Annual Internal Control Certification Form” (to be
distributed by OEL each year) is completed and submitted to Office of Early Learning by their
established deadline each year.

B. Internal Controls Policies and Procedures Review and Updates 

1. The Finance Manager shall ensure that all Internal Control-related policies and procedures are
reviewed annually and necessary revisions are processed.  In addition, the revisions will be
communicated to appropriate Coalition staff.

2. Upon notification of new or revised regulations, the Finance Manager shall ensure that applicable
policies and procedures are updated and communicated to the appropriate Coalition staff.

C.  Annual Internal Controls Questionnaire 

1. Upon distribution of the annual OEL Internal Controls Survey, the Finance Manager will work with
other Coalition staff, as needed, to accurately respond to the questionnaire.

2. While completing the survey, the Finance Manager will make note of any internal control mechanisms
that the Coalition does not have in place, to later complete a cost/benefit analysis.  From the analysis,
the C.E.O. will decide whether or not to add or revise an existing policy and/or procedure.

3. If the C.E.O. decides to incorporate a new or revised Internal Control policy and procedures, the
new/revised policy and procedure will be presented to the Board of Directors for approval.  Upon
approval, the Coalition will begin to practice the new/revised policy and procedure immediately.



Early Learning Coalition of North Florida 4 
               Accounting and Financial Policies and Procedures 

F106  POLICY ON SUSPECTED MISCONDUCT 
Effective Date:  08/28/07 
Revision Date: 03/19/08, 08/05/09, 03/16/16, 12/07/16, 12/01/21

Introduction 

This policy communicates the actions to be taken for suspected misconduct committed, encountered, or 
observed by employees and volunteers. 

Like all organizations, the Coalition faces many risks associated with fraud, abuse, and other forms of 
misconduct. The impact of these acts collectively referred to as misconduct throughout this policy, may 
include, but not be limited to: 

 Financial losses and liabilities 
 Loss of current and future revenue and customers 
 Negative publicity and damage to the Coalition’s good public image 
 Loss of employees and difficulty in attracting new personnel 
 Deterioration of employee morale health and welfare  
 Harm to relationships with clients, vendors, bankers, and subcontractors 
 Litigation and related costs of investigations, etc. 

Our Coalition is committed to establishing and maintaining a work environment of the highest ethical 
standards. Achievement of this goal requires the cooperation and assistance of every employee and volunteer 
at all levels of the Coalition. 

Definitions 

For purposes of this policy, misconduct includes, but is not limited to: 

1. Actions that violate the Coalition’s Code of Conduct (and any underlying policies) or any of the
accounting and financial policies included in this manual

2. Fraud (see below)

3. Forgery or alteration of checks, bank drafts, documents or other records (including electronic records)

4. Destruction, alteration, mutilation, or concealment of any document or record with the intent to
obstruct or influence an investigation, or potential investigation, carried out by a department or agency
of the Federal government or by the Coalition in connection with this policy

5. Disclosure to any external party of proprietary information or confidential personal information
obtained in connection with employment with or service to the Coalition

6. Unauthorized personal or other inappropriate (non-business) use of equipment, assets, services,
personnel or other resources



                                     Accounting and Financial Policies and Procedures 
 

 Early Learning Coalition of North Florida 5 

7. Acts that violate Federal, state, or local laws or regulations 
 
8. Accepting or seeking anything of material value from contractors, vendors, or persons providing 

goods or services to the Coalition.  
 
9.  Impropriety of the handling or reporting of money in financial transactions. 
 
10. Failure to report known instances of misconduct in accordance with the reporting responsibilities 

described herein (including tolerance by supervisory employees of misconduct of subordinates). 
 
Fraud is further defined to include, but not be limited to: 
 

 Theft, embezzlement, or other misappropriation of assets (including assets of or intended for 
the Coalition, as well as those of our clients, subcontractors, vendors, contractors, suppliers, 
and others with whom the Coalition has a business relationship) 

 Intentional misstatements in the Coalition’s records, including intentional misstatements of 
accounting records or financial statements 

 Authorizing or receiving payment for goods not received or services not performed 
 Authorizing or receiving payments for hours not worked 
 Forgery or alteration of documents, including but not limited to checks, timesheets, contracts, 

receiving reports 
 
The Coalition has this zero tolerance policy regarding fraud and prohibits each of the preceding acts of 
misconduct on the part of employees, officers, executives, volunteers and others responsible for carrying out 
the Coalition’s activities.  (Also see the Coalition’s most current Anti-Fraud Plan.) 
 
 
Reporting Responsibilities 
 
Every employee, officer, and volunteer is responsible for immediately reporting suspected misconduct or 
fraud to the C.E.O., or the Chair of the Board of Directors.  When the C.E.O. has received a report of 
suspected misconduct, they must immediately report such acts to the Board Chair. 
 
 
Mandatory Reporting of Fraud and Criminal Activity 
 
All Coalition and sub-recipient/subcontractor staff is responsible for identifying violations that may 
potentially affect a federal award.  As stated above (Reporting Responsibilities), all staff are ALSO 
responsible for immediately notifying the C.E.O. or the Chair of the Board of Directors of the identified 
violation(s).   
 
In accordance with 2 CFR §200.113, Mandatory disclosures, the Coalition and its approved subcontractors 
must disclose in a timely manner* to the Office of Early Learning all violations involving fraud, bribery or 
gratuity violations potentially affecting the OEL Grant Agreement  and/or the related federal/grant program(s). 
(*A “timely manner” is defined by the nature of the violation.  See “Reporting to Outside Parties” below.)  
 
Under 2 CFR 200.113, the Coalition must notify a Federal awarding agency of pass-through entity of a 
“violation” of Federal criminal law, and not just when an arrest, indictment, or conviction has occurred.  
Per 52.203-13 FAR (Federal Acquisition Regulation) it is mandatory that the Coalition disclose (in writing) to 



Early Learning Coalition of North Florida 6 
               Accounting and Financial Policies and Procedures 

the Office(s) of Inspector General (OIG) whenever there is “credible evidence” of; (a) A violation of Federal 
criminal law involving fraud, conflict of interest, bribery, or gratuity violations found in Title 18 of the United 
States Code; or (b) Civil False Claims Act violations.   Credible evidence indicates a “higher standard” than a 
“reasonable grounds to believe” standard.  Failure to disclose these violations, as well as failure to disclose 
“significant overpayments” by the Government, will constitute grounds for suspension and/or debarment.  The 
Coalition will timely disclose, in writing, to the agencies (OIG), with a copy to the Contracting Officer, 
whenever, in connection with the award, performance, or closeout of this contract or any subcontract 
thereunder. 

Non-Federal entities that have received a Federal award are required to report certain civil, criminal, or 
administrative proceedings to SAM (System for Award Management). Failure to make required disclosures 
can result in any of the remedies described in 2 CFR §200.338 Remedies for noncompliance, including 
suspension or debarment. (See also 2 CFR part 180, 31 U.S.C. 3321, and 41 U.S.C. 2313.)  Also see Coalition 
Conflict of Interest Policy #OP203. 

These disclosure requirements apply to contracts and subcontracts valued at more than $5 Million and with a 
performance period of at least 120 days (Reference FAR 3.1004).  As each of the Coalition’s School 
Readiness and Voluntary Prekindergarten programs qualify under this definition, identified violation(s) 
related to these two programs MUST be reported.  In addition, these reporting requirements apply throughout 
the five (5) year records retention period after program award closeout/final payment(s). 

The C.E.O. or the Board Chair is then responsible for notifying the USDHHS OIG and/or OEL’s OIG of the 
violation(s).  This notification will be in writing using the prescribed method of each entity.  OEL instructions 
for submitting required “report” information can be found online on OEL’s OIG page at 
http://www.floridaearlylearning.com/about_us/office_of_inspector_general.aspx and/or the Grant award 
reference materials posted to the SharePoint Coalition Zone. 

These requirements could potentially present legal consequences for the Coalition, therefore it advisable that 
legal counsel is involved. 

Whistleblower Protection 

The Coalition will consider any reprisal against a reporting individual an act of misconduct subject to 
disciplinary procedures.  A “reporting individual” is one who, in good faith, reported a suspected act of 
misconduct in accordance with this policy, or provided to a law enforcement officer any truthful information 
relating to the commission or possible commission of a Federal offense. 

Criteria for complying with the Sarbanes-Oxley Act include but are not limited to the following: 

• It is illegal for any corporate entity to punish whistleblowers or retaliate against any employee
who reports suspected cases of fraud or abuse (SOX, Section 1107, Section 1513 of Title 18,
USC); and

• It is a crime to alter, cover up, falsify, or destroy any documents that may be relevant to an official
investigation (SOX Section 1102, section 1512 of Title 18, USC)

Investigative Responsibilities 

http://www.floridaearlylearning.com/about_us/office_of_inspector_general.aspx


Accounting and Financial Policies and Procedures 
Early Learning Coalition of North Florida 7 

Due to the sensitive nature of suspected misconduct, Coalition employees should not, under any 
circumstances, perform any investigative procedures. 

The Executive/Administrative Committee has the primary responsibility for investigating suspected 
misconduct involving employees below the C.E.O. The Executive/Administrative Committee shall provide a 
summary of all investigative work to the Board of Directors. 

The Executive/Administrative Committee has the primary responsibility for investigating suspected 
misconduct involving the C.E.O., as well as board members and officers. However, the 
Executive/Administrative Committee may request the assistance of the Finance Manager in any such 
investigation. 

Investigation into suspected misconduct will be performed without regard to the suspected individual’s 
position, length of service, or relationship with the Coalition. 

In fulfilling its investigative responsibilities, the Executive/Administrative Committee shall have the authority 
to seek the advice and/or contract for the services of outside firms, including but not limited to law firms, CPA 
firms, forensic accountants and investigators, etc. 

Members of the Executive/Administrative Committee shall have free and unrestricted access to all the 
Coalition records and premises, whether owned or rented, at all times. They shall also have the authority to 
examine, copy and remove all or any portion of the contents (in paper or electronic form) of filing cabinets, 
storage facilities, desks, credenzas and computers without prior knowledge or consent of any individual who 
might use or have custody of any such items or facilities when it is within the scope of an investigation into 
suspected misconduct or related follow-up procedures. 

The existence, the status or results of investigations into suspected misconduct shall not be disclosed or 
discussed with any individual other than those with a legitimate need to know in order to perform their duties 
and fulfill their responsibilities effectively. 

Protection of Records – Federal Matters 

The Coalition prohibits the knowing destruction, alteration, mutilation, or concealment of any record, 
document, or tangible object with the intent to obstruct or influence the investigation or proper administration 
of any matter within the jurisdiction of any department or agency of the United States government, or in 
relation to or contemplation of any such matter or case. 

Violations of this policy will be considered a violation of the Coalition’s Code of Ethics and subject to the 
investigative, reporting, and disclosure procedures described earlier in this policy on Suspected Misconduct. 

Disciplinary Action 

Based on the results of investigations into allegations of misconduct, disciplinary action may be taken against 
violators. Disciplinary action shall be coordinated with appropriate representatives from the Board of 
Directors, and C.E.O. The seriousness of misconduct will be considered in determining appropriate 
disciplinary action, which may include: 



 
 

 Early Learning Coalition of North Florida 8 
               Accounting and Financial Policies and Procedures 

• Reprimand 
• Probation 
• Suspension 
• Demotion 
• Termination 
• Reimbursement of losses or damages 
• Referral for criminal prosecution or civil action 

 
This listing of possible disciplinary actions is for information purposes only and does not bind the Coalition to 
follow any particular action. 
 
 
Confidentiality 
The Executive/Administrative Committee and the C.E.O. treats all information received confidentially. Any 
employee who suspects dishonest or fraudulent activity will notify the C.E.O. or the Executive/Administrative 
Committee Chair immediately, and should not attempt to personally conduct investigations or 
interviews/interrogations related to any suspected fraudulent act (see Reporting Procedures section above). 
 
Great care must be taken in the investigation of suspected improprieties or irregularities so as to avoid 
mistaken accusations or alerting suspected individuals that an investigation is under way. Investigation results 
will not be disclosed or discussed with anyone other than those who have a legitimate need to know. This is 
important in order to avoid damaging the reputations of persons suspected but subsequently found innocent of 
wrongful conduct and to protect the Coalition from potential civil liability. 
 
An employee who discovers or suspects fraudulent activity may remain anonymous. All inquiries concerning 
the activity under investigation from the suspected individual(s), his or her attorney or representative(s), or 
any other inquirer should be directed to the Executive/Administrative Committee or legal counsel.  No 
information concerning the status of an investigation will be given out. The proper response to any inquiry is 
“I am not at liberty to discuss this matter.” Under no circumstances should any reference be made to “the 
allegation,” “the crime,” “the fraud,” “the forgery,” “the misappropriation,” or any other specific reference. 
 
The reporting individual should be informed of the following: 
 
1. Do not contact the suspected individual in an effort to determine facts or demand restitution. 
 
2. Do not discuss the case, facts, suspicions, or allegations with anyone unless specifically asked to do so 

by the Coalition’s legal counsel or the Executive/Administrative Committee. 
 
Disclosure to Outside Parties 
 
Allegations of and information related to allegations of suspected misconduct shall not be disclosed to third 
parties except under the provisions described in this policy (such as disclosure to outside investigators hired 
by the Coalition to aid in an investigation).  
 
However, all known frauds involving the C.E.O., or members of the Board of Directors, as well as all material 
frauds involving employees below the C.E.O., shall be disclosed by the Executive/Administrative Committee 



                                     Accounting and Financial Policies and Procedures 
 

 Early Learning Coalition of North Florida 9 

to the Coalition’s external auditors, as well as all other mandatory  reporting as described below, “Reporting 
to Outside Parties”. 
 
 
Reporting to Outside Parties 
 
Once the Coalition has received information that would lead to suspicion or confirmation of any violation(s) 
of this policy, it is the Coalition’s duty to report to outside parties as follows: 
 

1. Any activity or incident that poses a danger to the health, safety, or welfare of any individual should 
be reported immediately to local law enforcement and/or emergency response personnel. 
 

2. Any allegations, those judged to be of an emergency nature, those receiving public exposure, and 
those related to suspicions should be reported immediately to the USDHHS OIG and/or OEL’s OIG.   
 

3. When the nature of the violation is related to parents or legal guardians of children enrolled in the 
School Readiness or VPK programs, in the provision of and payment for those services, the fraud 
referral must be processed following instructions and time frames of the Coalition’s Fraud Prevention 
Plan and by submitting fraud referrals through the online OEL Fraud Referral System (FRS). 
 
The Inspector General of the Office of Early Learning is the designated coordinator of all suspected 
fraud referrals to the Florida Department of Law Enforcement, Public Assistance Fraud Unit. 
Coalitions are responsible for immediately reporting to OEL Office of Inspector General and the 
Florida Department of Law Enforcement Public Assistance Fraud Unit all such actual or suspected 
violations uncovered by, or reported to the Coalition. 
 
 



Early Learning Coalition of North Florida 10 
               Accounting and Financial Policies and Procedures 

 F305  ACCOUNTS PAYABLE MANAGEMENT 
Effective Date:  08/28/07  
Revision Date: 03/19/08, 08/06/08, 04/06/11, 12/04/13, 09/17/14, 11/04/15, 03/16/16, 12/07/16, 09/20/17, 03/21/18, 
09/11/19, 12/01/21

Overview 

The Coalition strives to maintain efficient business practices and good cost control. A well-managed accounts 
payable function can assist in accomplishing this goal from the purchasing decision through payment and 
check reconciliation.  The following are general policies for accounts payable: 

 Assets or expenses and the related liability are recorded by an individual who is not responsible for
ordering and receiving.

 The amounts recorded are based on the vendor invoice for the related goods or services.
 The vendor invoice should be supported by an approved order document/purchase order where

necessary, and should be reviewed by the Office Manager prior to being processed for payment.
 Invoices and related general ledger account distribution codes are reviewed prior to posting to the

subsidiary system.

The primary objective for accounts payable and cash disbursements is to ensure that: 

1. Disbursements are properly authorized
2. Invoices are processed in a timely manner
3. Vendor credit terms and operating cash are managed for maximum benefits

Regulations Regarding Invoices 

ALL applicable Coalition policies and procedures will comply with the following federal/state laws, 
regulations, statutes and rules:  
• Chapter 60A – General Regulations
• Section 215.422, F.S. – Payments, warrants and invoices; processing time limits; dispute resolution;

agency or judicial branch compliance
• Section 287.058, F.S.  – Contract document
• Rule 60A-1.002, FAC – Purchase of commodities or contract services
• Chapter 69I – Division of Auditing and Accounting
• Compliance with Rule 69I-24, F.A.C. – Payment of Vouchers by State Warrant
• Compliance with Rule 69I-40, F.A.C. – Bureau of Auditing invoice requirements
• DFS Reference Guide for State Expenditures

- CFO Memo No. 01 (2012-13), Contract Summary Form
- CFO Memo No. 02 (2012-13), Contract and Grant Reviews and Related Payment Processing

Requirements 
- CFO Memo No. 03 (2014-15), Compliance Requirements for Agreements
- CFO Memo No. 06 (2011-12), Contract Monitoring and Documenting Contractor Performance



                                     Accounting and Financial Policies and Procedures 
 

 Early Learning Coalition of North Florida 11 

- PUR 1000 and 1001 
• OEL Program Guidance PG 250.01, Other Cost Accumulator (OCA) Working Definitions 
• OEL annual grant agreement Exhibit I for specified prohibited costs 
• 2 CFR 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal 

Awards 
 
 
Regulations Regarding Disbursement Control Systems 
 

• 60A-1.016 F.A.C., Contract and Purchase Order Requirements. 
• DFS Reference Guide for Sate Expenditures 
• DFS State Travel Manual 
• CFO Memo No. 06 (2016-17), Guidance for Travel restrictions imposed by Ch. 2016-62, FL Law 
• CFO Memo No. 02 (2014-15), State of Florida Purchasing Card Program Convenience 

Fees/Surcharges 
• OEL annual grant agreement Exhibit I for specified prohibited costs 
• 2 CFR 200 Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for 

Federal Awards 
- 2 CFR 200.302, Financial management systems  
- 2 CFR 200.302(7), Financial management systems – allowable costs 
- 2 CFR 200.303, Internal controls 
- 2 CFR 200, Subpart E – Cost Principles 

• OEL Program Guidance files  
- Program Guidance 440.10 – Office of Early Learning Match Reporting Guidance 
- Program Guidance 240.01 – Cash Management Procedures 
- Program Guidance 240.04 – School Readiness Funds Management 
- Program Guidance 240.05 – Guidance on Prior Approval Procedures 
- Program Guidance 240.06 – Reimbursement Request Requirements for ELCs 
- Program Guidance 250.01 – Other Cost Accumulators (OCAs) Guidance. 

 
 
Recording of Accounts Payable 
 
All valid accounts payable transactions, properly supported with the required documentation, shall be 
recorded as accounts payable in a timely manner. 
 
Accounts payable are processed on a bi-weekly basis. Information is entered into the accounting system with 
approved invoices or disbursement vouchers with appropriate documentation attached.   
 
Only original invoices (or original statements for select vendors) will be processed for payment unless 
duplicated copies have been verified as unpaid by researching the vendor records 
 
If a vendor statement is allowed by the Coalition to serve as an invoice, then that statement must include the 
following required content in order to be processed (“Reference Guide for State Expenditures” updated 
February 2011). 
 
Invoice Requirements 



 
 

 Early Learning Coalition of North Florida 12 
               Accounting and Financial Policies and Procedures 

 
The following requirements apply to all invoices submitted for payment. 

1. An invoice submitted for payment must be a legible copy. The original invoice is maintained by 
the agency. If an agency is filing a copy of the invoice as its original, it must contain the statement 
“original invoice not available, agency records show that this obligation has not been previously 
paid” with the signature of the person certifying the statement. Thermo fax copies, because of their 
temporary nature, shall not be filed as the original at the agency. It should be copied on a  
standard photocopy machine. 

2. Invoices for commodities must clearly reflect a description of the item or items, number of 
units and cost per unit. Numerical code descriptions alone will not be accepted. 

3. Invoices for services must also clearly reflect the specific deliverables that must be provided and 
accepted prior to payment. 

i. Invoices for fixed unit rate agreements must show the number of units and cost per unit. 
ii. Invoices for agreements paid out on a reimbursement basis or a fixed rate for a specific 

time 
period, e.g. quarterly, monthly, etc., must identify the deliverables provided or be 
supported by documentation (such as a progress report) that clearly reflects the 
deliverables provided during the invoice period. Documentation must evidence that the 
minimum performance standards were met. 

4. No balances for prior purchases will be paid unless supported by an invoice. 
5. A statement will not be paid unless it can be clearly shown that the vendor intended it to be used 

as an invoice that meets all invoice requirements. 
6. All invoices shall be processed in accordance with s. 215.422, F.S., and the rules set forth in Rule 

69I-24, F.A.C. 
7. Invoices that are split payments require information showing the distribution of charges between 

funds for such invoice and a cross-reference of the statewide document numbers for all related 
vouchers. 

8. Invoices and other supporting documentation included in a voucher must be grouped by vendor 
and arranged in the same order as the vendors are listed on the voucher schedule. If the voucher 
includes multiple invoices from the same vendor, the voucher must include a calculator tape or 
other evidence showing that the total of the invoices is equal to the amount shown on the voucher 
schedule. 

9. Acronyms and non-standard abbreviations for programs or organizational units within an agency 
should not be used in the supporting documentation unless an explanation is also included. 

 
 
Accounts Payable Cut-Off 
 
The Coalition operates on a modified cash basis.  All invoices are expensed in the month they are paid.  At 
year-end a search for unrecorded liabilities is conducted and invoices paid in the first month of the next year 
that pertain to the preceding fiscal year are accrued and expensed in the preceding fiscal year.  Many payments 
are made via electronic funds transfer and every effort is made to ensure that payments are made and recorded 
in the month of occurrence. 
 
 
Establishment of Control Devices 
 



                                     Accounting and Financial Policies and Procedures 
 

 Early Learning Coalition of North Florida 13 

The Office Manager establishes control of invoices as soon as they are received. Vendors will be instructed to 
mail all invoices directly to the administrative office.    
 
The Office Manager receives and opens all mail, date stamps and initials.  Invoices are entered into the 
Purchase Request Log.  Once any and all required backup has been attached to the invoice(s), the Office 
Manager completes a Purchase Request, obtains required approvals and submits to the Finance department for 
processing. 
 
The Purchase Request Log is to be maintained and reviewed bi-weekly by the Office Manager to determine 
which, if any, invoices have not been paid. 
 
 
Invoice Processing 
 
The Coalition’s policies will ensure appropriate and adequate invoice processing.   
 
A. Invoice processing policy disclosures [69I-40.002(3), F.A.C.] 

1. Contractual service invoices submitted by a vendor/contractor/service provider for payment 
processing must clearly identify, at a minimum,  
a. The dates of services, a description of the specific contract deliverables provided during the 

invoice period and the quantity provided, and the payment amount specified in the agreement for 
the completion of the deliverable(s) provided.  

2. Cost reimbursement invoices must reflect the expenditures incurred by expenditure category.  
3. Required information may be submitted on the invoice or in a report format along with any other 

information required by the terms of the agreement.  
4. Written certification, from the contract/grant manager, that services were performed in accordance 

with the contract terms must be obtained and kept in entity files. [s. 287.057(14), F.S.] 
 
B. Invoice processing controls [69I-24.003, F.A.C.; CFOM No. 06 (2011-12)]  

1. The Coalition will receive deliverables and provide written certification of such before payments are 
made. 
a. Approval and inspection of goods or services shall take no longer than 5 working days unless the 

bid specifications, purchase order or contract specifies otherwise. [s. 215.422(1), F.S.] 
b. Terms conditions must be specified and must accompany the request for payment to evidence 

delivery of goods/services.  
c. Coalition must ensure that deliverables were received on time and as intended (i.e., met 

performance measures) before release of payment is approved/processed.  
1) May use a Contract Summary Form 
2) May use a written certification from the assigned contract manager on the invoice 
3) May use a Deliverable Tracker – track deliverables schedule 
4) May use a Deliverable Acceptance form to help document 

 
2. The Coalition will ensure invoices have adequate documentation and are processed on a timely basis.   

a. Documents for goods/services received are date stamped.  
b. Review invoice for accuracy and completeness of the following details. [69I-40.002, (3), F.A.C.] 

1) Description of the item(s). 
2) Number of units. 
3) Cost per unit. 



 
 

 Early Learning Coalition of North Florida 14 
               Accounting and Financial Policies and Procedures 

4) Service dates coincide with invoice period. 
5) Minimum level of services has been provided. 
6) Amount invoiced coincides with the terms/conditions. 

c. Verify any required supporting documentation has been submitted. 
d. Review documentation to gain reasonable assurance that commodities/contractual services have 

been satisfactorily provided within the terms of the contract/agreement. 
e. Complete any additional processes required by Coalition policy. 
f. Certify the entity’s receipt of goods/services.  
g. Invoices shall be paid according to state rules for Prompt Payment Compliance. 

1) Section 215.422(3)(b), F.S., requires interest to be paid to the vendor if payment is not issued 
within 40 days after receipt of the invoice and receipt, inspection, and approval of the goods 
and services. 

2) DFS does not require agencies to pay interest penalty invoices of less than $1.00 unless the 
vendor asserts his right to the interest penalty payment either orally or in writing. 

 
3. Enforce terms and conditions [s. 287.057(14)(b), F.S.; DFS-related contract manager guidance] 

a. Coalition staff assigned contract/grant management duties are required to work with the 
contractor/vendor to ensure that goods/services are received as intended and contract/agreement 
terms are enforced. 

b. Use performance bonds when appropriate. 
c. Verify financial consequences are addressed. 
d. Verify terms for liquidated damages are included (when applicable) to compensate the entity for 

any losses realized.   
 

4. For disputes about receipt of goods/services [s. 215.422(8), F.S., Payments…disputes] 
a. Coalition will have written procedures and instructions for staff. 

1) Invoice may be prorated, reduced or withheld according to the financial consequences 
established in contract/agreement. 

2) Partial or prorated payments must be made based on the deliverables that can be validated and 
supported by adequate documentation.  

b. If no financial consequences are included in contract/agreement OR documentation can’t be 
provided, the payment should be withheld until the issue is resolved or a settlement is reached.  

c. Inform staff of settlement agreement process.  
1) Used when the amount owed to a provider/contractor is in dispute. 
2) A lengthy, cumbersome and potentially expensive process the Coalition will not be able to 

complete alone; legal counsel will be required.  
3) Required for many situations including 

a) To settle a lawsuit, damages or legal fees; 
b) Absence of an executed agreement; 
c) Agreement was executed after services were rendered; 
d) Additional services not included in the agreement were provided; 
e) Services were rendered after the agreement expired. 

 
 
Use of Purchase Orders  
[60A-1.016, F.A.C., Contract and Purchase Order Requirements] 
 
The Coalition utilizes a purchase order system.  A properly completed purchase order shall be required for 
each purchase decision (i.e., total amount of goods and services purchased, not unit cost) in excess of $500.00, 



                                     Accounting and Financial Policies and Procedures 
 

 Early Learning Coalition of North Florida 15 

with the exception of travel advances and expense reimbursements, which require the preparation of a separate 
form described elsewhere in this manual.   
 
Purchase orders shall be pre-numbered, kept in a secure area (on an electronic drive with restricted access), 
and issued upon request from an authorized purchaser.  
 
It is the Coalition’s policy to issue a purchase order (or use a credit card with proper authorization) PRIOR to 
the procurement of goods and services. 
 
All purchase orders shall be recorded in a purchase order log. At the end of each grant year the Office 
Manager shall prepare an aged outstanding purchase request report for the Finance Manager’s review. 
 
A properly completed purchase order shall contain the following information: 
 

1. Policy disclosures  
a. Contractor name, address, point of contact and phone number 
b. Source of funding 
c. Solicitation number (if applicable)# 
d. Statements regarding the quantity, description, and price of goods or services ordered# 
e. Applicable payment terms and discounts# 
f. Date of performance, transportation/delivery# 
g. Liquidated damages# 
h. Catalog number, page number, etc. (if applicable) 
i. Net price per unit, less any discount(s) 
j. Total amount of order 
k. Authorized signature 
l. Date purchase order was prepared 
m. Additional disclosures may also apply for higher dollar purchases  

1) Payment audit (records of costs will be available upon request) 
2) Payment made after written “agency” acceptance 
3) Payment timeframe – timely payments will be made 
4) Funding availability/annual appropriation 
5) No lobbying 
6) Public access/public records 
7) Conduct of business – federal/state laws govern 
8) Conflict of interest/related party activities 
9) Confidentiality and safeguarding information 
10) Termination for cause – required for purchases in excess of $10,000^ 
11) Remedies – required for purchases in excess of $35,000^ 

 
# Required disclosure element per state purchasing statutes or rules (see 60A-1.016, F.A.C.). 
^Required disclosures element per federal grant program rules (see 2 CFR Part 200 Appendix II). 
 
 

2. Control processes required for Coalition purchase orders (see 60A-1.016, F.A.C.) 
a. Secure all unused purchase orders in a safe place and restrict access to these documents. 
b. Maintain an electronic file for all consecutive purchase orders issued or voided.  
c. Maintain a record of persons authorized to issue and sign each type of purchase order.  
d. Monitor and review processes for the use of purchase orders and field purchase orders (those 



 
 

 Early Learning Coalition of North Florida 16 
               Accounting and Financial Policies and Procedures 

issued by an agency/office that is separate from the agency purchasing office (i.e., satellite 
offices). 

e. Rationale for method of procurement used. 
 
 
Preparation of a Voucher Package for Payment 
 
Prior to any accounts payable being submitted to the Finance Manager for payment, a package called a 
“voucher package” shall be assembled by the Office Manager.  Each voucher package shall contain the 
following documents: 
 
1. Vendor invoice (or employee expense report) 
2. Packing slip (where appropriate) 
3. Receiving report (or other indication of receipt of merchandise and authorization of acceptance) 
4. Approved order document/purchase order as required by procurement policies 
5. Any other supporting documentation deemed appropriate 
6. Check request or purchase order 
 
 
Processing of Voucher Packages for Payment 
 
The following procedures shall be applied to each voucher package: 
 
1. Check the mathematical accuracy of the vendor invoice. 
2. Ensure that no sales tax charged are included in the calculation for payment. 
3. Compare the nature, quantity and prices of all items ordered per the vendor invoice to the approved 

order document/purchase order, packing slip and receiving documentation. 
4. Document the general ledger distribution, using the Coalition’s current chart of accounts. 
 
 
 
Approvals 
 
Approval by the Office Manager indicates the acknowledgement of satisfactory receipt of the goods or 
services invoiced. 
 
Approval by the Office Manager indicates the agreement with all terms appearing on the vendor invoice and 
agreement to pay vendor in full. Approvals shall be documented with initials or signature of the Finance 
Manager. 
 
 
Payment Discounts 
 



Accounting and Financial Policies and Procedures 
Early Learning Coalition of North Florida 17 

To the extent practical, the Coalition takes advantage of all prompt payment discounts offered by vendors. 
When such discounts are available, and all required documentation in support of payment is available, 
payments will be scheduled so as to take full advantage of the discounts. 

Employee Expense Reports 

Reimbursements for travel expenses, business meals, or other approved costs will be made only upon the 
receipt of a properly approved and completed expense reimbursement form.   All required receipts must be 
attached, and a brief description of the business purpose of trip or meeting must be noted on the form. 
Expense reports will be processed for payment in the next vendor payment cycle if received within two 
business days of the deadline.  Expenses older than two months will not be reimbursed.  

The Finance Manager will periodically check expense reports against timesheets to ensure agreement of dates 
and activities. 

Accounts Payable 

The Coalition is on a modified cash accounting method.  From month to month expenses are recorded as they 
are paid.  At the end of the fiscal year, unrecorded liabilities are recorded into the year the expense occurred 
regardless of when payment was made. 

Reconciliation of A/P  

At the end of each monthly accounting period the Finance Manager reviews the subrecipient payable account 
to the last invoice received from the subrecipient.  Differences are investigated immediately. 

Also on a monthly basis, the Finance Manager shall perform the following procedures: 

1. Check all statements received for unprocessed invoices.
2. Check the approved order document/purchase order file for open orders more than 60

days old and follow up.

Management of Accounts Payable Vendor Master File 

Upon the receipt of an invoice from a new vendor that is not already in the Coalition’s vendor master file, the 
Finance Manager shall mail (or email) a Form W-9 and a request for completion of the Form W-9, including 
the vendor’s full address and Federal employer identification number. 

The vendor file data will include the following data: 

1. Vendor’s legal name and any DBA name(s)



Early Learning Coalition of North Florida 18 
               Accounting and Financial Policies and Procedures 

2. Street address (payments may be mailed to a P.O. Box, but a street address must be in the file)
3. Federal employer identification number
4. Telephone number
5. Fax number
6. Contact name

Payments shall not be made to any vendor whose file does not comply with the preceding requirements. 

On an annual basis, vendors that have not been utilized over the preceding 24-month period shall be purged 
(or made inactive) from the master vendor file. In addition, on an annual basis an internal audit shall be 
performed of the master vendor file and of payment histories made to each vendor. This analysis, to be 
performed by the Finance Manager shall consist of the following procedures, at a minimum: 

1. Cross-checking of vendors with matching street or P.O. Box addresses

2. Review of payment histories for signs of repeat invoice numbers or other indications of duplicate
payments

Any unexplained deviations or irregularities noted in connection with the preceding internal audit procedures 
shall be reported to the Office Manager. 

Verification of New Vendors 

The Office Manager will perform additional procedures to validate the legitimacy of new vendors that shall be 
paid one-time or cumulative payments in excess of $10,000.  For such vendors, the Office Manager shall 
perform a limited public records search and shall contact the vendor to validate the vendor’s existence. 



                                     Accounting and Financial Policies and Procedures 
 

 Early Learning Coalition of North Florida 19 

F306  TRAVEL AND BUSINESS EXPENSES     
 
Effective Date:  08/28/07  
Revision Date: 08/05/09, 08/03/11, 06/06/12, 12/07/16, 09/20/17, 08/07/19, 12/01/21 
 
 
Travel Regulations and Guidance 
 
[2 CFR Part 200.302, Financial management systems; 200.303, Internal controls; DFS Reference Guide, DFS 
State Travel Manual; s. 112.061, F.S. Per diem and travel expenses of public officers, employees, and 
authorized persons; CFO Memo No. 06 (2016-17), chapter 69I-42 Florida Administrative Code (FAC); and 
FDOE Travel Policy DOE-IOP-500, effective 12/01/16.] 

 
1. Policy disclosures  

a. Travel expenses will be documented and reimbursed based on applicable state travel rules 
(includes DFS Reference Guide, State Travel Manual CFO Memos and OEL guidance).  

b. Management has process in place to ensure proper authorization, review, approval, and guidelines 
to submit adequate supporting records. Includes blanket travel authorizations (if used), 
requirement to use state-issued travel authorization, travel advances and travel reimbursement 
forms that include all required signatures/statements from the traveler, requirement to use most 
economical and efficient method for each travel event.   

c. Management has a process to ensure reimbursements do not exceed allowable amounts. Includes 
detail for allowable mileage reimbursement amounts, meal rates from statutes, travel per diem 
calculations, and recent travel restrictions to limit allowable daily room rates to $150 per day per 
traveler [or $175 per night ONLY IF the lodging was associated with a meeting, conference, or 
convention organized or sponsored by the Coalition.  (“Sponsored” meaning contributed money toward 
the event)].  Also includes processes to ensure only reasonable and necessary business-related 
costs are incurred.  

d. An independent review and approval process is in place for costs incurred by members of the 
management team. 

e. Management has a process to document instances misuse by staff and issue notice of personnel 
actions taken/required (if applicable). 

 
 
Travel Approval 
 
In State: 
All travel expenses (local and overnight), must be pre-approved by the C.E.O. (for Coalition employees), and 
by another Board Member or the Coalition Board of Directors (for the C.E.O. and/or Board members) prior to 
travel taking place. 
 
The pre-approval can be processed using a ‘blanket’ approval for the entire fiscal year (to include an estimated 
dollar amount) or on an individual basis. 
 
Out of State: 
All out of state travel (for ALL Coalition employees and ALL board members) must be pre-approved by 
another Board Member or the Board of Directors prior to travel taking place. 



 
 

 Early Learning Coalition of North Florida 20 
               Accounting and Financial Policies and Procedures 

 
 
Travel Advances 
 
Funds will be advanced for upcoming travel only upon receipt of a completed and properly approved request 
for travel advance.  Travel advances are generally limited to $200 unless there is an extraordinary need for 
additional funds. Travel advances are to be used only for the purpose intended.  Travel expenses are to be 
made in accordance with the Coalition’s travel policies as explained later in this section. 
 
Employees receiving travel advances are required to sign for the advance signifying their acknowledgement 
of, and agreement to, these policies. Employees receiving travel advances must submit an expense report 
within five (5) business days of returning from travel.  Any outstanding advances more than 2 weeks old will 
be deducted from an employee's next paycheck.  
 
 
Employee and Director Business Travel 
 
All out-of-state Coalition related business travel must be pre-approved by the employee’s immediate 
supervisor or the Board of Directors. 
 
At the conclusion of the Coalition business trip, an employee or member of the Board of Directors that has 
incurred business-related expenses should complete an expense report in accordance with the following 
policies:   
 
1. Identify each separately incurred business expense (i.e., do not group all expenses associated with one 

trip together). 
2. With the exception of parking, tolls, reimbursed mileage, and per diems, all business expenses must 

be supported with invoices/receipts.  
3. Vendor receipts/invoices must be submitted for all lodging and any expenditure other than meals. 

Credit card charge slips do not represent adequate supporting documentation – a hotel receipt must be 
obtained to substantiate all lodging expenditures.   

4. For airfare, airline-issued receipts should be obtained. If a traveler fails to obtain a receipt, other 
evidence must be submitted indicating that a trip was taken and the amount paid (for example, a 
combination of an itinerary, a credit card receipt, and boarding passes). 

5. Mileage will be reimbursed at the standard rates currently in effect with OEL. 
6. The business purpose of each trip must be adequately explained on each report. 
7. General ledger account coding must be identified for all expenditures. 
8. For all meals and other business expenditures, the following must be clearly identified: 

a. Names, titles, the Coalitions, and business relationships of all persons involved 
b. The business purpose of the meal or other business event (topics discussed, etc.) 

9. All expense reports must be signed and dated by the employee or board member. 
10. All expense reports must be approved by the C.E.O. 
11. Only one expense report form should be prepared for each substantial trip. 
12.   The Office Manager maintains a current “Frequent Trips” travel mileage log, for employee use.  It is 

available on the Coalition share drive, and is updated at least annually. 



                                     Accounting and Financial Policies and Procedures 
 

 Early Learning Coalition of North Florida 21 

 
An employee will not be reimbursed for expense reports not meeting the preceding criteria. If the expense 
report results in a balance due to the Coalition (as a result of receiving a travel advance greater than actual 
business expenditures), the employee must return the cash to the Office Manager to deposit back into the 
Coalition checking account against the original check. 
 
No further travel advances will be issued to any employee who has an outstanding balance due to the 
Coalition from previous business trips. 
 
 
Reasonableness of Travel Costs 
 
The Coalition shall reimburse travelers only for those business-related costs that are reasonably incurred. 
Accordingly, the following guidelines shall apply: 
 
1. Suites and other upgraded rooms at hotels shall not be allowed.  Travelers should stay in standard 

rooms. 
2. Ask hotels for any available discounts – nonprofit, government or corporate rates. 
3. When utilizing rental cars, travelers must rent compact size cars.  When the number of passengers is 

more than two (2) or the volume of materials to be transported makes use of a compact vehicle 
impractical, travelers can rent a larger size relative to the needs.  Share rental cars whenever possible. 

4. Business-related long-distance telephone calls while away on business travel are permitted, but should 
be kept to a minimum. Expense reports should explain long-distance charges. 

5. Personal long-distance calls while away on business are reimbursable if kept to a minimum, such as 
one nightly call home to family.  Personal calls in excess of this shall not be reimbursed. 

6. Whenever possible, travelers should utilize long-distance calling cards when placing calls while away 
on travel.  Avoid using the hotel’s long-distance service if possible. 

7. Foreign travel charged to Federal grants must be approved in writing by the funding source prior to 
travel. 

 
 
Special Rules Pertaining to Air Travel 
 
The following additional rules apply to air travel: 
 
1. Air travel should be at coach class or the lowest commercial discount fare at the time the ticket is 

purchased except when this fare would: 
 a. Require circuitous routing 
 b. Require travel during unreasonable hours 
 c.  Excessively prolong travel 
 d. Result in additional costs that would offset the transportation savings, or 
 e. Offer accommodations not reasonably adequate for the traveler’s medical needs. 
2. First class air travel shall not be reimbursed unless there is a documented medical reason, and such 

use must be documented. 
3. Memberships in airline flight clubs are not reimbursable. 



Early Learning Coalition of North Florida 22 
               Accounting and Financial Policies and Procedures 

4. Cost of flight insurance is not reimbursable.
5. When airfare is $500 or more, two quotes from a travel agency and/or an airline should be obtained

and attached to the expense report.
6. When returning on a Sunday or departing on a Saturday in order to obtain a cost savings in airfare due

to the Saturday-night stay-over, travelers should provide a total cost comparison (showing that the
lower airfare plus an extra night lodging, meals & incidentals is less costly than airfare without the
Saturday night stay-over).

7. Cost of upgrade certificates is not reimbursable.
8. Cost of canceling and rebooking flights is not reimbursable, unless it can be shown that it was

necessary or required for legitimate business reasons (such as changed meeting dates, etc.).
9. Travelers must identify and pay for all personal flights, even if such flights are incorporated into a

flight schedule that serves business purposes (i.e., the Coalition will not reimburse for the personal
legs of a trip).

Spouse/Partner Travel 

The Coalition does not reimburse any employee or board member for separate travel costs (air fare, etc.) 
associated with his/her spouse or partner. The cost of a shared hotel room need not be allocated between 
employee/director and spouse/partner for purposes of this policy. 



Early Learning Coalition of North Florida, Inc. 
 Annual Board Meeting 

December 1, 2021 

 

VI.  New/Unfinished Business  

 

H.  Approval of Revisions to the Coalition’s 
Contract Management and Monitoring Policies 

and Procedures* 

 

 

*ACTION ITEM 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  



Early Learning Coalition of North Florida, Inc. 

ACTION ITEM SUMMARY 

DESCRIPTION Revisions to the Coalition’s Contract Management and Monitoring Policies 
and Procedures 

Reason for 
Recommended Action 

Revisions from annual review of policies: 

CM302 – Contract Requirements,  Added the most current grant agreement 
assurances and certifications for sub-recipient contracts.  Added additional 
sections to ‘audit requirements’, not previously in policy.  The additional 
sections also had new requirements in this year’s grant agreement for related 
party transactions and special audit testing requirements. 

If this is not done, the following would occur: 

• The Coalition would not have the most accurate and updated Policies and
Procedures.

How the Action will be 
accomplished 

Approval of the revisions listed above. 



 Early Learning Coalition of North Florida - 1 – 
                                   Contract Management and Monitoring Policies and Procedures 

 

 
CM302 Contract Requirements     
 
Effective Date: 04/08/15 
Revision Date:  03/16/16, 12/07/16, 02/07/18, 06/12/19, 03/10/21, 12/01/21 
 
 
Contract Overview 

A clear and complete contract is a critical component of this process.  The quality of the contract can 
determine whether the contract will be successful.  Additionally, issuing a comprehensive contract is 
necessary because the quality of the contract will have a direct effect on the payment process, the 
monitoring process, and the overall success of the project.   

 
Contracts should CONTAIN: 
 
 A specific and clearly defined scope of work 
 
 Specific deliverables (quantifiable, measurable and directly related to the scope of work) 
 
 Sub-contracting/sub-granting terms, if applicable 

o The contractor should be required to use a competitive procurement method or provide a 
detailed cost analysis for services obtained from subcontractors. 

o If the contract is a cost reimbursement contract, any subcontractor should also be a cost 
reimbursement contract. 

 
 All terms and conditions necessary to govern the relationship between the contractor and the 

subcontractor. 
 
 Payment terms (e.g., frequency of payments, method of payment and required documentation) 

 
 Specific steps for pro-rating invoice amounts if minimum performance standards are not met. 

Remember, cost reimbursement and fixed price agreements should include minimum performance 
standards that ensure an adequate level of services are provided.  

 
 Contracts with subcontractors must contain standard audit language regarding federal and state 

financial assistance.   
 
 The timing, nature and substance of all reports the contractor/subcontractor is required to prepare 
 
 A provision for the disposition of property purchased with coalition funds.  If the contractor is for 

contractual services and the property is defined as “property” in Coalition policy #F402, it should be 
returned to the coalition upon contract termination.  Disposition of non-expendable property acquired 
with state or federal financial assistance must be disposed of in accordance with applicable rules and 
regulations. 

 
 Specific sanctions for noncompliance/nonperformance of required services 

 
 All required/applicable contract provisions/disclosures in writing. [2 CFR Part 200.326] 

 

 



Early Learning Coalition of North Florida - 2 – 
  Contract Management and Monitoring Policies and Procedures 

Contracts should REQUIRE: 

 The contractor and subcontractors maintain both cost and programmatic records for five years and
allow the coalition access to the records. 

 The contractor/subcontractor to have an adequate cost accounting system or require the
contractor/subcontractor to maintain a separate bank account. 

 A financial status report (summary of activity and costs) submitted prior to the final payment.

 Return of all unused funds

 All costs to be reasonable, allowable, allocable and documented, and require repayment for all
disallowed costs 

 Bonding for construction-related contracts. (if allowable). [2 CFR Part 200.325]

 Cleared Background Screenings and Credentials of Contractor employees assigned to work on the
contract (if applicable).  See Coalition Personnel Policy #HR204 for more information. 

Price Cost Analysis 

Depending on the procurement method and type of contract to be entered into, a price and/or cost analysis 
should be completed.  The price and/or cost analysis must be completed before receiving bids or 
responses to proposals.  Section 216.3475 Florida Statutes requires that a person or entity that is awarded 
funding on a non-competitive basis may not be paid more than the competitive market rate.   

Definition Objective Actions 

Price 
Analysis 

The process of examining 
and evaluating proposed 
price without evaluating its 
separate cost elements. 

Verify that overall price is 
fair and reasonable. 

*Compare current proposed prices

*Compare current price to previous
price 

Cost 
Analysis 

The process of reviewing 
and evaluating separate 
cost elements. 

Determine the allowability 
and reasonableness of 
proposed cost elements. 

*Determine that proposed costs are
allowable per federal and state laws, 
rules and regulations. 

*Evaluate necessity for and
reasonableness of proposed costs.  
Give particular attention to fringe 
benefits, overhead and indirect cost 
rates, profit margin. 

*Compare to actual costs previously
incurred for same services. 



 Early Learning Coalition of North Florida - 3 – 
                                   Contract Management and Monitoring Policies and Procedures 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Contract Renewals and Extensions 
Renewals 

Pursuant to Section 287.057(13), F.S., coalitions may renew contracts for commodities or contractual 
services for the original term of the contract or for a period that may not exceed three (3) years, whichever 
period is longer. The coalition must provide documentation justifying that the renewal is in the best 
interest of the State and keep such justification in the contract file. Renewals are contingent upon 
satisfactory performance evaluations by the coalition, are subject to availability of funds, and must be 
authorized by mutual agreement in writing.   Contractors shall include the cost of any contemplated 
renewals in their responses, and the renewal, if any, is subject to the same terms and conditions set forth 
in the initial contract.  Exceptional purchase contracts pursuant to Section 287.057, paragraphs (3)(a) 
(emergency procurements) and (c) (single source procurements) may not be renewed. 

Extensions  
Pursuant to Section 287.057(12), F.S., coalitions may extend contracts for services for a period not to 
exceed 6 months. The extension is subject to the same terms and conditions set forth in the initial 
contract. A coalition may only extend a services contract once, unless events beyond the control of the 
contractor cause the contractor’s failure to meet the criteria for contract completion. 
 
 
Contract Provisions  
 
The Coalition includes the following provisions, as applicable, in all contracts charged to Federal awards 
(including small purchases) with vendors and sub grants to grantees/contractors: 
 
 
Federal Considerations [2 CFR Part 200.326; 2 CFR Part 200 Appendix II] 
 
For transactions funded by federal programs, additional disclosures are required regardless of 
scoped/services. 

a. Debarment and suspension provision(s). 
b. Equal Employment Opportunity provision. 
c. Other/additional terms may also apply based on scoped goods/services. 

 
 
 

NOTE:   
 

 Competition (2 or more responses) usually 
establishes price reasonableness. 

 
 Fixed price/fixed rate agreements with 

vendors, which have been competitively 
       

      
      

     
      

  
 

       
      

 
      

     
        
         

      
  

 



 Early Learning Coalition of North Florida - 4 – 
                                   Contract Management and Monitoring Policies and Procedures 

 

Audit Requirements   
 

A. Accounting and auditing requirements 
1. During the course of any state fiscal year, the Office, the Florida DFS, the Florida Auditor 

General, HHS, Inspector Generals of federal and state agencies, the Comptroller General of the 
United States or any of their duly authorized representatives may review operations of and 
records from the Contractor. 

2. Any of the above-listed reviews may identify questioned costs. The Contractor shall have an 
opportunity to substantiate or appeal the finding or questioned cost(s). Any unresolved questioned 
costs may become disallowed federal and state program costs. Section 17.04, F.S., and 2 CFR 
§200, require Contractors to repay disallowed federal and state program costs. 
Contractors/grantees may not pay disallowed costs with federal grant, state grant or matching 
funds. 

3. The Contractor agrees that legal expenses and related costs in the defense or prosecution of any 
claim or appeal against the state government or any of its agencies are not reimbursable costs. 
However, 2 CFR §200 Subpart E allows reasonable legal expenses and related costs required in 
administering early learning programs within administrative expenditure limitations for SR and 
VPK Programs. 

B. Monitoring 
1. Monitoring activities. The Office is responsible for monitoring grant, subrecipient and contract 

supported activities to assure compliance with Federal requirements and that performance goals 
are being achieved. In accordance with 45 CFR §75.342 (also 2 CFR §200.328), Monitoring and 
reporting program performance, subrecipient monitoring must cover each program, function and 
activity. Such monitoring activities may include, but are not limited to, onsite visits by OEL/ELC 
staff or contracted consultants, limited scope audits as defined by 2 CFR §200, and/or other 
procedures. By entering into the agreement, the Contractor agrees to comply and cooperate with 
any monitoring procedures/processes OEL/ELC deems appropriate. The Contractor further agrees 
to comply and cooperate with any inspections, reviews, investigations or audits deemed necessary 
by the HHS, the Florida DFS or the Florida Auditor General. 

2. Related party disclosures. The Contractor shall ensure that all related party transactions are 
included in the financial statement footnote disclosures in accordance with requirements defined 
in Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) Accounting Standards Codification (ASC) 850, 
Related Party Disclosures. In addition, the grantee shall comply with all applicable provisions of 
Chapter 112, F.S., Public Officers and Employees, as required by s. 1002.83(8), F.S. and s. 
1002.84(20), F.S. for related party transactions. 
2.1. Documentation of related party activity to support proper written notification to the 

entity’s governing board is required and must be submitted to OEL for review/acceptance. 
Such supporting documentation includes the following items. 
2.1.1. The impacted individual must complete the necessary conflict of interest 

disclosure forms. 
2.1.2. Any governing board member(s) benefitting from the activity must disclose in 

advance in writing the conflict of interest and must abstain from the vote process. 
2.1.3. Meeting minutes that reflect a valid vote of approval by two-thirds vote of the 

entire membership of the governing board.  
2.1.4. A copy of the agreement or written summary of the transaction including the start 

date, purpose, amount/cost incurred and funding/OCA code(s) charged. 
2.1.5. Related documentation to verify compliance with state purchasing rules.  

2.2. No related party activities may be executed without approval from the Office.  
2.2.1. Transactions under $25,000 must be submitted to OEL for processing within 30 

days after receipt of governing board approval.  
2.2.2. Transactions of $25,000 or more must be submitted to OEL for prior written 

approval before the contract/agreement/activity can be executed.  

http://www.leg.state.fl.us/Statutes/index.cfm?App_mode=Display_Statute&Search_String=&URL=1000-1099/1002/Sections/1002.83.html


Early Learning Coalition of North Florida - 5 – 
  Contract Management and Monitoring Policies and Procedures 

2.3. Related party activities and/or conflicts of interest occur when for any transaction the 
benefits of an interested party may be seen as competing with those of the State of Florida. 
Such conflicts of interest:  
2.3.1. May be financial or non-financial. 
2.3.2. May include actual, potential and perceived conflicts of interest.  
2.3.3. Include organizational conflicts of interest that occur because of a relationship 

with an affiliate or subsidiary organization. 
2.3.4. May occur due to governing board members and/or active entity employees.    

2.4. Each ELC shall submit one electronic copy of the support files described above in Section 
2.1 and any other supporting files considered necessary electronically to the report 
recipient indicated in Exhibit VI – List of Reports. If the ELC does not have access to the 
OEL SharePoint site, OEL will provide alternative written instructions. 

3. Internal controls – auditor documentation. The Contractor shall obtain the internal control work
papers from the auditor(s) performing the annual independent financial statement audit. The
Contractor shall keep these work papers onsite as part of its financial records and shall provide a
copy to OEL/ELC as part of the financial reporting package as instructed in section C.3. Report
Submission, below.

4. Internal controls – annual self-assessment. The Contractor must perform an internal controls
self-assessment using OEL’s annual Internal Control Questionnaire (ICQ) Survey Form. The
Contractor shall provide a copy of the completed annual ICQ to ELC, as instructed below, by
August 31 of each grant award period unless ELC provides other written instructions.
4.1. The annual ICQ will help the Contractor document that the primary objectives for internal

controls pertaining to compliance requirements for federal programs, including the 
following, are met in accordance with 2 CFR §200.303:  
4.1.1. The Contractor properly records and accounts for transactions. 
4.1.2. The Contractor executes transactions in compliance with laws, regulations and 

contract provisions. 
4.1.3. The Contractor safeguards funds, property and other assets against loss due to 

unauthorized use or disposition. 
4.1.4. Reasonable measures are taken to safeguard protected personally identifiable 

information (PPII) and other information the Federal awarding agency or the Office 
consider sensitive consistent with applicable Federal, state and local laws regarding 
privacy and obligations of confidentiality. 

4.2. OEL/ELC will provide the annual ICQ form in electronic format to the Contractor by July 
1 of each award period, unless OEL/ELC makes other arrangements. 

C. Audits 

1. Federally-funded
This section is applicable if the ELC is a state or local government or a non-profit organization as
defined in 2 CFR §200. A web site that provides links to several Federal Single Audit Act
resources can be found at: Federal Single Audit Act Resources.
1.1. According to the Subpart F-Audits 45 CFR §75.501(a), non-federal entities that expend

$750,000 or more during the non-Federal entity's fiscal year in Federal awards must have a 
single or program-specific audit conducted for that year in accordance with the provisions 
of this part and other applicable federal regulations. Guidance on determining Federal 
awards expended is provided in 45 CFR Part 75.502 (2 CFR §200.502). 

https://harvester.census.gov/facweb/Resources.aspx
http://www.ecfr.gov/cgi-bin/text-idx?node=se45.1.75_1501&rgn=div8
https://www.ecfr.gov/cgi-bin/text-idx?node=pt45.1.75#se45.1.75_1502


Early Learning Coalition of North Florida - 6 – 
  Contract Management and Monitoring Policies and Procedures 

1.2. The Office’s Notice of Award indicates Federal resources awarded through the Office by 
this agreement. In determining the Federal awards expended in its fiscal year, the ELC shall 
consider all sources of Federal awards, including Federal resources received from the 
Office. In connection with the audit requirements, the recipient shall also fulfill the 
following instructions related to auditee responsibilities as provided in 45 CFR §§75.508 
through 75.512 (also 2 CFR §§200.508 through 200.512), as well as the following 
additional state-level requirements. The financial statements shall disclose whether the 
grantee met the matching requirement for each applicable contract/grant in accordance with 
OEL Program Guidance 440.10 – Match Reporting.  
1.2.1. The ELC shall fully disclose in the audit report all questioned costs and liabilities 

due to OEL with reference to the OEL grant award(s), agreement(s) or contract(s) 
involved. 

1.2.2. The audit procedures and Single Audit reports must include OEL’s annual financial 
and programmatic monitoring report results, as applicable.  

1.3. The ELC is responsible for submitting the Single Audit Reports and the required federal 
Data Collection Forms (SF-FAC) electronically to the Federal Audit Clearinghouse within 
the earlier of  thirty (30) days after receipt or nine months after the fiscal year’s end of the 
audit period. 

1.4. If the ELC expends less than $750,000 in federal awards in its fiscal year, a federal Single 
Audit is not required. If the ELC still elects to have an audit conducted in accordance with 
the provisions of 2 CFR §200, then the cost of the audit must be paid from non-federal 
resources (i.e., the ELC must pay the audit costs from resources obtained from non-federal 
and non-state entities). 

2. State-funded
This part is applicable if the ELC is a non-state entity as defined by s. 215.97(2), F.S. – The
Florida Single Audit Act. Additional information regarding the Florida Single Audit Act can be
found at: Florida Single Audit Act.
2.1. The Office’s Notice of Award indicates State resources awarded through the Office by this

agreement. In determining the State awards expended in its fiscal year, the ELC shall 
consider all sources of State awards, including State resources received from the Office. 

2.2. In the event the ELC expends $750,000 or more of state financial assistance in any fiscal 
year, the ELC must have a state single or project-specific audit conducted accordance with 
the Florida Single Audit Act; Chapter 69I-5, F.A.C.; Rule 61H1-20.0093, F.A.C., Chapter 
10.550 – Local Government Entity Audits or Chapter 10.650 – Florida Single Audit Act 
Audits Non-profit and For-profit Organizations.  

2.3. In determining the state financial assistance expended in its fiscal year, the recipient shall 
consider all sources of state financial assistance, including state financial assistance 
received from the Office, other state agencies and other non-state entities. State financial 
assistance does not include federal direct or pass-through awards and resources received by 
a non-state entity for federal program matching requirements. 

2.4. If the ELC expends less than $750,000 in state financial assistance in its fiscal year, a 
Florida Single Audit is not required. If the ELC still elects to have an audit conducted in 
accordance with the provisions of s. 215.97, F.S., the cost of the audit must be paid from 
non-state resources (i.e., the ELC must pay the audit costs from resources obtained from 
non-federal and non-state entities). 

2.5. Pursuant to s. 215.97(8), F.S., state agencies may conduct or arrange for audits of state 
financial assistance that are in addition to audits conducted in accordance with s. 215.97, 
F.S. In such an event, the state awarding agency must arrange for funding the full cost of 
such additional audits.  

2.6. Find additional information regarding the Florida Single Audit Act at the Florida DFS 
website State Single Audit resources. 

3. Special Audit Testing Requirements

https://harvester.census.gov/facides/(S(niy3ix4zxs3f1k2inn5wuhhn))/account/login.aspx
http://www.leg.state.fl.us/Statutes/index.cfm?App_mode=Display_Statute&Search_String=&URL=0200-0299/0215/Sections/0215.97.html
http://www.leg.state.fl.us/Statutes/index.cfm?App_mode=Display_Statute&URL=0200-0299/0215/Sections/0215.97.html
https://apps.fldfs.com/fsaa/
https://apps.fldfs.com/fsaa/


Early Learning Coalition of North Florida - 7 – 
  Contract Management and Monitoring Policies and Procedures 

3.1. It is essential that the audit firm test the Contractor's monthly reconciliation of its financial records to 
the Single Statewide Information System (SSIS).  The auditor must include a statement in the 
Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs confirming the following: (a) that the Contractor staff 
performs this reconciliation monthly; (b) that the Contractor has processes in place to identify and 
correct errors noted during the monthly reconciliation process; and (c) the Contractor's financial 
records and the SSIS records were reconciled and in agreement as of the annual program year end 
(June 30th).  To report on the audit tests performed, the auditor must include a statement in the 
Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs confirming the following: (a) the Contractor staff 
performs this reconciliation monthly; (b) the Contractor has processes in place to identify and correct 
errors noted during the monthly reconciliation process; and (c) the Contractor's financial records and 
the SSIS records (or acceptable equivalent documentation files tested/audited) were reconciled and 
in agreement as of the annual program year end (June 30th).  Finally, a statement must be included 
to indicate the auditor's work papers include documentation to verify tests of these tasks were 
performed and such work papers are available for review by OEL/ELC staff upon request.  

3.2. If such testing was not completed, or if these statements are missing from the annual audit 
report, the auditor's annual procedures will be considered incomplete/deficient and the 
Coalition will receive notice of such in the OIG’s annual Management Decision. 

3.3. All funds administered by the Coalitions must be included in the audit coverage. This 
includes funds that are provided to any auxiliary entity over which the Coalition exercises 
controlling influence, such as a foundation. For purposes of this Agreement, all foundations 
or other similar entities are considered to be affiliated organizations and, in some instances, 
may need to be classified as a component unit.  

3.4. For any affiliated organization, at a minimum the audit report should disclose the entity's 
mission/purpose and summarized financial data including total assets, liabilities, net assets, 
revenues, expenditures, and the entity's relationship to the Coalition's activities. The auditor 
may need to provide other disclosures and presentations (such as consolidated financial 
statements) as appropriate after giving proper consideration of applicable accounting 
standards pronouncements regarding reporting of related entities such as FASB Statement 
of Position (SOP) 94-3.  

4. Report submission

4.1. Copies of reporting packages (including any management letter issued by the auditor and
the ELC’s written corrective action plan response(s)) for federal Single Audits required by 
Sections C.1. and C.2. above shall be submitted as required by 2 CFR §200.512, by or on 
behalf of the ELC directly to each of the addresses indicated.  

4.2. Submit one electronic copy of the financial reporting package and files described above in 
Section B.3. to the Coalition’s Finance Manager and the Office at the following address: 

Office of Early Learning 

Financial Management Systems Assurance Section (FMSAS) 

Email – OEL.Questions@oel.myflorida.com 

Website – OEL Share Point site: 

OEL Portal/Partners/Contractor site/FMSAS Document Exchange – Restricted/20XX-XX 
FMSAS/Annual Audit Report Files 

4.3. Submit the Single Audit Reports and the required federal Data Collection Forms (SF-FAC) 
electronically to the Federal Audit Clearinghouse within the earlier of 30 days after receipt 
or nine months after the fiscal year’s end of the audit period.   

4.4. Submit one paper copy by mail and one electronic copy of the financial reporting package 
to the Coalition’s Finance Manager and the Auditor General’s Office at the following 
address: 

Auditor General 
Local Government Audits/342 
Claude Pepper Building, Room 401 
111 West Madison Street 

https://harvester.census.gov/facides/(S(niy3ix4zxs3f1k2inn5wuhhn))/account/login.aspx


Early Learning Coalition of North Florida - 8 – 
  Contract Management and Monitoring Policies and Procedures 

Tallahassee, FL 32399-1450 
Email: flaudgen_localgovt@aud.state.fl.us 
Website: https://flauditor.gov/ 

The ELC shall indicate in correspondence accompanying the reporting packages the date of 
delivery from the auditors to the ELC for the reporting package. 

4.5. All items Auditor General Rule 10.656(3) requires, as described on the Auditor General's 
Financial Reporting Package Submittal Checklist and the related checklist instructions must 
be included for a reporting package to be considered complete. 

Certifications and Assurances 

The Coalition will not award a contract where the Contractor has failed to accept the certifications this 
section contains. In performing its responsibilities under the agreement, the Contractor will certify and 
assure that it will fully comply with all applicable following requirements. 

I. Federal certifications – applicable to ALL ENTITIES as noted 

A. Cost allocation plan or indirect cost rate proposal. 
B. Proper expenditure reporting. 
C. Smoking Prohibitions (Pro-Children Act of 2001).* 
D. Status as a non-major corporation. 
E. Debarment, suspension and other responsibility matters.* 
F. Drug-Free Workplace. * - applies to purchases of services of $100,000 or more 
G. Environmental Tobacco Smoke Certification 
H. Filing and payment of taxes.*  
I. Lobbying.* - certification applies to purchases of $100,000 or more 

*applies to all vendor/contractor and subrecipient agreements, contracts and awards

II. Federal or state-required assurances – applicable to OEL SUBRECIPIENTS as noted

A. Clean Air Act (42 U.S.C. 7401, et seq.) and the Federal Water Pollution Control Act, as amended 
(33 U.S.C. 1251, et seq.).* - applies to purchases of $150,000 or more 

B. Conflicts of Interest. * 
C. Contract Work Hours and Safety Standards Act.*  
D. Copeland “Anti-Kickback” Act (18 U.S.C. 874 and 40 U.S.C. 276c).* 
E. Davis Bacon Act, as amended (40 U.S.C. 276a, et seq.).*  
F. Equal Employment Opportunity (EEO).* 
G. Procurement of recovered materials.*  
H. Purchase of American-Made Equipment and Products.* 

*applies to all vendor/contractor and subrecipient agreements, contracts and awards as noted

Descriptions of the following requirements are provided in OEL’s most recent annual grant 
agreement: 

A. Assurances – Non-Construction Programs  
B. Certification Regarding Convicted and Discriminatory Vendor List, Section 287.133 Florida 

Statutes 
C. Unauthorized Aliens; Employment Prohibited, Section 448.09, Florida Statutes 
D. Facility Accessibility Statement 

mailto:flaudgen_localgovt@aud.state.fl.us
http://www.myflorida.com/audgen
http://www.myflorida.com/audgen/pages/pdf_files/fsaa_submittal_16.pdf
http://www.myflorida.com/audgen/pages/pdf_files/fsaa_submittal_16.pdf
http://www.myflorida.com/audgen/pages/pdf_files/electronic_filing_nonprofits_profits.pdf


Early Learning Coalition of North Florida - 9 – 
  Contract Management and Monitoring Policies and Procedures 

E. Separation of VPK and SR Program Funds, Section 1002.71(1) and (7) F.S., and 45 CFR Part 
98.54 

F. Audit Requirements 
G. Certification Regarding Immigration Status 
H. Certification Regarding Standards of Conduct 
I. Certification Regarding Prohibition for Distribution of Funds to the Association of Community 

Organizations for Reform Now (ACORN) 
J. The Transparency Act   
K. Scrutinized Companies Lists Provisions and Certification (s. 287.135, F.S.) 
L. Certification Regarding Subrecipient Monitoring 
M. Assurance for Proper Expenditure Reporting 
N. CCDF Salary Cap Annual Testing Requirements 
O. Certification Regarding Non-profit Organization Status as a Non-major Corporation 
P. Certification of Cost Allocation Plan or Indirect Cost Rate Proposal 
Q. Procurement of Recovered Materials 
R. Assurances  - Construction Programs, if applicable  
S. Other Miscellaneous/General Disclosures 
T. Conflicts of Interest 
U. Procurements and other Purchases 
V. Property 
W. Purchase of American-Made Equipment and Products 
X. Reporting of Matters Related to Recipient Integrity and Performance 
Y. Compensation Report Requirements 

III. Any other applicable Certification and/or Assurance not listed above (as listed and/or updated
in the most current OEL Grant Agreement - which is incorporated into each subrecipient
contract).

Other Required Clauses 

Remedies:  
All contracts with an amount expected to exceed $35,000 (per Florida Statute 287.058 (1)(h)) shall 
contain contractual provisions or conditions that allow for administrative, contractual, or legal remedies in 
instances in which a contractor violates or breaches the contract terms. 

Termination:   
All contracts with an amount expected to exceed $10,000 [per 45 CFR Part 92.36(i)(2) and 2 CFR 
Chapter II, Part 200.B effective December 2014] shall contain suitable provisions for termination for 
cause and for convenience by the recipient and subrecipient,  including the manner by which termination 
shall be effected and the basis for settlement. In addition, such contracts shall describe the conditions 
under which the contract may be terminated for default as well as conditions where the contract may be 
terminated due to circumstances beyond the control of the contractor. 

Right to Audit:  
The Coalition requires a “Right to Audit” clause in all contracts between the Coalitions and vendors that 
either; (1) take any form of temporary possession of assets directed for the Coalition, or (2) process data 
that will be used in any financial function of the Coalition.  

This Right to Audit clause shall permit access to and review of all documentation and processes relating 
to the vendor’s operations that apply to the Coalition, as well as all documents maintained or processed on 



Early Learning Coalition of North Florida - 10 – 
  Contract Management and Monitoring Policies and Procedures 

behalf of the Coalition, for a period of three years. The clause shall state that such audit procedures may 
be performed by the Coalition employees or an outside auditor or contractor designated by the Coalition. 



Early Learning Coalition of North Florida, Inc. 
 Annual Board Meeting 

December 1, 2021 

VI. New/Unfinished Business

I.  Approval of Revisions to the Coalition’s 
Peronnel Policies and Procedures Manual* 

*ACTION ITEM



Early Learning Coalition of North Florida, Inc. 

ACTION ITEM SUMMARY 

DESCRIPTION Revisions to the Coalition’s Personnel Policies and Procedures Manual 

Reason for 
Recommended 
Action 

Revisions: 

HR108 – Immigration Law Compliance, added language to follow the instructions of the most 
current grant agreement when using the E-verify system. 

HR303 – Holidays, revised the list of holidays to match DEL’s requirements for allowable 
holidays, starting fiscal year 2021-2022. 

HR605 – Personal Appearance and Casual Days, changed the phrase employee ‘morale’ to 
employee ‘health and welfare’ per WipFli Consultants Grants Webinar 
recommendations. 

If this is not done, the following would occur: 
• The Coalition’s Personnel Policies would not be updated to be more in line with

governmental regulations nor actual practices.

How the Action 
will be 
accomplished 

Approval of the Personnel Policies and Procedures Manual revisions listed above. 



HR108 Immigration Law Compliance 

Effective Date: 02/19/08 
Revision Date: 08/24/12, 04/08/15, 12/01/21 

The Coalition is committed to employing only United States citizens and aliens who are authorized to 
work in the United States and does not unlawfully discriminate on the basis of citizenship or national 
origin. 

In compliance with the Immigration Reform and Control Act of 1986, each new employee, as a 
condition of employment, must complete section one the Employment Eligibility Verification Form I-9 
and present documentation establishing identity and employment eligibility on the day of initial 
employment. The Coalition will then review the documentation and fully complete section two of the 
Form I-9 within three business days of hire.  Former employees who are rehired must also complete the 
form if they have not completed an I-9 with the Coalition within the past three years, or if their previous 
I-9 is no longer retained or valid.  In addition, for any new employees hired after July 1, 2012, the 
Coalition will utilize the U.S. Department of Homeland Security’s E-Verify system to verify 
employment eligibility, using processes that meet the most current DEL (Division of Early Learning) 
grant agreement requirements. 

Employees with questions or seeking more information on immigration law issues are encouraged to 
contact their supervisor.  Employees may raise questions or complaints about immigration law 
compliance without fear of reprisal. 



 Early Learning Coalition of North Florida     2 
Personnel Policies and Procedures 

HR303 Holidays 
Effective Date: 02/19/08 
Revision Date: 06/21/17, 12/01/21 

To provide employees the opportunity to participate in traditional or personal holiday observances 
without loss of pay, the Coalition will grant holiday time off with pay to all regular full-time, regular part-
time, and introductory period employees on the holidays (or alternate ‘observance’ dates) listed below: 

* New Year's Day (January 1)
* Martin Luther King, Jr. Day (third Monday in January)
* President’s Day (third Monday in February)
* Good Friday (the Friday preceding Easter Sunday March/April)
* Memorial Day (last Monday in May)
* Independence Day (July 4)
* Labor Day (first Monday in September)
* Veterans' Day (November 11)
* Thanksgiving (fourth Thursday in November)
* Day after Thanksgiving
* Christmas Eve (December 24)
* Christmas Day (December 25)
* New Year’s Eve (December 31)

The Coalition reserves the option to have reduced office hours during the Christmas to New Year’s Day 
holidays, to be determined by the C.E.O. 

The Early Learning Coalition will grant paid holiday time off to all eligible employees in an eligible 
employment classification.  Holiday pay will be calculated based on the employee's straight-time pay rate 
(as of the date of the holiday) times the number of hours the employee would otherwise have worked on 
that day. 

If a holiday falls on a Saturday or Sunday and a weekday is officially designated for its celebration, that 
weekday will be recognized as a holiday under this policy. 

1. Holidays in conjunction with other periods of time off: 

a. Holidays are not counted as annual leave days.  If a holiday occurs during an 
annual leave period, the employee is not charged for that day as annual leave. 

b. Holidays, which occur during an employee's sick leave period, are not counted 
as a sick leave day. 

c. Holidays which occur during an authorized, unpaid leave of absence will be 
paid only if the absence is two weeks or less. 



 Early Learning Coalition of North Florida     3 
Personnel Policies and Procedures 

HR605 Personal Appearance and Casual Days 

Effective Date: 02/19/08 
Revision Date: 04/08/15, 12/01/21 

Personal Appearance 

Dress, grooming, and personal cleanliness standards contribute to the morale health and welfare of all 
employees and affect the business image the Coalition presents to clients and visitors. 

During business hours or when representing the Coalition, you are expected to present a clean, neat, and 
tasteful appearance.  You should dress and groom yourself according to the requirements of your position 
and accepted social standards.  This is particularly true if your job involves dealing with clients or 
visitors in person. 

Except for Casual Fridays (see Casual Day Policy), employees should wear appropriate business attire.  If 
your supervisor feels your personal appearance is inappropriate, you may be asked to leave the 
workplace until you are properly dressed or groomed.  Under such circumstance, you will not be 
compensated for the time away from work.  Consult your supervisor if you have questions as to what 
constitutes appropriate appearance.  Where necessary, reasonable accommodation may be made to a 
person with a disability. 

Without unduly restricting individual tastes, the following personal appearance guidelines should be 
followed: 

*Footwear must be worn at all times.  Shoes must provide safe, secure footing, and offer protection
against hazards.

*Shoes traditionally worn around the home (slippers or house shoes) are not
permitted.

* Shoes with stiletto heels (over four inches – 4”) are not permitted.

Casual Day Policy 

The following information is intended to serve as a guide to help define appropriate casual business wear 
for all employees during designated casual days at the Coalition.  Fridays or other days, such as certain 
holidays or days preceding holidays, may be designated as casual days with prior notification from your 
immediate supervisor. 

Our primary objective is to have employees project a professional image while taking advantage of more 
casual and relaxed fashions.  Casual dress offers a welcome alternative to the formality of typical 
business attire. 



                                              Early Learning Coalition of North Florida                                      4 
Personnel Policies and Procedures 

However, not all casual clothing is appropriate for the office.  Casual business wear means clean, neat, 
professional clothing.  It is never appropriate to wear stained, wrinkled, frayed, or revealing clothing to 
the workplace.  If you are considering wearing something and you are not sure if it is acceptable, choose 
something else or inquire first. 

Listed below is a general overview of acceptable casual business wear as well as a listing of some of the 
more common items that are not appropriate for the office.  Obviously, neither group is intended to be all 
inclusive.  Rather, these items should help set the general parameters for proper casual business wear and 
allow you to make intelligent judgments about items that are not specifically addressed. 

Examples of acceptable casual business wear include: 

* slacks 
* jeans 
* casual dresses and skirts 
* casual shirts and blouses 
* golf shirts (polo shirts) 
* turtlenecks 
* athletic shoes 

 

Examples of inappropriate clothing items that should not be worn on casual days include: 
 

* jeans that are excessively worn or faded 
* shorts 
* bib overalls 
* spandex or other form fitting pants 
* miniskirts 
* T-shirts or sweatshirts with inappropriate or offensive messages or images 
* tank tops (with less than a one inch – 1” shoulder strap) 
* halter tops 
* tops with bare shoulders unless worn under a blouse or jacket 
* visible undergarments 
* slippers 

On occasion, we may announce dress-down days where looser, even more informal clothing can be worn 
in order to allow you to enjoy a special occasion, better tolerate excessive heat conditions, or more 
comfortably organize your work area. 

For some, traditional business attire may simply remain a more favored option on casual days.  The 
choice will be yours.  We hope and fully expect that casual days will help make our workplace more 
enjoyable and productive. 

 
 



Early Learning Coalition of North Florida, Inc. 
 Annual Board Meeting 

December 1, 2021 

VI. New/Unfinished Business

J.  Approval of Disposal of Inventory* 

*ACTION ITEM



ACTION ITEM SUMMARY 

DESCRIPTION Approval of Disposal of Inventory 
Reason for Recommended Action Any disposal of property listed on Coalition inventory, must be board 

approved in order to proceed with the removal of any item on the 
inventory. 

Staff is asking permission to dispose of items that are no longer in 
good working order and are listed in Fair, Poor, Obsolete, Scrap 
Condition for tag numbers: 

• Work Station Furniture, 10 Cubicles, condition poor
• Work Station Furniture, 14 Cubicles, condition poor

If this is not done, the following would occur: 
• The Coalition would have to hold on to inventory that is no longer

being used.

How the Action will be accomplished Board Approval; then work with OEL on permission and 
approval on how to dispose of property. 

Early Learning Coalition of North Florida, Inc. 



Attachment A  Surplus Property Form Tangible Personal Property 

Surplus Property Form 

 TO: __________________________  From:    _________________________________ PAGE: _________ 

__________________________     _________________________________ 

__________________________     _________________________________ DATE: _________ 

ID Tag # Description of Property (w/name, Physical Location of Property Condition* Serial Comments ADDRESS: 
make, model # and manufacturer) Being Made Surplus Number 

CUSTODIAN DELEGATE: 

TELEPHONE NUMBER: 

FAX NUMBER: 

*CONDITION OF PROPERTY:  E = EXCELLENT; G = GOOD; F = FAIR; P = POOR;

I HEREBY CERTIFY THIS PROPERTY AS SURPLUS. 

SUBMITTING CUSTODIAN SIGNATURE: _________________________________________________________________________ 

OEL – Revised 06/01/2021 



Early Learning Coalition of North Florida, Inc. 
 Annual Board Meeting 

December 1, 2021 

VI. New/Unfinished Business

K.  Approval of DCF Designee Andrew 
Warnock* 

*ACTION ITEM



ACTION ITEM SUMMARY 

DESCRIPTION Approval of DCF Regional Administrator or Designee: Andrew 
Warnock 

Reason for Recommended Action Andrew Warnock currently serves as a Child Care Regulation 
Supervisor supporting the Counties of Clay, Duval and Nassau.  
He has been designated to serve on the board on behalf of Mala 
Ramatour, Program Manager for the Department of Children and 
Families. 

Andrew’s term would extend from December 2021 – December 
2025. 

If this is not done, the following would occur: 
• The Coalition would continue to be out of compliance by not

having a mandated seat filled.

How the Action will be accomplished Board approval; then OEL will be notified via Plan 
Amendment/Board Roster submission. 



Page 1 of 3 

C EARLY 
LEARNING 
CoALI roN 

North Florida 

Early Learning Coalition of North  Florida, Inc. 
2450 Old Moultrie Road, Ste. 103, St. Augustine, FL  32086 
PH: (904) 342-2267 
FX: (904) 342-2268 
www .clcnorthflorid .org 

BOARD  ME MBERSHIP APPLICATION 

NAME: Andrew Warnock 
(Please Print) 

ADDRESS: 
Street State Zip 

MAILING ADDRESS: 
City State Zip 

PHONE: FAX: 904-723-5315 

CELL PHONE:  

EMAIL:  andrew.warnock@myflfamilies.com 

*************************************************** 

EMPLOYER: Department o f Children and Famili es, Office of Ch i l d Care Regula tion 

ADDRESS: 5920 Arlington Expressway 
Street 

Jacksonville 
City 

FL 
State 

32211 
Zip 

MAILING ADDRESS: 5920 Arlington Expressway Jacksonville 
City 

FL 
State 

32211 
Zip 

PHONE: 904-485-9564 FAX:  904-723-5315 
*************************************************** 
Please indicate wh  r ·' yo u would prefe r Board information to be sent: 
Employ  r Addr  ss!efJ R P  rsonal A ddress 0 

COMMENTS:   _ _ 

mailto:.warnock@myflfamilies.com


Page 2 of 3 

1. Tell us why you would like to serve on the Coalition.

As a child care regulation supervisor for the Northeast Region, I would like to see
all our providers succeed. Ibelieve that cooperation and understanding between
our Early Leaming Coalitions and the licensing authority is vital in the pursuit of
consistent quality care being provided across the region.

2. What concerns do you have relating to early care and education?

Iam currently a supervisor for DCF childcare regulation in the Northeast Region,
specifically covering providers in Clay, Duval, and Nassau counties. My concerns
are regarding consistency of quality care and how best to serve the providers of
our region. Early education is imperative in development and all children deserve
the same level of care, education, and opportunities.

3. What strengths will you bring to the Coalition?

Iwill provide an extensive worki ng knowledge of state child care regulation and
licensing requirements and a working relationship with the providers located in the
Northeast Florida region.

4. Do you or anyone in your immediate family derive an income from a childcare or
pre-school program?

No.

5. Do you serve on any other boards?  Ifso, please list.

No.



Page 3 of 3 

FOR PROVIDERS ONLY: 

1. Name of the Provider you represent: _ 

2. Position:  ---------------------------

3. Please describe your center and the services provided to Baker, Bradford, Clay,
Nassau, Putnam and/or St. Johns Counties.

4. Does your center have a religious affiliation (faith-based provider)?

YES 

_ NO 

5. From what source do the majority of your funds come?

--- Private 

--- Subsidies 

--- Parent fees 

_ Other 



Early Learning Coalition of North Florida, Inc. 
 Annual Board Meeting 

December 1, 2021 

VI. New/Unfinished Business

L.  Approval of the Management Decision 
Recommendation for ECS Audit June 30, 2021* 

*ACTION ITEM



ELC OF North Florida, Inc. 

Management Decision Recommendation 
ECS Audit Report 

For FYE June 30, 2021 

Dixon, Hughes, Goodman, LLP performed the June 30, 2021 audit of Episcopal 
Children’s Services, Inc.  The report was issued on October 27, 2021 and subsequent 
events were evaluated through the date of issuance. This report was reviewed by ELC 
management and staff. The report and audited financial statements are on file and 
available to the Board for review at anytime. 

A summary of the audit results is as follows: 

1. The Independent Auditor’s Report
a. Expressed an unqualified opinion on the consolidated financial statements

of ECS.
b. Stated no instances of noncompliance material to the financial statements

of Episcopal Children's Services, Inc. were disclosed during the audit.
c. Stated no material weaknesses were identified during the audit of the

financial statements.
d. Expressed an unqualified opinion on the major award programs.
e. Stated no material weaknesses were identified during the audit of major

federal programs.

2. The Independent Auditor’s Report on Internal Controls
a. Expressed no opinion on ECS internal controls.
b. Reported no material weaknesses to internal controls.
c. Expressed no opinion on ECS compliance and other such matters.
d. The results of the internal control testing disclosed no issues of

noncompliance or other matters that would be required to be reported
under Government Auditing Standards.

3. Supplemental Information
a. There were no findings in relation to prior audits.
b. There were no current audit findings on the ECS Financial Statements.
c. There were no current audit findings or questioned costs on the ECS

Major Federal Awards Program Audit.
d. ECS qualifies as a low risk auditee.

With no audit findings, material weaknesses, or issues of noncompliance, this audit is 
considered complete. 



Early Learning Coalition of North Florida, Inc. 
 Annual Board Meeting 

December 1, 2021 

VI. New/Unfinished Business

M.  Approval of Revisions to the 2021-2022 
Budget for Early Learning Coalition of North 

Florida* 

*ACTION ITEM



Early Learning Coalition of North Florida, Inc. 

ACTION ITEM SUMMARY 

DESCRIPTION Approval of revisions to the 2021-2022 budget for Early Learning Coalition of 
North Florida.   

Reason for 
Recommended Action 

On Oct 29, 2021 The Division of Early Learning sent a revision to the Notice 
of Award for the 2021-2022 Grant Year.  Compared to our previously 
approved budget this revision 1) added $624,343 to our award for the School 
Readiness Program, 2) reduced our PDG Services award by $22,494, 3) 
reduced  our expected award for Voluntary PreKindergarten by $229,790, 
4) eliminated a separate grant for OAMI, 5) ended the CARES grant, and 6)
awarded $10,805,567 for CRRSA. 

Most of these revisions are direct flow through to ECS, though the ELCNF 
portion of administration budget for SR and VPK did change proportionately 
to the grant changes. 

If not approved, we will not have a budget that reconciles to the Notice of 
Award. 

How the Action will be 
accomplished 

Board Approval and submission to DEL. 



Early Learning Coalition of North Florida
Preliminary Budget
FY 2021-2022
As of Nov 1, 2021

6.30.2021 6.08.2021 11.01.2021

2020-2021 2021-2022 2021-2022
 Notice of Awards Actual Annual Budget Annual Budget

School Readiness (SR) 18,538,150$         21,288,789$                 21,913,132$         
OAMI 16,618 16,618 0
PDG Services 201,655 201,655 179,161
CARES 8,137,524 4,779,311 0
CRRSA 0 0 10,805,567
Voluntary PreKindergarten (VPK) 12,557,117 14,924,803 14,695,013
       Total  Notice of Award 39,451,064$         41,211,176$                 47,592,873$         

Subrecipient Expense
School Readiness (SR) 17,647,495 20,279,141 20,814,639
OAMI 16,618 16,618 0
PDG Services 201,655 201,655 179,161
CARES 8,137,524 4,779,311 0
CRRSA 0 0 10,805,567
Voluntary PreKindergarten (VPK) 12,544,740 14,867,400 14,638,494
Total Subrecipient Expense 38,548,032$         40,144,125$                 46,437,861$         

Grant Funds Available to ELC of North FL 903,032$              1,067,051$                   1,155,012$           

Other Donations and Revenue
Interest Income 537$                      530$                               530$                      
Clay Electric Foundation 15,000 15,000 15,000
Kiwanis 0 750 750
Reinhold 1,000 1,000 1,000
Quality Teacher's Conference 2,785 5,000 5,000
Miscellaneous Donations 6,313 2,000 2,000
Total Revenues 928,667$              1,091,331$                   1,179,292$           

ELC of North Florida Estimated Expense
Salaries 492,956$              580,000$                       595,000$              
PR Taxes 37,180 52,000 63,000
Health Insurance & HSA Contributions 122,963 127,000 129,000
Pension 18,633 30,000 30,000
Life, Disability, and WC 8,728 15,000 15,000
Staff Development 5,500 8,500 9,500
Contract Services 0 3,000 3,000
Auditing 15,250 13,750 15,000
Legal 0 500 500
Printing & Reproduction 0 1,000 3,000
Repairs & Maintenance 0 1,000 1,000
Office Sites - Occupancy 43,929 50,000 60,000
Postage, Freight & Delivery 3,567 3,000 3,750
Rentals - Office Equipment 3,852 5,000 5,200
Office Supplies 7,121 8,500 10,000
Communications 16,425 17,500 18,000
D & O Insurance 2,277 2,800 2,900
General Liability 4,569 4,600 4,800
Equipment <$1,000 1,464 3,500 4,500
Equipment >$1,000 5,111 2,500 3,500
Travel - In State 0 3,500 6,000
Travel - Out of State 0 6,500 7,500
Travel - Local 1,915 5,000 7,500
Bank Fees 139 600 600
Software/Licenses/Support 7,992 14,000 17,000
Web Service 32,210 28,500 32,000
Other employee expenditures 98 2,000 3,000
ADP Fees 6,213 7,000 8,000
Dues & Subscriptions 10,879 13,000 14,000
Taxes, Licenses and Fees 117 450 500
Misc. - Other Current Charges 6,812 5,500 6,800
Quality Program 68,975 75,000 98,000

Total ELC North Florida Estimated Expense 924,875 1,090,200 1,177,550

Surplus or (Loss) 3,792 1,131 1,742



Early Learning Coalition of North Florida, Inc. 
 Annual Board Meeting 

December 1, 2021 

VI. New/Unfinished Business

N.  Approval of Northeast Florida Educational 
Consortium Lease Renewal Effective January 31, 

2022* 

*ACTION ITEM



ACTION ITEM SUMMARY 

DESCRIPTION Approval of The Northeast Florida Educational Consortium Lease Renewal 
Effective January 31,2022 

Reason for 
Recommended Action 

Staff requests board approval to continue the NEFEC lease agreement of rental 
of office space in Palatka, FL.  The current lease ends January 31, 2022, and 
the new lease will start Feb. 1, 2022 and conclude January 31, 2023, with the 
option of automatic renewal for 12 months, starting Feb. 1 2023 and 
concluding on Jan. 31, 2024 at the monthly rental rate of $450.    

The space currently houses our Grants and Operations Manager, Tajaro Dixon, 
our Putnam County Reading Pals resource room, and one office is used for 
Coalition storage.  The total for all three rooms is $450.00 per month and 
includes electric. This is a $50 increase from the previous lease and is still 
considered an excellent monthly rent.  

If this is not done, the following would occur: 
• The Coalition would need to find comparable office space for Putnam

County staff, the Putnam County Reading Pals resources room, and
storage.

How the Action will be 
accomplished 

Approval of lease agreement listed above. 









































Early Learning Coalition of North Florida, Inc. 
 Annual Board Meeting 

December 1, 2021 

 

VI.  New/Unfinished Business  

 

O.  Approval of the ELCNF Insurance Coverages 
with Florida Insurance Trust to include our 

General Liability, Directors & Officers, Workers 
Compensation, Cyber, Crime and Property 

Coverage* 

 

 

*ACTION ITEM 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  



Early Learning Coalition of North Florida, Inc. 

ACTION ITEM SUMMARY 
 

DESCRIPTION  
Approval of the ELCNF Insurance Coverages with Florida Insurance Trust to 
Include our General Liability, Director’s & Officers, Workers Compensation, 
Cyber, Crime and Property Coverage. 
 

Reason for 
Recommended Action 
 
 
 
 
 

 
Florida Insurance Trust is an Insurance Company that is specific to Florida and 
to Non-Profits and provides the best costs and insurance coverage to its clients.  
It has been recognized as the leader in the non-profit insurance pooling 
industry. 
 
Effective December 11, 2021, ELCNF are renewing the following coverages 
with Florida Insurance Trust (FIT): 

• General Liability-including Employee Benefits Liability, Cost: 
$2642.22 

• Automobile Liability only, Cost: $216.14 
• Crime. Cost: $200.83 
• Property, Cost: $583.87 
• Directors and Officers, Cost:  $2,968.68 
• Cyber Coverage, Cost:  $5,115 
• Workers Compensation:  $987 

 
The total cost of bundling these coverages is:  $12,713.74 and exceeds Dawn 
Bell, C.E.O’s authority to approve.  In addition, we will be moving to a 
common anniversary date of June 1 for renewal.  All of these coverages will 
be prorated into that anniversary date (June 1, 2022). 
 
If this is not approved, the Coalition would not be insured for these 
mandatory coverages and be not only in violation of Coalition and Department 
of Early Learning policy but Florida State Policy as well. 

 
 
 

How the Action will be 
accomplished 

The Board approves this action and insurance coverages will be renewed. 

 















































Early Learning Coalition of North Florida, Inc. 
 Annual Board Meeting 

December 1, 2021 

VI. New/Unfinished Business

P.  Review of Board Membership - 
INFORMATIONAL 



Page 1 of 3 

Early Learning Coalition of North Florida, Inc. 

B O A R D  M E M B E R S H I P  S U M M A R Y  
As of January 1, 2021 

Position Name Term Start Date Term End Date 
B A K E R  

Total Private Sector 0 
B R A D F O R D  

Total Private Sector 0 
C L A Y  

Governor Appointee Private Sector Ron Coleman November 22, 2013 April 30, 2016 
Governor Appointee Private Sector *Brian H. Graham May 14, 2015 April 30, 2019 

Private Sector Vina Delcomyn September 2020 September 2024 
Total Private Sector 3 

C L A Y  
District Superintendent of Schools or Designee Bianca Montoro June 2021 June 2025 

Total Private Sector 0 
P U T N A M  

Representative of Programs for Children with Disabilities 
under the Federal Individuals with Disabilities Education 

Act Marsha Peacock September 2021 September 2025 
County Health Department Director or Designee Jessica Bishop June 2021 June 2025 

S T .  J O H N S  
Member Appointed by Bd. of County Commissioners or 

the Governing Board of a Municipality Christian Whitehurst March 2021 March 2025 
Head Start Director *Brian McElhone July 2021 July 2025 

Governor Appointee Private Sector CHAIR Vacant, Chair 
Private Sector Mike Siragusa September 2018 September 2022 
Private Sector Michelle Jonihakis December 2018 December 2022 
Private Sector Kyle Gammon September 2019 September 2023 

Total Private Sector 3 
M U L T I  C O U N T I E S  

DCF Regional Administrator or Designee Vacant 
Regional Workforce Board Executive Director or 

Designee 
*Renee Williams, (Baker, Clay,
Nassau, Putnam, St. Johns) September 2014 September 2022 

President of a Florida College System or Designee * Dr. Myrna Allen, Treasurer September 2014 September 2022 



Page 2 of 3 

Early Learning Coalition of North Florida, Inc. 

(Clay, Putnam, St. Johns) 

Representative of Private For-Profit Child Care Providers 
Patricia Tauch 
(Clay County) January 2019 January 2023 

Representative of Faith Based Child Care Providers 
*Theresa Little,
(Putnam, St. Johns) December 7, 2016 March 2025 

Central Agency Administrator 
Teresa Matheny 
(All Counties) September 21, 2016 NA 

Private Sector 
Aubrie Simpson Gotham, Secretary 
(St. Johns) December 2018 December 2022 

Private Sector 

*Joy Stanton, Vice
Chair&Standing Chair 
(St. Johns) March 2020 March 2024 

Private Sector Whitney Kersey Graves (St. Johns) March 2021 March 2025 

Private Sector Mary Ann Holanchock June 2021 June 2025 
Total Private Sector 4 
Combined Total Private Sector (Must comprise 
MORE THAN 1/3 of total Board Membership): 10 

TOTAL MEMBERSHIP 20 
 Second 4 year term 

• Ron Coleman- Governor appointee for the private sector has filed paperwork with the Governor’s office for approval of a second term.  I
received word that Ron is approved, just waiting on documentation.

• Nancy Pearson- Governor appointee for the private sector has retired effective April 30, 2021.  We are working with the Governor’s office
for approval of a new Board Chair appointee.

• Dr. Myrna Allen- Term date is September 2018; she has served one term and has been reappointed as the Designee by President Joe Pickens
of St. Johns River State College to serve a second term.  The Board approved Dr. Allen’s second term on the September 19, 2018 meeting.
Dr. Allen’s second term expires September 2022. (President of a Florida College system designee)

• Renee Williams- Term date is September 2018; she has served one term and has been  reappointed for a second term as the Designee by
President Bruce Ferguson of the Regional Workforce Board.  The Board approved R. Williams second term on the September 19, 2018
meeting.  R. Williams second term expires September 2022.  (Regional Workforce Board Executive Director or Designee)

• Joy Stanton-Term date is March 16,2020.  The Board approved J. Stanton’s second term on the March 11, 2020 meeting.  J. Stanton’s
second term expires March 2024.



Page 3 of 3 

Early Learning Coalition of North Florida, Inc. 

• Theresa Little- 1st term expired December 2020.  The Board will vote on approval for a second term at the March 10, 2021 Board Meeting.

Mandatory Seats: All mandatory seats have been filled with the exception of one, Charles Puckett has resigned from the Board and we will have a 
new DCF Regional Administrator or Designee.  Andrew Warnock will replace Charles Puckett and will be voted in at the next Annual Board 
Meeting on December 1, 2021. 

• Combined Total Private Sector (Must be comprised of MORE THAN 1/3 of total Board Membership): 1/3 of 20= 50%.  We currently have
10 private sector members.

• Total Membership: 15 to 30 members.  We currently have 20 board members.



Early Learning Coalition of North Florida, Inc. 
 Annual Board Meeting 

December 1, 2021 

VII. Board Absenteeism Log

INFORMATIONAL 



BOARD
MEMBER ABSENTEEISM LOG
By-Laws   Unexcused  absences from  two (2)
3.2.8.  Mandated

members with  three (3)  consecutive 

X = Attended
No Meeting No Meeting No Meeting No Meeting No Meeting No Meeting

9/09/2020 12/2/2020 Jan-21 Feb-21 3/11/2021 Apr-21 May-21 6/9/2021 July-21 August-21 9/8/2021

Allen, M. X X X EXCUSED X

Bishop, J.
Not a member Not a member Not a member X X

Coleman, R. X X X X X

Delcomyn, V. X X EXCUSED X X

Gammon, K. X X X X X

Garcia, M. X X X No longer a member No longer a member

Graham, B. X EXCUSED X EXCUSED EXCUSED

Holanchock, M.
Not a member Not a member Not a member Not a member EXCUSED

Hill, M. X X X X No longer a member

Johns, J. X EXCUSED No longer a member No longer a member No longer a member

Jonihakis, M. X X X X X

Kersey Graves, W.
Not a member Not a member X X EXCUSED

Little, T. X X X X X

Matheny, T X X X X X

McElhone, B. X X EXCUSED X EXCUSED

Pearson, N. EXCUSED EXCUSED X No longer a member No longer a member

Peacock, M.
Not a member Not a member Not a member Not a member X

Puckett, C. X X EXCUSED EXCUSED EXCUSED

Simpkins, K. X X X EXCUSED No longer a member

Simpson-Gotham,
A. X X X X X

Siragusa, M. X X X X X

Stanton, J. X X X X X

Tauch, P. X X X X X

Whitehurst, C.
Not a member Not a member X X X

Williams, R. X X X X X

MEMBER NAME
No Meeting 
Oct-20

No Meeting Nov-
20



Early Learning Coalition of North Florida, Inc. 
Annual Board Meeting 

December 1, 2021 

VIII. Board Comment

IX. Next Meetings

• Wednesday, February 2, 2022 10:30 a.m. –
Exec/Admin Committee Conference Call 

Meeting 

• Wednesday, March 9, 2022, 10:30 a.m.-
Board Meeting at   

Renaissance World Golf Village and Convention 
Center 

X. Adjournment* 

*ACTION ITEM


	1-Tentative Agenda 12 01 2021
	December 1, 2021; 2:00 p.m.
	Renaissance World Golf Village and Convention Center
	TENTATIVE AGENDA

	2-CS I II III
	3-CS IV
	4-Board Minutes - 09 08 21 Draft
	Episcopal Children’s Services (ECS) On-Site Monitoring:

	5-CS V A
	6-CS V B
	7-Finance Manager's Report 11 16 21
	8-CS V C
	9-Program Update 1 Qtr 21-22
	Episcopal Children’s Services (ECS) On-Site Monitoring:

	10-CS V D
	11-Early Literacy Outreach Report First Quarter 2021-2022
	12-CS V E
	13-CS VI  A
	14-Summary of DB Evaluation 2021
	15-CS VI B
	16-AIS agenda item ECS 21-22 contract amend 3 as of 102921
	17-ECS-contract amendment 0003-21 as of 102921
	18-CS VI C
	19-AIS  - SR Plan Amend 31 120121
	20-Attach I G ECS SRAD18 Tangible Personal Property 071721
	Changes/Revisions:

	21-Attach I G ELC F402 Tangible Personal Property 120121
	F402  CAPITALIZED ASSETS AND INVENTORY REQUIREMENTS
	Effective Date:  08/28/07
	Revision Date: 10/01/08, 09/16/09, 02/12/13, 12/04/13, 04/08/15, 03/16/16, 09/11/19, 12/01/21
	Policy
	Capitalized Assets – Contributed
	Capitalized Assets - Repairs
	Receipt of Newly-Purchased Property
	Identification/Marking of Property
	Location of Marking
	Lost or Stolen Grant-Purchased Property
	Surplus Computer Hard Drive Disposal (aka cleansing or data wiping) Processes
	Transfer of Property Records
	Retention of Records
	Responsibilities

	22-Attach I D BYLAWS-ELCNF BA 120121
	23-Executive Summary Template Rate Increase deb edits 12-2021
	24-Provider Rate Survey All Stakeholders
	25-Baker 1-21 OEL 32 Rate Increase Workbook 12-4-19
	3. Proposed Provider Rates

	26-Bradford 1-21 OEL 32 Rate Increase Workbook 12-4-19
	3. Proposed Provider Rates

	27-Clay 1-21 OEL 32 Rate Increase Workbook 12-4-19
	3. Proposed Provider Rates

	28-Nassau 1-21 OEL 32 Rate Increase Workbook 12-4-19
	3. Proposed Provider Rates

	29-Putnam 1-21 OEL 32 Rate Increase Workbook 12-4-19
	3. Proposed Provider Rates

	30-St Johns 1-21 OEL 32 Rate Increase Workbook 12-4-19
	3. Proposed Provider Rates

	31-CS VI D
	32-AIS- RFP Comm Recommendation for RFP Award
	33-RFP Award Recommendation for Board
	Section B – Knowledge of and Commitment to School Readiness and Voluntary Prekindergarten Services

	34-CS VI E
	35-RFP AND RFQ Timelines-for recruiting evaluators 060221
	36-CS VI F
	37-Bd Mtg 120121 - Post RFP Negotiations Memo
	38-CS VI G
	39-AIS-Accounting-Financial Pol rev for BA 120121
	40-Acctg-Financial Pol-Proc rev BA 120121-ind policies-F103-106-305-306
	F103  INTERNAL CONTROLS
	Effective Date:  03/19/08
	Revision Date: 04/07/10, 12/07/11, 12/04/13, 12/07/16, 12/01/21
	B. Internal Controls Policies and Procedures Review and Updates
	1.  The Finance Manager shall ensure that all Internal Control-related policies and procedures are reviewed annually and necessary revisions are processed.  In addition, the revisions will be communicated to appropriate Coalition staff.
	2.  Upon notification of new or revised regulations, the Finance Manager shall ensure that applicable policies and procedures are updated and communicated to the appropriate Coalition staff.
	C.  Annual Internal Controls Questionnaire

	F106  POLICY ON SUSPECTED MISCONDUCT
	Effective Date:  08/28/07
	Revision Date: 03/19/08, 08/05/09, 03/16/16, 12/07/16, 12/01/21
	Introduction
	Definitions
	Reporting Responsibilities
	Investigative Responsibilities
	Disciplinary Action

	Confidentiality
	The Executive/Administrative Committee and the C.E.O. treats all information received confidentially. Any employee who suspects dishonest or fraudulent activity will notify the C.E.O. or the Executive/Administrative Committee Chair immediately, and sh...
	Great care must be taken in the investigation of suspected improprieties or irregularities so as to avoid mistaken accusations or alerting suspected individuals that an investigation is under way. Investigation results will not be disclosed or discuss...
	Disclosure to Outside Parties
	F305  ACCOUNTS PAYABLE MANAGEMENT
	Effective Date:  08/28/07
	Revision Date: 03/19/08, 08/06/08, 04/06/11, 12/04/13, 09/17/14, 11/04/15, 03/16/16, 12/07/16, 09/20/17, 03/21/18, 09/11/19, 12/01/21

	 OEL Program Guidance files
	Recording of Accounts Payable
	Accounts Payable Cut-Off
	Establishment of Control Devices
	Use of Purchase Orders
	Preparation of a Voucher Package for Payment
	Processing of Voucher Packages for Payment
	Payment Discounts
	Employee Expense Reports
	F306  TRAVEL AND BUSINESS EXPENSES
	Effective Date:  08/28/07
	Revision Date: 08/05/09, 08/03/11, 06/06/12, 12/07/16, 09/20/17, 08/07/19, 12/01/21

	Travel Approval
	All travel expenses (local and overnight), must be pre-approved by the C.E.O. (for Coalition employees), and by another Board Member or the Coalition Board of Directors (for the C.E.O. and/or Board members) prior to travel taking place.
	Travel Advances
	Reasonableness of Travel Costs
	Special Rules Pertaining to Air Travel
	Spouse/Partner Travel



	41-CS VI H
	42-AIS-Contract Management Pol rev for BA 120121
	43-Contract Mngmt Pol-Proc rev BA 120121-ind policy
	Contracts should REQUIRE:
	Extensions

	Actions
	Price Analysis

	Objective
	Definition
	A. Accounting and auditing requirements
	1. During the course of any state fiscal year, the Office, the Florida DFS, the Florida Auditor General, HHS, Inspector Generals of federal and state agencies, the Comptroller General of the United States or any of their duly authorized representative...
	2. Any of the above-listed reviews may identify questioned costs. The Contractor shall have an opportunity to substantiate or appeal the finding or questioned cost(s). Any unresolved questioned costs may become disallowed federal and state program cos...
	3. The Contractor agrees that legal expenses and related costs in the defense or prosecution of any claim or appeal against the state government or any of its agencies are not reimbursable costs. However, 2 CFR §200 Subpart E allows reasonable legal e...

	B. Monitoring
	1. Monitoring activities. The Office is responsible for monitoring grant, subrecipient and contract supported activities to assure compliance with Federal requirements and that performance goals are being achieved. In accordance with 45 CFR §75.342 (a...
	2. Related party disclosures. The Contractor shall ensure that all related party transactions are included in the financial statement footnote disclosures in accordance with requirements defined in Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) Accountin...
	3. Internal controls – auditor documentation. The Contractor shall obtain the internal control work papers from the auditor(s) performing the annual independent financial statement audit. The Contractor shall keep these work papers onsite as part of i...
	4. Internal controls – annual self-assessment. The Contractor must perform an internal controls self-assessment using OEL’s annual Internal Control Questionnaire (ICQ) Survey Form. The Contractor shall provide a copy of the completed annual ICQ to ELC...
	4.1. The annual ICQ will help the Contractor document that the primary objectives for internal controls pertaining to compliance requirements for federal programs, including the following, are met in accordance with 2 CFR §200.303:
	4.1.1. The Contractor properly records and accounts for transactions.
	4.1.2. The Contractor executes transactions in compliance with laws, regulations and contract provisions.
	4.1.3. The Contractor safeguards funds, property and other assets against loss due to unauthorized use or disposition.
	4.1.4. Reasonable measures are taken to safeguard protected personally identifiable information (PPII) and other information the Federal awarding agency or the Office consider sensitive consistent with applicable Federal, state and local laws regardin...
	4.2. OEL/ELC will provide the annual ICQ form in electronic format to the Contractor by July 1 of each award period, unless OEL/ELC makes other arrangements.
	C. Audits

	III. Any other applicable Certification and/or Assurance not listed above (as listed and/or updated in the most current OEL Grant Agreement - which is incorporated into each subrecipient contract).

	44-CS VI I
	45-AIS-Personnel Pol rev for BA 120121
	46-Personnel Pol-Proc rev BA 120121-ind policies
	47-CS VI J
	48-AIS-Disposal of Inventory
	49-Attachment A Surplus Property Form CUBICLES 11.1.21
	50-CS VI K
	51-AIS_DCF Designee Andrew Warnock
	52-Board Membership Application - Completed
	***************************************************
	***************************************************

	53-CS VI L
	54-MDR - ECS Audit Report 20-21
	55-CS VI M
	56-AIS - Approval of Revised 2021-2022 Budget
	57-Preliminary Budget 11 1 21
	Budget

	58-CS VI N
	59-AIS NEFEC Lease Renewal
	60-NEFEC Lease Renewal 11 17 21
	61-CS VI O
	62-AIS Florida Insurance Trust Approval
	63-Florida Insurance Trust Overview 11 16 21
	64-CS VI P
	65-Board  Membership Smry  11-18-21
	66--CS VII
	67-Board Absenteeism Log for 11.18.21
	Table 1

	68-CS VIII IX X



Accessibility Report



		Filename: 

		240.02A_TangiblePersonalProperty_2020-21_Final_ADA.pdf






		Report created by: 

		


		Organization: 

		





[Enter personal and organization information through the Preferences > Identity dialog.]


Summary


The checker found problems which may prevent the document from being fully accessible.



		Needs manual check: 0


		Passed manually: 2


		Failed manually: 0


		Skipped: 1


		Passed: 26


		Failed: 3





Detailed Report



		Document




		Rule Name		Status		Description


		Accessibility permission flag		Passed		Accessibility permission flag must be set


		Image-only PDF		Passed		Document is not image-only PDF


		Tagged PDF		Passed		Document is tagged PDF


		Logical Reading Order		Passed manually		Document structure provides a logical reading order


		Primary language		Passed		Text language is specified


		Title		Passed		Document title is showing in title bar


		Bookmarks		Passed		Bookmarks are present in large documents


		Color contrast		Passed manually		Document has appropriate color contrast


		Page Content




		Rule Name		Status		Description


		Tagged content		Passed		All page content is tagged


		Tagged annotations		Passed		All annotations are tagged


		Tab order		Passed		Tab order is consistent with structure order


		Character encoding		Passed		Reliable character encoding is provided


		Tagged multimedia		Passed		All multimedia objects are tagged


		Screen flicker		Passed		Page will not cause screen flicker


		Scripts		Passed		No inaccessible scripts


		Timed responses		Passed		Page does not require timed responses


		Navigation links		Passed		Navigation links are not repetitive


		Forms




		Rule Name		Status		Description


		Tagged form fields		Passed		All form fields are tagged


		Field descriptions		Passed		All form fields have description


		Alternate Text




		Rule Name		Status		Description


		Figures alternate text		Failed		Figures require alternate text


		Nested alternate text		Passed		Alternate text that will never be read


		Associated with content		Passed		Alternate text must be associated with some content


		Hides annotation		Passed		Alternate text should not hide annotation


		Other elements alternate text		Passed		Other elements that require alternate text


		Tables




		Rule Name		Status		Description


		Rows		Passed		TR must be a child of Table, THead, TBody, or TFoot


		TH and TD		Passed		TH and TD must be children of TR


		Headers		Failed		Tables should have headers


		Regularity		Passed		Tables must contain the same number of columns in each row and rows in each column


		Summary		Skipped		Tables must have a summary


		Lists




		Rule Name		Status		Description


		List items		Passed		LI must be a child of L


		Lbl and LBody		Passed		Lbl and LBody must be children of LI


		Headings




		Rule Name		Status		Description


		Appropriate nesting		Failed		Appropriate nesting







Back to Top
	TO 2: 2450 Old Moultrie Road, Ste. 103
	TO 3: St. Augustine, FL  32086
	1: 8443 Baymeadows Rd. Suite 1
	2: Jacksonville, FL 32256 
	DATE: 11/1/21
	ID Tag Row1: CNBB 83/ECS1280
	Description of Property wname make model  and manufacturerRow1: Work Station Furniture (10 Cubicles)
	Physical Location of Property Being Made SurplusRow1: 8443 Baymeadows Rd. Suite 1, Jacksonville, FL 32256 (CENTRAL)
	ConditionRow1: Poor
	Serial NumberRow1: n/a
	CommentsRow1: Stained/falling apart
	ID Tag Row2: CNBB79/ECS1272
	Description of Property wname make model  and manufacturerRow2: Work Station Furniture (14 Cubicles)
	Physical Location of Property Being Made SurplusRow2: 8443 Baymeadows Rd. Suite 1, Jacksonville, FL 32256 (CENTRAL)
	ConditionRow2: Poor
	Serial NumberRow2: n/a
	CommentsRow2: Stained/falling apart
	ID Tag Row3: 
	Description of Property wname make model  and manufacturerRow3: 
	Physical Location of Property Being Made SurplusRow3: 
	ConditionRow3: 
	Serial NumberRow3: 
	CommentsRow3: 
	ID Tag Row4: 
	Description of Property wname make model  and manufacturerRow4: 
	Physical Location of Property Being Made SurplusRow4: 
	ConditionRow4: 
	Serial NumberRow4: 
	CommentsRow4: 
	ID Tag Row5: 
	Description of Property wname make model  and manufacturerRow5: 
	Physical Location of Property Being Made SurplusRow5: 
	ConditionRow5: 
	Serial NumberRow5: 
	CommentsRow5: 
	ID Tag Row6: 
	Description of Property wname make model  and manufacturerRow6: 
	Physical Location of Property Being Made SurplusRow6: 
	ConditionRow6: 
	Serial NumberRow6: 
	CommentsRow6: 
	ID Tag Row7: 
	Description of Property wname make model  and manufacturerRow7: 
	Physical Location of Property Being Made SurplusRow7: 
	ConditionRow7: 
	Serial NumberRow7: 
	CommentsRow7: 
	ID Tag Row8: 
	Description of Property wname make model  and manufacturerRow8: 
	Physical Location of Property Being Made SurplusRow8: 
	ConditionRow8: 
	Serial NumberRow8: 
	CommentsRow8: 
	ID Tag Row9: 
	Description of Property wname make model  and manufacturerRow9: 
	Physical Location of Property Being Made SurplusRow9: 
	ConditionRow9: 
	Serial NumberRow9: 
	CommentsRow9: 
	TO 1: Early Learning Coalition of North Florida
	From: Episcopal Children's Services
	PAGE: 1
	Text1: 8443 Baymeadows Rd. Suite 1
	Text2: Jacksonville, FL 32256
	Text3: Anita Miller Sackman
	Text4: 904-726-1500 ext 2207
	Text5: 904-726-1516
	Custodian Delegate Signature: 


